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CERTAIN STATEMENTS IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K, INCLUDING THOSE RELATING TO RELATIONSHIPS WITH DATA
SUPPLIERS, TERMINATION OF SUPPLIER RELATIONSHIPS, PRODUCT DEMAND, ACQUISITION TARGETS, INTERNATIONAL MARKETS,
LITIGATION, EXPENSES, AND CASH FLOW AND LIQUIDITY ARE FORWARD LOOKING. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES EXIST THAT MAY
CAUSE RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE SET FORTH IN THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. FACTORS THAT COULD
CAUSE THE ANTICIPATED RESULTS TO DIFFER FROM THOSE DESCRIBED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS INCLUDE: GENERAL
VOLATILITY OF THE CAPITAL MARKETS AND THE MARKET PRICE OF THE COMPANY’S CLASS A COMMON STOCK; THE COMPANY’S
ABILITY TO SUCCESSFULLY RAISE CAPITAL; THE COMPANY’S ABILITY TO IDENTIFY AND COMPLETE ACQUISITIONS AND
SUCCESSFULLY INTEGRATE BUSINESSES IT ACQUIRES; CHANGES IN APPLICABLE GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS; THE DEGREE AND
NATURE OF THE COMPANY’S COMPETITION; INCREASES IN THE COMPANY’S EXPENSES; CONTINUED CONSOLIDATION AMONG THE
COMPANY’S COMPETITORS AND CUSTOMERS; UNANTICIPATED TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGES AND REQUIREMENTS; THE COMPANY’S
ABILITY TO IDENTIFY SUPPLIERS OF QUALITY AND COST-EFFECTIVE DATA; AND OTHER FACTORS DESCRIBED IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT
ON FORM 10-K. THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE THEY ARE MADE. THE COMPANY DOES NOT
UNDERTAKE TO UPDATE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS TO REFLECT CIRCUMSTANCES OR EVENTS THAT OCCUR AFTER THE DATE
THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE MADE.

PART I

Item 1. Business.
Our Company

First Advantage Corporation is a growing, international provider of risk mitigation and business solutions. Our Company was formed in the June 5, 2003
merger with The First American Corporation’s (“First American”) screening technology division and US SEARCH.com Inc. On June 6, 2003, First Advantage’s
Class A common stock commenced trading on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “FADV”.

Prior to June 5, 2003, our activities were limited to participation in the business combination transaction contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of
Merger dated December 13, 2002 by and among The First American Corporation, US SEARCH, First Advantage and Stockholm Seven Merger Corp.

On June 5, 2003, HireCheck, Inc., Employee Health Programs, Inc., SafeRent, Inc., Substance Abuse Management, Inc., American Driving Records, Inc.
and First American Registry, Inc., each formerly a wholly-owned subsidiary of First American and collectively comprising the First American Screening
Technology (“FAST”) division, and US SEARCH, a public company whose common shares were, until June 5, 2003, traded on the Nasdaq National Market
under the symbol “SRCH”, became wholly-owned operating subsidiaries of First Advantage.

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, on June 5, 2003, First American received First Advantage Class B common stock representing approximately 80% of
the economic interest and 98% of the voting interest of First Advantage. The former shareholders of US SEARCH exchanged their outstanding shares of US
SEARCH common stock for First Advantage Class A common stock representing, in the aggregate, approximately 20% of the economic interest and 2% of the
voting interest in First Advantage.

On September 14, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition to buy First American’s Credit Information Group (“CIG”) Business under the terms of
the master transfer agreement. First Advantage purchased the CIG Business and related businesses with 29,073,170 shares of its Class B common stock. The
acquisition of the CIG



Business by First Advantage is a transaction between businesses under common control of First American. As such, First Advantage has recorded the assets and
liabilities of the CIG Business at historical cost. Historical financial statements of First Advantage have been restated to include results of operations of the CIG
Business at historical costs. As of December 31, 2005, First American owned approximately 77% of the economic interest and 98% of the voting interest of First
Advantage.

Business of First Advantage

Our operations are organized into six business segments: Lender Services, Data Services, Dealer Services, Employer Services, Multifamily Services, and
Investigative and Litigation Support Services.

A summary of our revenue, income from operations and assets for our segments is found in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8,
which is included herein by reference.

Lender Services

The Lender Services segment provides specialized credit reports for mortgage lenders throughout the United States. The Company believes that it is the
largest provider of credit reports to the United States mortgage lending industry, based on the number of credit reports issued. In preparing its merged credit
reports for mortgage lenders, the Company obtains credit reports from at least two of the three United States primary credit bureaus, merges and summarizes the
credit reports and delivers its report in a standard format acceptable to mortgage loan originators and secondary mortgage purchasers. Our Lender Services
segment accounted for approximately 26% of our consolidated revenue in 2005.

Demand for our Lender Services products usually decreases in November and December due to the holidays and related decrease in home buying activity.

Data Services

First Advantage’s Data Services segment offers motor vehicle records, transportation industry credit reporting, fleet management, supply chain theft and
damage mitigation consulting, consumer location, criminal records reselling, subprime credit reporting, consumer credit reporting services and lead generation.
Our Data Services segment accounted for approximately 20% of our consolidated revenue in 2005.

Our motor vehicle record services provide customers with automated access to motor vehicle records from all 50 states and the District of Columbia.
Independent insurance agents operating in the United States represent the core of the customer base for this product, which they use for underwriting purposes.
Employers also utilize the product to manage risk associated with employees that require the use of a vehicle in the performance of their duties. For most
customers, we receive and fulfill orders through our proprietary Comprise/ZapApp® software, which allows the customer to integrate the process of obtaining
motor vehicles reports with other processes utilized by the customer.

As part of the offerings of this segment, we also provide trucking companies with access to a database of payment practice records on more than 80,000
transportation brokers and shippers in North America, which is comprised of client-contributed accounts receivables and public records data. Subscribing clients
utilize the Company’s services to evaluate the nonpayment (or slow payment) risk of shippers and brokers before agreeing to transport cargo on credit.
Additionally, we offer transportation consulting services that are designed to address and resolve asset management and compliance problems for owners and
operators of truck fleets.

Demand for our motor vehicle records products usually decreases in November and December as a result of reductions in the insurance and employment
markets.



Our consumer direct business provides location, verification and screening services directly to consumers through the Internet. This business uses a
proprietary software platform and web-based systems to supply customers with services such as individual location, identity verification, criminal record checks,
employment and education verifications. This business has developed US SEARCH DARWIN™ which automates the data management supply chain by
accessing, assimilating, and compiling data from disparate sources. The current applications of the technology focus on individual locator and profile services. We
are also adapting this technology for use in our Employer Services segment.

The Company also provides specialized credit reports direct to consumers. These reports may be derived from credit reports obtained from one or more of
the three United States credit bureaus and may be specially formatted for ease of use by the creditor or to facilitate interpretation by a consumer.

Our subprime credit reporting business provides credit reports derived from its proprietary database. The Company believes Teletrack is the largest
provider of credit reports specializing in sub-prime borrowers in the United States, based on the number of reports issued. Its primary customers include pay-day
loan, rent-to-own retailers, and similar types of creditors. Demand for our subprime credit products usually increases in November and December due to the
holidays and increased consumer spending. In turn the business generally experiences a decrease in demand in the first quarter due to tax return refunds and
thereby decreasing the need for payday loans.

Our lead generation business is a provider of performance-based, cost-per-action (“CPA”) internet marketing solutions. Its primary service offerings are
sales lead generation, list management and affiliate network marketing. Customers include a wide variety of companies ranging from medium-sized businesses to
Fortune 500 companies, including many leading service providers in the sub-prime and personal finance markets.

Dealer Services

The Dealer Services segment provides specialized credit reports, credit automation software, and lead generation services to auto dealers and lenders.
These reports may be derived from credit reports obtained from one or more of the three United States credit bureaus and may be specially formatted for ease of
use by the creditor or to facilitate interpretation by a consumer. The segment provides comprehensive solutions that help organizations meet their lending, leasing
and other consumer credit automation needs. By delivering innovative systems, services and data solutions, the Company helps companies reduce risk, decrease
costs and improve service. Our Dealer Services segment accounted for approximately 15% of our consolidated revenue in 2005.

Our Dealer Services segment generally experiences seasonality close to the end of the year, which is attributed to the holidays and consumer focus diverted
from car sales.

Employer Services

First Advantage’s Employer Services segment helps thousands of companies in the United States and abroad manage risk with our employment screening,
occupational health, tax incentive and services hiring solutions. Our Employer Services segment accounted for approximately 24% of our consolidated revenue in
2005.

Our employment screening services generate reports about a prospective employee’s criminal record, motor vehicle violations, credit standing and
involvement in civil litigation. We also make inquiries of provided references and former employers, verify educational credentials and licenses, verify social
security numbers and check industry specific records. A customer can order any of these and other related services individually, as a package with our other
employment screening products or with other products we offer. Depending on a customer’s preference, orders may be placed and fulfilled directly from the
Company, through a secure Internet connection, software, facsimile or through third party vendors.
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Our occupational health products generally involve the design and management of drug free workplace programs, including provision for the collection and
testing of specimens and interpretation of the results. We also provide physical examination services to employers. Reports of our findings are generally delivered
through a secure Internet connection or through other direct means. We also develop and manage employee assistance programs, which provide our customers’
employees with access to confidential counseling services and other resources to assist with personal issues that may affect workplace productivity. These
programs cover a wide range of personal and workplace issues, including alcohol and drug abuse, marital problems, family matters, bereavement management,
depression, stress, retirement and downsizing. First Advantage’s employee assistance programs also provide employers with a number of corporate-focused
services, including management counseling, critical incident stress management programs, organizational change consulting and intensive specialty training on
issues such as violence in the workplace.

Our tax incentive services specialize in identifying primarily employment-related tax incentive programs available under both federal and state legislation,
and processing the paperwork required to capture such tax incentives and credits. We also offer comprehensive sales and use tax-consulting services to assist
clients with compliance with changing laws and regulations affecting sales and use taxes.

Our hiring solutions group provides recruiting and hiring systems to manage job applicants. We provide an applicant tracking system to customers to track
job applicants from the initial stages of job requisition development through the hiring and on-board process. We can also provide the complete outsourcing of the
recruitment process.

Our employment screening, occupational health services and hiring solutions generally experience seasonality near year-end, which is attributed to
decreases in hiring. Our tax incentive services group’s ability to obtain certain tax credits, such as the Work Opportunity Tax Credit (“WOTC”) program or a
similar program, is dependent upon the passage of federal legislation that generally must be renewed every one or two years. Congress renewed the Work
Opportunity Tax Credit program for one year in fourth quarter 2004 for employees hired after December 31, 2003 and before January 1, 2006. Currently, federal
legislation to renew the WOTC program is pending in Congress.

Multifamily Services

First Advantage’s Multifamily Services segment helps thousands of companies in the United States manage risk with resident screening services. Our
Multifamily Services segment accounted for approximately 10% of our consolidated revenue in 2005.

Our resident screening offerings generate reports containing information about a prospective renter’s eviction record, lease and payment performance
history, credit standing, references and criminal records to residential property managers and owners operating in the United States. Depending on a customer’s
needs, our reports may contain one or any combination of these pieces of information. In serving our customers, we may draw on our database of landlord-tenant
records, which is the largest of its kind in the United States, and our database of criminal conviction information, which is one of the largest for use in resident
screening in the United States. We also offer a scoring product, which assesses risk of default by a prospective renter based on a statistical scoring model
developed exclusively for the multifamily housing industry. Customers generally order and receive the segment’s resident screening products through a secure
Internet connection or through proprietary software.

Our resident screening products experience seasonality declines during the winter months from November to March.

Investigative and Litigation Support Services

The Investigative and Litigation Support Services segment provides corporate litigation and investigative services. Products and services provided by the
segment include: surveillance services, field interviews,



computer forensics, electronic discovery, due diligence reports and other high level investigations. Our Investigative and Litigation Support Services segment
accounted for approximately 5% of our consolidated revenue in 2005.

Our investigative service businesses help customers with investigative services designed to detect and expose worker’s compensation, disability and
liability insurance fraud. Purchased mostly by insurance carriers, third party administrators and self-insuring companies, these services generally involve field
surveillance and interviews conducted by more than 130 full-time licensed staff investigators. This segment receives orders in a variety of ways, including
telephonic or other direct contact with the client, facsimile, e-mail or through the Internet. In most cases, investigation reports, including accompanying video, are
sent via mail or courier to the client.

Within this segment we also provide services that assist our customers in business, legal and financial matters, including investigations and litigation
arising from trade secret theft, software infringement, financial fraud, employee malfeasance and unfair competition. The segment employs computer forensic and
electronic discovery experts and consultants in its bi-coastal state-of-the-art laboratories. We also offer due diligence services for a variety of purposes and have a
specialized database of hedge fund managers. Unprecedented emphasis on corporate integrity and compliance, following the wave of corporate scandals and the
resulting litigation, has driven growth in the segment’s business.

Our investigative services experience seasonality December through February as a result of the number of holidays that occur during this period and
frequent year-end reorganizations of our insurance clients.

Historical Growth

Prior to the June 5, 2003 mergers, HireCheck, Employee Health Programs, SafeRent, Substance Abuse Management, American Driving Records and First
American Registry, now wholly-owned subsidiaries of First Advantage, were wholly-owned subsidiaries of First American and made up the FAST division.

In the late 1990s, First American initiated a diversification strategy which called for, among other things, the combination of one of its core competencies
—data management and analysis—with businesses that are counter-cyclical to its long-standing real estate related products and services. First American also
sought businesses that were complementary to its rapidly growing credit reporting business, First American CREDCO. First American management initially
focused on the background screening industry—an information-intensive business with a heavy demand for credit reports and a relatively tangential tie to the real
estate market.

In September 1998, First American began its entry into the employee screening industry by acquiring HireCheck. HireCheck, headquartered in St.
Petersburg, Florida, and now referred to as First Advantage Background Services Corporation, is today the principal subsidiary through which our Employer
Services segment provides employment screening services. In this same month First American also entered the resident screening industry by acquiring First
American Registry, headquartered in Rockville, Maryland. First American Registry, now known as First Advantage SafeRent, which we believe to be the largest
resident screening company in the United States, is today the principal subsidiary through which our Multifamily Services segment provides resident screening
products.

Continuing its efforts to provide a comprehensive set of risk management tools to its customers, in August 2001 First American entered the occupational
health services business by acquiring Milwaukee, Wisconsin-based Substance Abuse Management.

Five months later, in January 2002, First American further added to the menu of services offered by the FAST division by acquiring American Driving
Records, a Rancho Cordova, California-based provider of motor vehicle reports. One of the largest competitors in its industry, American Driving Records brought
to the FAST



division not only a formidable player in a key area of the risk management industry, but also enhanced the division’s access to the motor vehicle records of almost
every state in the United States. With American Driving Records, First American purchased ZapApp India Private Limited, a Bangalore, India-based private
limited company that provides technology services to American Driving Records and now to all of First Advantage.

In an effort to improve the profitability of the companies then comprising the FAST division, in the second quarter of 2001 First American reorganized the
division’s management structure by dedicating a single management group to the oversight of all operations. By emphasizing the group as a whole, First
American believed this reorganization effort would position the FAST division to pursue cross-selling opportunities, take advantage of mutual supplier
relationships and leverage technological developments and resources across the entire division. It also hoped to focus management on efforts to improve the
division’s operating margins by increasing the volume of transactions performed using the division’s existing systems, whether through internal sales growth or
by acquiring businesses with complementary product offerings. In January 2002, First American formally created the FAST division and began reporting the
division as a segment in its financial statements.

Strategic Acquisitions Following 2001 Reorganization

First American supplemented the division’s employee background screening operations by acquiring Factual Business Information, Inc., headquartered in
Miami, Florida, in August 2001 and Pretiem Corporation, headquartered in Princeton Junction, New Jersey, in December of 2001. These acquisitions provided
the division with an expanded customer base for employee screening services in three important employment markets: the Miami metropolitan area, New Jersey
and New York State.

In the last quarter of 2002, the FAST division completed acquisitions of Employee Health Programs in October and SafeRent in November.

A competitor of Substance Abuse Management, the Bethesda, Maryland-based Employee Health Programs brought critical volume to the FAST division’s
occupational health business. Through the acquisition of Employee Health Programs, the FAST division also expanded the scope of its existing services to
include employee assistance programs, which are designed to help troubled employees resolve personal issues that can affect workplace productivity. Employee
Health Programs and Substance Abuse Management, now known as First Advantage Occupational Health Services Corporation, are today the principal
subsidiaries through which the Employer Services segment provides occupational health services.

SafeRent, headquartered in Denver, Colorado, brought additional key customers to the FAST division’s leading resident screening business and increased
the division’s penetration in key markets, in particular markets in the western United States.

June 5, 2003 Mergers

In the June 5, 2003 mergers, the companies comprising the FAST division and US SEARCH combined under one umbrella. US SEARCH brought to First
Advantage not only many important employment screening customers through its Professional Resource Screening, Inc. subsidiary, but also an opportunity to
pursue a new market—consumers—with specially tailored versions of our existing products. Ultimately, Professional Resource Screening was combined with the
other companies in our Employer Services segment and the other operations of US SEARCH are now included in our Data Services segment.

September 14, 2005 Merger

On September 14, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition to buy First American’s Credit Information Group (“CIG”) Business under the terms of
the master transfer agreement. Under the terms of the agreement, First American and its First American Real Estate Solutions (“FARES”) joint venture
contributed their mortgage,



automotive, consumer and sub-prime credit businesses to First Advantage in exchange for 29,073,170 shares of First Advantage Class B common stock. The
acquisition of the CIG Business by First Advantage is a transaction between businesses under common control of First American. As such, First Advantage has
recorded the assets and liabilities of the CIG Business at historical cost. Historical financial statements of First Advantage have been restated to include results of
operations of the CIG Business at historical costs.

Strategic Acquisitions

Since becoming a public company in June 2003, we have actively pursued our acquisition strategy. In August 2003, we acquired two employment
background screening companies, Liberatore Services, Inc. and Total Information Source, Inc., and an occupational health services company, Continental
Compliance Systems. In September 2003 we further expanded our occupational health services with the acquisition of Employee Information Services, Inc. In
that same month, we acquired Omega Insurance Services, Inc., which brought a new investigative services product to First Advantage. In November 2003 we
made three acquisitions: occupational health services company Greystone Health Sciences Corporation; MedTech Diagnostics, Inc., a provider of both
occupational health services and employment screening services; and Agency Records, Inc., a provider of motor vehicle records. In December 2003, we acquired
Credential Check & Personnel Services, Inc., an employment screening company.

During the first quarter of 2004, the Company acquired Quantitative Risk Solutions LLC, Proudfoot Reports Incorporated, MVR’s, Inc., Background
Information Systems, Inc., Infocheck Ltd. and Landlord Protect, Inc. During the second quarter of 2004, the Company acquired U.D. Registry, Inc., CoreFacts,
LLC, Realeum, Inc., and CIC Enterprises, Inc. During the third quarter 2004, the Company acquired BackTrack Reports, Inc. and National Background Data,
LLC. During the fourth quarter 2004, the Company acquired Business Tax Credit Corporation d/b/a The Alameda Company and Compunet Credit Services, Inc.

The Company acquired fifteen companies in 2005. In second quarter 2005, the Company acquired Bar None, Inc, a provider of credit-based lead
generation, processing and tracking services, which is included in our Dealer Services segment. In fourth quarter 2005, the Company acquired majority interest in
LeadClick Media Inc, an online lead-generation and marketing company. This company is included in our Data Services segment. In 2005, we acquired two
businesses from Experian. They were Experian RES and Credit Data Services, both were added to our Lender Services segment. Throughout the year, we added
six companies to our Employer Services segment, including ITax Group, Inc., Quest Research Group, LTD, Recruiternet, Inc., Road Manager Financial Services,
Inc., TruStar Solutions, Inc., and majority interest in PrideRock Holding Company, Inc. Recruiternet, Inc. and TruStar Solutions, Inc. together became our hiring
solutions group. Three companies were added to our Investigative and Litigation Support Services segment in 2005. They were Data Recovery Services, Inc.,
Phoenix Research Corporation, and True Data Partners. We also acquired The Info Center and Jenark Business Systems, Inc. which both are included in our
Multifamily Services segment.

Customers

First Advantage, through its subsidiaries, serves a wide variety of clients throughout the United States and abroad. The tens of thousands of customers
served by First Advantage include nearly a quarter of those businesses comprising the Fortune 1000, leading mortgage lenders, automobile dealerships, real estate
investment trusts and property management companies, many of the top providers of transportation services, insurance agents, the leading national law firms, and
non-profit organizations. Dominant categories of customers vary depending on the type of service or product. For example, our credit reporting services are
typically purchased by industry-leading mortgage and refinance lenders. Automobile dealerships nationwide buy our credit reports as well as our lead generation
services. Insurance carriers, agents and claims adjusters purchase a substantial proportion of our surveillance services. Law firms nationwide utilize the computer
forensics and e-discovery services we offer. Trucking companies are major consumers of our occupational health and transportation industry credit services.
Multifamily housing property management companies and landlords of all



sizes are represented in the resident screening business’ customer base. Larger employers represent the predominant share of the employee background screening
and tax incentive services clients. Individual consumers dominate the customer base for our consumer direct businesses. We derive $9,112,000 of revenue from
operations outside the United States and their related customers.

Excluding our consumer direct businesses, which have a fluid customer base, we have in excess of 65,000 customers. No single customer is responsible for
8 percent or more of our revenue.

Suppliers

Data represents a key ingredient in most of our products. In obtaining such data, we draw upon a wide variety of sources, including governmental agencies,
credit reporting agencies, competitors, customers, third parties which compile public record information and on-line search services. Many of our suppliers
provide this data in electronic format. We do not anticipate the termination of any significant relationship with any of our data suppliers. Because we believe we
could acquire necessary data from other sources, we do not believe that the termination of any supplier relationship would have a material adverse effect on our
financial condition or operating results.

In connection with our occupational health services, we depend upon services provided by specimen collection agencies and laboratories. There is
significant competition among suppliers of these services and, consequently, we do not believe the termination of our relationship with any of these suppliers
would have a material adverse effect on its financial condition or operating results.

We obtain some of our data from consumer credit reporting agencies. Any of these suppliers could stop supplying this data or could substantially increase
their prices. Withholding this data could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Governmental Regulation

Although generally our products or services do not require governmental approvals, our businesses are subject to various federal and state regulations that
may impact our products and services. For example, the Federal Fair Credit Reporting Act, Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act, the Drivers Privacy
Protection Act, the CAN-SPAM act, federal and state laws relating to drug testing, federal and state tax credit laws, state private investigator laws, federal and
state laws regulating to residential-leasing and landlord services, federal and state laws regulating the hiring process, and various state laws regulating services
that include disclosure of personal information.

Many state and local laws require certain of our subsidiaries and employees engaged in providing our investigative services products to be licensed as
private investigators. Some state and local governments require the same with respect to our employee screening companies.

Historically, we have been able to comply with existing laws and regulations without incurring substantial costs or restrictions on our business.

Competition

A number of companies compete with our service offerings. First Advantage’s most significant credit reporting services competitors are the three major
credit repositories and Kroll Factual Data (“Kroll”). First Advantage’s most significant national competitors in employment background verifications include
ChoicePoint, Kroll, U.S. Investigative Services and ADP, although hundreds of local and regional competitors also exist. In occupational health services, we
believe that we have only one significant nationwide competitor, ChoicePoint; however, there are a number of local and regional companies in the industry, as
well. The addition of both



applicant tracking systems (“ATS”) and recruiting services brought new competitors into our mix. The ATS competitive field includes no dominant players, but
rather, many small competitors focused on serving specific industries. Similarly, competition in recruiting is also very diverse and includes ATS companies,
advertising agencies, job board companies, and in house recruiting departments. First Advantage’s most significant national competitors in our tax incentive
services include ADP, Mintax, Talx and the Big 4 accounting firms, and other small regional companies operating in that market. The resident screening industry
is fragmented, with only approximately eight other companies providing significant competition to First Advantage’s business on a national level. In motor
vehicle record services, there are approximately ten major competitors to First Advantage, the most predominant of which is ChoicePoint. Our new transportation
credit services business competes with three significant vendors. First Advantage’s insurance fraud investigative services also compete with three other
companies on a national basis, with a broad spectrum of regional and local competitors. First Advantage’s due diligence services compete with a handful of small
boutiques, Kroll and two or three regional firms across the country. Our computer forensics services mainly compete against the large litigation consulting
practices, the Big 4 consulting firms, and Kroll. Our e-discovery business line also competes with Kroll, Electronic Evidence Discovery, and a handful of other
top tier providers. There is also some competition from small regional companies and sole practitioners for both of these services. In virtually all of these markets,
First Advantage competes foremost on the basis of customer service and secondarily on product and price differentiation.

The primary competitors to our consumer location businesses include telephone companies and other third parties who publish free printed or electronic
directories, private investigation firms and web-based companies, such as KnowX.com.

Intellectual Property

First Advantage owns a number of items of intellectual property, including trademarks, tradenames, copyrights, patents, domain names and unregistered
trade secrets. First Advantage also owns the US SEARCH DARWIN™ software platform, which uses advanced technology to access, assimilate, compile,
distribute and present data from public and private databases. The patent application for this technology was published on December 19, 2002 and was issued by
the Patent and Trademark Office on January 25, 2005. Based on aforementioned application, patent applications are also under review by the patent authorities in
Australia, China and India respectively for this technology. First Advantage is not dependent upon any single item of intellectual property.

Strategies for Future Growth of First Advantage

First Advantage believes that as the world becomes increasingly risky for individuals and organizations, demand for our products and services will grow.
Our primary goal is to be well positioned to capture not only a substantial portion of the existing market, but also a substantial share of the expected growth. We
intend to accomplish this goal in the following manner:

Pursue Strategic Acquisitions. We intend to continue pursuing acquisitions of companies that would enable us to enter new markets as well as increase our
share of those markets in which we are already operating. We will pursue companies with assets that will enhance our ability to fulfill orders, including
companies with proprietary databases containing information for use in our products or technology that would make order placement or product delivery more
efficient. We also expect to pursue acquisition opportunities which would enable us to enter into related product fields. Our recent acquisitions of TruStar
Solutions, Inc. and Recruiternet, Inc., both recruiting services companies, are examples of our efforts to enter into related product fields. Our recent acquisitions
of Phoenix Research Corporation and True Data Partners, allowed us to expand the breath of our high-end investigative services, such e-discovery and computer
forensics, in our Investigative and Litigation Support Services segment.
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Consolidate Operations. We intend to continue our aggressive efforts to consolidate the operations brought together in the June 2003 and September 2005
mergers and the operations of businesses we have since acquired and will acquire. This includes efforts not only to capture synergies by eliminating personnel and
systems duplication, but also to exploit cross-selling opportunities by providing a single platform on which First Advantage can offer its entire menu of services
to current and prospective customers.

International Expansion. In second quarter 2005, we acquired Quest Research Ltd., the premier provider of employment screening services in India and
East Asia. This strategic addition of Quest Research bolsters the international employment screening operations of First Advantage, situating the Company to
more effectively service multinational corporations’ demands for these services. In fourth quarter 2005, the Company opened an employment screening office in
Manila, Philippines to help serve the increasing overseas demand for screening by multinational corporations. We intend to continue to pursue opportunities to
offer our services outside the United States. Given the risks that face businesses around the world, we believe that international markets provide a substantial
opportunity for growth. We expect that by expanding our offerings to other countries we will also enhance our ability to compete in the United States for the
business of global companies.

Product Expansion. First Advantage continues to seek strategic methods of meeting unique customer and market segment needs by providing solutions
through product expansion and the ability to bundle various product offerings. Our Lender Services segment has identified the need for alternative credit products
in the non-traditional and emerging home loan markets. Additionally, our emergence into the lead generation industry will provide a conduit to bundle service
offerings with our Dealer Services segment enabling First Advantage to bring new products and business solutions to meet our market segment needs.

Employees

We employ over 3,800 people, most of which are located in the United States. Of this number, approximately 800 are employed abroad.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

You should consider carefully the following risk factors, as well as the other information contained elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. We
face risks other than those listed here, including those that are unknown to us and others of which we may be aware but, at present, consider immaterial. Because
of the following factors, as well as other variables affecting our operating results, past financial performance may not be a reliable indicator of future
performance, and historical trends should not be used to anticipate results or trends in future periods.

We are controlled by First American and as a result other stockholders have little or no influence over stockholders’ decisions.

As a result of the June 5, 2003 mergers and our acquisition of First American’s CIG and related businesses, First American owns 100% of our Class B
common stock, which have ten votes per share compared to one vote per share of our Class A common stock. Consequently, First American controls over 98% of
the total voting power of First Advantage and, therefore, First American has the right to control the outcome of any matter submitted for the vote or consent of
First Advantage’s stockholders, unless a separate class vote is required under Delaware law. First American has the voting power to control the election of our
board of directors and is able to cause an amendment of our certificate of incorporation or bylaws. First American also may be able to cause changes in our
business without seeking the approval of any other party. These changes may not be beneficial to us or in the best interest of our other stockholders. For example,
First American has the power to prevent, delay or cause a change in control and could take other actions that might be favorable to First American, but not
necessarily to other stockholders. Similarly, subject to restrictions contained in the standstill agreement entered into as part of the June 5, 2003 mergers, First
American has the voting power to exercise a controlling influence over our business and affairs and has the ability to make decisions concerning such things as:

* mergers or other business combinations;
+  purchases or sales of assets;

+  offerings of securities;

* indebtedness that we may incur; and

+  payments of any dividends.

We cannot assure you that First American’s ownership of our common stock or its relationship with us will not have a material adverse effect on our overall
business strategy or on the market price of our Class A common stock.

Under Nasdaq corporate governance rules, if a single stockholder holds more than 50% of the voting power of a company, that company is considered a
“controlled company.” A controlled company is exempt from the Nasdaq rules requiring that a majority of the company’s board of directors be independent
directors and that the compensation and nomination committees be comprised solely of independent directors. First American owns more than 50% of the voting
power of First Advantage and we may take advantage of such exemptions afforded to controlled companies.

First American could sell its controlling interest in us and therefore we could eventually be controlled by an unknown third party.

Subject to certain restrictions, First American could elect to sell all or a substantial or controlling portion of its equity interest in us to a third party without
offering to our other stockholders the opportunity to participate in the transaction. If another party acquires First American’s interest in us, that third party may be
able to control us in the same manner that First American is able to control us. A sale to a third party also may adversely affect the
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market price of our Class A common stock because the change in control may result in a change in management decisions, business policy and our attractiveness
to future investors.

We have very little operating history as an independent company.

Before June 5, 2003, we had no operating history as a separate public company. Due to this lack of operating history as a separate public company, there
can be no assurance that our business strategy will be successful on a long-term basis. Several members of our management team have never operated a stand-
alone public company.

We may need additional capital in order to finance operations or pursue acquisitions. Accordingly, we may have to obtain our own financing for operations
and perform most of our own administrative functions. There can be no assurance that we will be able to develop successfully the financial and managerial
resources and structure necessary to operate as an independent public company, or that our available financing and anticipated cash flow from operations will be
sufficient to meet all of our cash requirements.

We are dependent on information suppliers. If we are unable to manage successfully our relationships with a number of these suppliers, the quality and
availability of our services may be harmed.

We obtain some of the data used in our services from third party suppliers and government entities. If a number of suppliers are no longer able or are
unwilling to provide us with certain data, we may need to find alternative sources. If we are unable to identify and contract with suitable alternative data suppliers
and integrate these data sources into our service offerings, we could experience service disruptions, increased costs and reduced quality of our services.
Additionally, if one or more of our suppliers terminates our existing agreements, there is no assurance that we will obtain new agreements with third party
suppliers on terms favorable to us, if at all. Loss of such access or the availability of data in the future due to increased governmental regulation or otherwise
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

We may be subject to increased regulation regarding the use of personal information.

Certain data and services we provide are subject to regulation by various federal, state and local regulatory authorities. Compliance with existing federal,
state and local laws and regulations has not had a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condition to date. Nonetheless, federal, state and
local laws and regulations in the United States designed to protect the public from the misuse of personal information in the marketplace and adverse publicity or
potential litigation concerning the commercial use of such information may increasingly affect our operations and could result in substantial regulatory
compliance expense, litigation expense and a loss of revenue.

We face significant security risks related to our electronic transmission of confidential information.

We rely on encryption and other technologies to provide system security to effect secure transmission of confidential or personal information. We may
license these technologies from third parties. There is no assurance that our use of applications designed for data security, or that of third-party contractors will
effectively counter evolving security risks. A security or privacy breach could:

*  expose us to liability;
+ increase our expenses relating to resolution of these breaches;
»  deter customers from using our services; and

»  deter suppliers from doing business with us.
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Any inability to protect the security and privacy of our electronic transactions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or
results of operations.

First Advantage may be adversely affected by recent high-profile events involving data theft at a number of information services companies.

Several information services companies that are competitors of First Advantage have recently been involved in high-profile events involving data theft.
These incidents or similar data theft incidents in the future could impact First Advantage. In particular, these events could result in increased legal and regulatory
scrutiny of the industry in general and specific information services companies in particular and changes in federal, state and local laws and regulations in the
United States designed to protect the public from the misuse of personal information in the marketplace. Changes in the laws and adverse publicity or potential
litigation concerning the commercial use of such information may affect First Advantage’s operations and could result in substantial regulatory compliance
expense, litigation expense and a loss of revenue.

We could face liability based on the nature of our services and the content of the materials provided which may not be covered by insurance.

We may face potential liability from individuals, government agencies or businesses for defamation, invasion of privacy, negligence, copyright, patent or
trademark infringement and other claims based on the nature and content of the materials that appear or are used in our products or services. Insurance may not be
available to cover claims of these types or may not be adequate to cover us for all risks to which we are exposed. Any imposition of liability, particularly liability
that is not covered by insurance or is in excess of our insurance coverage, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of
operations.

We may not be able to pursue our acquisition strategy.

Our strategy is to grow through acquisitions. For example, since January 1, 2005, we completed fifteen acquisitions. We may not be able to identify
suitable acquisition candidates, obtain the capital necessary to pursue our acquisition strategy or complete acquisitions on satisfactory terms. A number of our
competitors also have adopted the strategy of expanding and diversifying through acquisitions. We likely will experience competition in our effort to execute on
our acquisition strategy, and we expect the level of competition to increase. As a result, we may be unable to continue to make acquisitions or may be forced to
pay more for the companies we are able to acquire.

The integration of companies we acquire may be difficult and may result in a failure to realize some of the anticipated potential benefits of our acquisitions.

When we acquire companies or businesses, we may not be able to integrate or manage these businesses so as to produce returns that justify the investment.
Any difficulty in successfully integrating or managing the operations of the businesses could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition,
results of operations or liquidity, and could lead to a failure to realize any anticipated synergies. Our management also will be required to dedicate substantial time
and effort to the integration of our acquisitions. These efforts could divert management’s focus and resources from other strategic opportunities and operational
matters.

Successful integration of the Credit Information Group into First Advantage is dependent on several factors, and the failure to realize the expected benefits of
the acquisition of the Credit Information Group could have an adverse effect on our operations.

First Advantage acquired the Credit Information Group from First American in September 2005, and, as a result, First Advantage significantly increased
the size of its operations and business. The integration of the Credit Information Group into the operations of First Advantage and its subsidiaries involves the
integration of
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several businesses that previously operated independently. We cannot assure you that First Advantage will be able to integrate the operations of the Credit
Information Group without encountering difficulties. Any difficulty in integrating the operations of the Credit Information Group successfully could have a
material adverse effect on the business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects of First Advantage, and could lead to a failure to realize the
anticipated benefits of the acquisition. Moreover, First Advantage’s management will be required to dedicate substantial time and effort to the integration of the
Credit Information Group. During the integration process, these efforts could divert management’s focus and resources from other strategic opportunities and
operational matters.

The continued success of the Credit Information Group is dependent on a number of factors, some of which may be beyond First Advantage’s control.

A substantial proportion of the revenue of the Credit Information Group is derived from the resale to end users of credit reports provided exclusively by the
three repositories of credit information in the United States. In certain transactions, such as those involving the resale of residential property, end users require the
Credit Information Group to provide a credit report derived from merged information supplied by all three repositories. These repositories also sell credit reports
directly to end users. There can be no assurance that a credit repository will not attempt to gain a competitive advantage over the Credit Information Group by
increasing the price it charges the Credit Information Group for credit reports or by selling credit reports to end users at a lower price than the Credit Information
Group can offer. Such practices may make the credit report products of the Credit Information Group less profitable or less attractive to end-users and, thus, may
have a material adverse effect on the results of operations or financial condition of the Credit Information Group.

In addition, a portion of the Credit Information Group’s revenues that may in the future be received under an outsourcing agreement with First American
are dependent upon the performance of RELS, LLC (“RELS”), an entity that is managed and controlled by First American, and thus are beyond the control of
First Advantage. The commercial arrangements under which RELS provides services and it derives revenues are based on agreements with RELS’ single
customer, which is the other member of RELS, whose interests may be different from and/or adverse to First Advantage. These underlying arrangements are
terminable with little or no notice. Accordingly, there can be no assurances as to revenues, if any, that may in the future be received by First Advantage under the
outsourcing agreement. The loss of such revenues could be material to First Advantage.

In connection with its acquisition of the Credit Information Group, First Advantage entered into a new services agreement under which First American
agrees to provide a number of key services to First Advantage. Under this agreement, First American and its affiliates agree to serve as the exclusive resellers of
credit reports and related services compiled by the Credit Information Group to the mortgage market. First American has agreed to provide these services for only
a limited period of time, and there is no guarantee that First American will continue to provide these services to First Advantage following the expiration of the
term of the applicable service under the amended and restated services agreement, or continue the price or other terms on which First American might be willing
to do so. In addition, since the sale of Credit Information Group reports and services in the mortgage industry will be made exclusively by First American, the
sale of these reports and services will be in accordance with the terms of the amended and restated services agreement, and there can be no assurances as to the
future amount of such sales or level of services beyond the term or in excess of the levels required under the services agreement.

Finally, demand for a substantial portion of the Credit Information Group’s products generally decreases as the number of lending transactions in which the
Credit Information Group’s products are purchased decreases. Management of the Credit Information Group has found that the number of lending transactions in
which the Credit Information Group’s products are purchased decreases when interest rates are high, the supply of funds for borrowing are limited or the United
States economy is weak. First Advantage believes that this trend could continue when these factors occur.
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We may not be able to realize the entire book value of goodwill from acquisitions.

As of December 31, 2005, we have approximately $606 million of goodwill. We have implemented the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” which requires that existing goodwill not be amortized, but instead be assessed annually
for impairment or sooner if circumstances indicate a possible impairment. We will monitor for impairment of goodwill on past and future acquisitions. In the
event that the book value of goodwill is impaired, any such impairment would be charged to earnings in the period of impairment. There can be no assurances that
future impairment of goodwill under SFAS No. 142 will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. The
goodwill valuation is performed by management.

We currently do not plan to pay dividends.

We intend to retain future earnings, if any, which may be generated from operations to help finance the growth and development of our business. As a
result, we do not anticipate paying dividends to stockholders for the foreseeable future.

Our business depends on technology that may become obsolete.

We use the US SEARCH DARWIN™ technology and other information technology to better serve our clients and reduce costs. These technologies likely
will change and may become obsolete as new technologies develop. Our future success will depend upon our ability to remain current with the rapid changes in
the technologies used in our business, to learn quickly to use new technologies as they emerge and to develop new technology-based solutions as appropriate. If
we are unable to do this, we could be at a competitive disadvantage. Our competitors may gain exclusive access to improved technology, which also could put us
at a competitive disadvantage. If we cannot adapt to these changes, our business, financial condition or results of operations may be materially effected in an
adverse manner.

Our Class A common stock has minimal liquidity due to its small public float.

Although as of December 31, 2005 there were approximately 56 million total shares of First Advantage common stock outstanding, approximately 77% are
owned by First American, approximately 6% are owned by Experian and approximately 4% are held of record by Pequot Private Equity Fund II, L.P. Currently
only approximately 13% of our issued and outstanding shares are freely transferable without restriction under the Securities Act. Accordingly, only a small
number of shares of First Advantage actually trade—between January 1, 2005 and December 31, 2005 the average daily trading volume of our Class A common
stock was approximately 56,000 shares per trading day. Consequently, our stockholders may have difficulty selling shares of our Class A common stock.

Significant stockholders may sell shares of our common stock that may cause our share price to fall.

Subject to certain restrictions, First American may at any time convert each of its shares of our Class B common stock into one share of Class A common
stock. First American or Pequot may transfer shares of our common stock in a privately-negotiated transaction or to affiliates or stockholders. Any transfers, sales
or distributions by First American or Pequot of a substantial amount of our Class A common stock in the marketplace, or to stockholders, or the market perception
that these transfers, sales or distributions could occur, could materially and adversely affect the prevailing market prices for our Class A common stock.

Conflict of interest may arise because certain of our directors and officers are also directors and officers of First American.

Certain persons associated with the Company have a continuing relationship with First American. Parker Kennedy, Chairman of the Board of First
Advantage, also serves as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of
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First American and as an executive officer and board member of certain of its affiliates. As such he may have great influence on our business decisions.

Mr. Kennedy, currently associated with First American, was asked to serve as a director and officer of First Advantage because of his knowledge of, and
experience with, our business and its operations. Mr. Kennedy owns stock, and options to acquire stock, of First American. Additionally, two of our directors,
David Chatham and D. Van Skilling serve on the First American board.

These affiliations with both First American and First Advantage could create, or appear to create, potential conflicts of interest when this director and
executive officer is faced with decisions that could have different implications for First American and First Advantage.

We are a party to a stockholders agreement that may impact corporate governance.

First Advantage, First American and Pequot have entered into a stockholders agreement pursuant to which First American has agreed to vote as many of its
shares in First Advantage as is necessary to ensure that our board of directors has no more than ten members and that a representative of Pequot who meets
certain requirements is elected a director of First Advantage or, at Pequot’s request, a board observer of First Advantage. Pequot’s right to designate a board
member or observer will continue until such time as Pequot and its affiliates’ collective ownership of First Advantage stock is less than 75% of the holdings
Pequot received in the June 5, 2003 mergers. As a result of this arrangement and First American’s dominant ownership position in First Advantage, holders of
First Advantage Class A common stock (other than Pequot) will have little or no ability to cause a director selected by such holders to be appointed to our board
of directors and, consequently, little or no ability to influence the direction or management of First Advantage.

Our results of operations may be affected by the seasonality of our business.

Historically, we have seen a decrease in our volumes in certain segments of our business, in particular our enterprise screening segment, due to the holiday
season and inclement weather that results in declines in hiring and apartment rental activity. Accordingly, there may be a decrease in earnings in the first and
fourth quarter as compared to the second and third quarter.

We cannot assure that our stock price will not fall.
The market price of our Class A common stock could be subject to significant fluctuations. Among the factors that could affect our stock price are:
*  quarterly variations in our operating results;
» changes in revenue or earnings estimates or publication of research reports by analysts;
+ failure to meet analysts’ revenue or earnings estimates;
*  speculation in the press or investment community;
*  strategic actions by us or our competitors, such as acquisitions or restructurings;
* actions by institutional stockholders;
»  general market conditions;
*  domestic and international economic factors unrelated to our performance; and

»  changes in internal controls over financial reporting.

Our capital raising efforts may dilute stockholders interests.

If we raise additional capital by issuing equity securities, the issuance will result in ownership dilution to our existing stockholders. The extent of the
dilution will vary based upon the amount of capital raised.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Available Information

We maintain a website, www.fadv.com, which includes financial and other information for investors. Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 are available through the investor relations page of our website as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it
to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). Our website and the information contained therein or connected thereto are not intended to be incorporated
into this annual report on Form 10-K, or any other filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission unless we expressly incorporate such materials.

The public can read and copy any materials the Company files with the SEC at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington
D.C. 20549. The public can obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains
an Internet site, www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the
SEC.

Item 2. Properties.

Our principal executive offices are located in approximately 21,000 square feet of leased office space in St. Petersburg, Florida. The lease expires on
November 30, 2006. Current monthly rent is approximately $42,000. On January 17, 2005, the Company entered into a lease agreement with 100 Carillon, LLC
for approximately 74,000 square feet of office space in St. Petersburg, Florida. This office space will serve as the Company’s new corporate headquarters. The
Company’s Florida based employment background screening group and investigative services group will also reside in this new office space. The lease
commenced in April 2005 and terminates One Hundred Fifty-Six (156) months from the commencement date. Current monthly rent is approximately $128,000.

First Advantage, through its subsidiaries, maintains 73 other offices in North America and abroad. These offices, all of which are leased, comprise a total of
approximately 869,000 square feet of space.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

First Advantage’s subsidiaries are involved in litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of their businesses. We do not believe that the outcome of
any pending or threatened litigation involving these entities will have a material adverse effect on our financial position, operating results or cash flows.

A subsidiary of the Company is a defendant in a class action lawsuit that is pending in federal court in New York. The plaintiffs allege that our subsidiary,
directly and through its agents, violated the Fair Credit Reporting Act, New York’s Fair Credit Reporting Act and New York’s Deceptive Practices Act by failing
to use reasonable procedures to ensure the maximum possible accuracy when issuing tenant reports. The action seeks injunctive and declaratory relief,
compensatory, punitive and statutory damages, plus attorneys’ fees and costs. The Company does not believe that the ultimate resolution of this action will have a
material adverse affect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Two subsidiaries are defendants in separate class action lawsuits that are pending in state court in California. The plaintiffs in both cases allege that our
subsidiaries, directly and through their agents, violated the California Consumer Credit Reporting Agencies Act and California Business and Professions Code by
failing to
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use reasonable procedures to ensure the maximum possible accuracy when issuing tenant reports. The actions seek injunctive relief, an accounting, restitution,

statutory damages, interest, punitive damages and attorneys’ fees and costs. The Company does not believe that the ultimate resolution of these actions will have
a material adverse affect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended December 31, 2005.
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PART I1

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholders Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities.
Class A Common Stock Market Prices and Dividends

Our Class A common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “FADV”. Our Class A common stock commenced trading on
June 6, 2003. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices of our Class A common stock as reported on the Nasdaq
National Market.

2005 2004
High Low High Low
Quarter ended March 30, $22.62 $18.79 $19.90 $ 13.85
Quarter ended June 30, $24.19 $20.17 $22.25 $ 16.47
Quarter ended September 30, $29.40 $23.19 $18.97 $ 14.99
Quarter ended December 31, $30.56 $ 25.06 $20.90 $ 15.50

The approximate number of record holders of Class A common stock on January 31, 2006 was 60.

Our Class B common stock is not listed or quoted on any exchange or quotation system. The First American Corporation and its affiliates own all of our
outstanding Class B common stock.

We have not paid any dividends on either our Class A common stock or our Class B common stock and we do not anticipate paying any dividends on our
common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain our future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business.

Remaining Available
for Future Issuance

Number of Securities Under Equity
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Compensation Plans
Exercise of Exercise Price of (Excluding Securities
Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Reflected in Column (a))
& SN ) EE— N ( B
Equity compensation plan approved by security holders ( 3,432,631 20.86 3,567,369
Equity compensation plan not approved by security holders ® 73,374 34.30

Warrants not approved by security holders ® 224,752 22.42

S Consists of the 2003 First Advantage Incentive Compensation Plan. See Note 15 to the Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
additional information.

@ Consists of shares relating to all outstanding options and warrants assumed by the Company in connection with the merger with US SEARCH.com Inc. See
Note 15 to the Company’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

In connection with the June 5, 2003 merger of the Company with the Screening Technologies division of The First American Corporation and with US
SEARCH.com Inc. we issued 16,027,285 shares of our Class B common stock to First American. We issued these shares to First American in exchange for all of
the equity of the companies comprising the Screening Technologies division of First American and certain other covenants of First American.

On September 14, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition to buy First American’s CIG Business under the terms of the master transfer agreement.
First Advantage paid for the CIG Business and related
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businesses with 29,073,170 shares of its Class B common stock and repaid, in full, the principal debt amount of $20 million by issuing 975,610 shares of its Class
B common stock.

Each share of Class B common stock is convertible into a single share of Class A common stock at the election of First American, at such time as First
American and its affiliates collectively own less than 28% of the total issued and outstanding shares of our capital stock or upon transfer of any shares of Class B
common stock to a person other than First American or an affiliate of First American (excluding distributions by First American to its shareholders in a tax-free
“spinoff” under Section 355(a) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and any subsequent transfers of such shares).

In issuing these shares we relied on exemptions from registration under Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 and Rule 506 promulgated pursuant to
the Securities Act of 1933. We believed the issuance to be exempt from registration because First American, as a corporation with total assets in excess of
$5,000,000, was an accredited investor and the transaction otherwise met the requirements for exemption from registration.

On November 1, 2005, the Company completed its purchase of the assets of the assets of Credit Data Services, Inc. (“CDS”) from Experian Affiliate
Acquisition, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Experian Information Solution, Inc. (“Experian”) and issued 321,227 shares of its Class A common stock for the
purchase of the CDS assets. In connection with the purchase of the CDS assets, the Company entered into an agreement to register the shares once the Company
had an effective registration statement on Form S-4 on file with the SEC. In February 2006, the 321,277 unregistered shares were registered under the Company’s
Form S-4 registration statement.

There were no shares purchased, since the inception of the Company, as part of a repurchase plan or program.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The Company’s operating results for the five years ended December 31, 2005 include results for the acquired entities (excluding the CIG Business) from
their respective dates of acquisition. The acquisition of the CIG Business by First Advantage is a transaction between businesses under the common control of
First American. In an acquisition of businesses under common control, the acquiring company records acquired assets and liabilities at historical costs. The
historical income statements of First Advantage for the five years ended December 31, 2005 include the operations of the CIG business at historical cost
assuming the acquisition was completed on January 1, 2001. The balance sheet data reflects the acquisition of the CIG Business assuming it was completed on
December 31, 2001.

Certain amounts for the year ended December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002, and 2001 have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation.

The results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005, include $3.2 million of nondeductible merger costs that First Advantage incurred in
connection with its acquisition of the CIG Business from First American; $2.0 million of costs incurred in connection with the relocation of the company’s
corporate headquarters and other office consolidations; and $0.6 million of costs related to the launch of the corporate branding initiative that was announced in
June 2005. These costs are included in the Company’s Corporate segment.

In the fourth quarter of 2005 the Company recorded a pre-tax gain of $9.5 million as a result of DealerTrack’s sale of 6.7 million shares of its common
stock in an initial public offering. The sale of the stock was at a price per share in excess of its carrying value. As a result of the issuance of the shares, the
Company’s ownership interest in DealerTrack decreased from 21% to 16%.
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This information is only a summary and should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and accompanying notes included in Item 8

“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”.

Income Statement Data:

Service revenue

Reimbursed government fee revenue
Total revenue

Cost of service revenue
Government fees paid

Total cost of service

Gross margin
Operating expenses
Impairment loss

Income from operations
Total interest (expense) income, net
Equity in earnings (loss) of investee
Gain on sale of investment

Income before income taxes and minority interest

Provision for income taxes
Income before minority interest
Minority interest

Net income

Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets
Long-term debt
Stockholders’ equity

Per Share Information:
Net income
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding
Basic
Diluted
Stockholders’ Equity
Total shares outstanding at December 31,

For the year ended December 31,

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

$ 596,105,000

$ 472,142,000

$ 388,776,000

$ 291,215,000

$ 239,571,000

47,644,000 44,599,000 31,585,000 27,885,000 3,350,000
643,749,000 516,741,000 420,361,000 319,100,000 242,921,000
183,976,000 147,724,000 120,890,000 85,015,000 76,021,000
47,644,000 44,599,000 31,585,000 27,885,000 3,335,000
231,620,000 192,323,000 152,475,000 112,900,000 79,356,000
412,129,000 324,418,000 267,886,000 206,200,000 163,565,000
314,126,000 252,192,000 208,526,000 157,876,000 133,375,000

— — 1,739,000 — —
98,003,000 72,226,000 57,621,000 48,324,000 30,190,000
(6,468,000) (1,955,000) 317,000 (159,000) (154,000)
1,385,000 1,782,000 (326,000) — —
9,471,000 — 13,028,000 — —
102,391,000 72,053,000 70,640,000 48,165,000 30,036,000
43,522,000 29,720,000 32,755,000 19,600,000 13,653,000
58,869,000 42,333,000 37,885,000 28,565,000 16,383,000

443,000 — — — —

$ 58,426,000 $ 42,333,000 $ 37,885000 $ 28,565,000 $ 16,383,000

$ 978,045,000 $ 603,104,000 $ 467,369,000 $ 332,348,000 $ 234,959,000

$ 182,127,000 $ 86,480,000 $ 14,499,000 $ 651,000 $ 1,159,000

$ 582,848,000 $ 418,187,000 $ 369,013,000 $ 275,188,000 $ 192,021,000

$ 110 $ 085 $ 0.79 N/A N/A

$ 109 $ 085 $ 0.79 N/A N/A
52,883,760 49,711,384 48,065,731 N/A N/A
53,593,155 50,035,519 48,202,464 N/A N/A

$ 1045 $ 835 $ 7.73 N/A N/A
55,764,676 50,083,354 47,722,915 N/A N/A
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

First Advantage Corporation (NASDAQ: FADV) (“First Advantage” or the “Company”) was created by the June 5, 2003 merger of The First American
Corporation’s Screening Technologies (“FAST”) division with US SEARCH.com Inc. (“US SEARCH?”). First Advantage provides global risk mitigation,
screening services and credit reporting to enterprise and consumer customers. The Company operates in six primary business segments; Lender Services, Data
Services, Dealer Services, Employer Services, Multifamily Services, and Investigative and Litigation Support Services. First Advantage is headquartered in St.
Petersburg, Florida, and has more than 3,800 employees in offices throughout North America and abroad.

The Lender Services segment provides specialized credit reporting services, strategic marketing solutions, anti-fraud/identity verification tools, and broker
certification services for mortgage and home equity lenders. Specialized credit reporting services includes delivering consolidated consumer credit reports to the
mortgage and home equity industries. These reports are derived from credit reports obtained from one or more of the three United States primary credit bureaus,
and may be merged or specially formatted for ease of use by lenders and other financial institutions.

The Data Services segment includes business lines that provide transportation credit reporting, motor vehicle record reporting, fleet management, supply
chain theft and damage mitigation consulting, consumer location, criminal records reselling, subprime credit reporting, lead generation and consumer credit
reporting. Products and services offered by the Data Services segment include driver history reports, vehicle registration, credit reports on cargo shippers and
brokers, individuals’ credit reports, and membership-based consumer products and services. In addition, the consumer location business allows customers to
obtain addresses, aliases, listed phone numbers, property ownership, court records and other public data through the US SEARCH Web site.

The Dealer Services segment provides specialized credit reporting services, credit automation software, and lead generation services. Specialized credit
reporting services includes delivering consolidated consumer credit reports to the automotive, recreational vehicle, marine and manufactured housing
marketplace. These reports are derived from credit reports obtained from one or more of the three United States primary credit bureaus, and may be merged or
specially formatted for ease of use by dealers and financial institutions. Dealer Services provides credit automation and loan origination software that helps
organizations meet their lending, leasing, and other credit automation needs. Designed to drive consumers into an auto dealership to buy a vehicle, Dealer
Services’ lead generation services provide advertising and other marketing, telemarketing, fulfillment and customer management solutions.

The Employer Services segment includes employment background screening, hiring management systems, occupational health services, and tax incentive
services. The Employer Services segment serves over 17,000 customers, including approximately a quarter of the Fortune 1000 companies. Products and services
relating to employment background screening include criminal records searches, employment verification, education verification, social security number
verification and credit reporting. Hiring management systems provide recruiting strategies, applicant tracking, and talent management software. Occupational
health services include drug-free workplace programs, physical examinations and employee assistance programs. Tax incentive services include services related
to the administration of employment-based and location-based tax credit and incentive programs, sales and use tax programs and fleet asset management
programs.

The Multifamily Services segment includes resident screening services. Resident screening services include criminal background and eviction records,
credit reporting, employment verification and lease performance and payment histories. Other products and services offered by this division include renters’
insurance, property performance analytics and property management software. The Multifamily Services segment serves over 20,000
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customers. The Company has a proprietary database of 34 million landlord-tenant records that include eviction court records, rental histories, payment trends and
landlord contributed data.

The Investigative and Litigation Support Services segment includes investigations and corporate litigation. Products and services offered by the
Investigative and Litigation Support Services segment include surveillance services, field interviews, computer forensics, electronic discovery, due diligence
reports and other high level investigations. These services are provided to approximately 2,000 enterprise customers nationwide, including insurance agents,
claims adjusters and risk managers, law firms and financial institutions.

First Advantage intends to continue its efforts to consolidate the operations brought together in the June 2003 mergers and the operations of businesses
since acquired. First Advantage also intends to continue pursuing acquisitions of businesses that will enable the Company to enter new markets as well as
increase existing market share. First Advantage also expects to pursue acquisition opportunities, which will enable the Company to enter into related product
fields.

First Advantage generates revenue in the form of fees from reports created from searches performed, credit reports delivered to its customers, membership
fees collected on its credit monitoring membership products, sale of software licenses, maintenance, and custom programming, and services provided. First
Advantage generally enters into agreements with customers that provide for a fixed fee per report or for services provided. For purposes of analyzing operating
results, operating margin and operating costs are compared to service revenues, excluding reimbursed government fee revenue. Elimination of inter-segment
revenue is included in corporate.

Cost of sales includes fees paid to vendors or agencies for data procurement, specimen collection, laboratory testing, and investigators’ compensation,
benefits and travel expenses.

First Advantage’s operating expenses consist primarily of compensation and benefits costs for employees, commissions, occupancy and related costs, other
selling, general and administrative expenses associated with operating its business, depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of intangible assets.
The Company’s expenses are likely to increase with increasing revenue levels.

The results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005, include $3.2 million of nondeductible merger costs that First Advantage incurred in
connection with its acquisition of the CIG Business from First American; $2.0 million of costs incurred in connection with the relocation of the company’s
corporate headquarters and other office consolidations; and $0.6 million of costs related to the launch of the corporate branding initiative that was announced in
June 2005. These costs are included in the Company’s Corporate segment.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

First Advantage’s discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations is based upon its audited consolidated financial statements, which
have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Company’s operating results for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003 include results for the acquired entities from their respective dates of acquisition. The acquisition of the CIG Business by First Advantage is a
transaction between businesses under the common control of First American. In an acquisition of businesses under common control, the acquiring company
records acquired assets and liabilities at historical costs. The historical income statements and statement of cash flows of First Advantage for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 have been restated to include operations of the CIG business at historical cost assuming the acquisition was completed on
January 1, 2003. The balance sheet at December 31, 2004 has been restated to reflect the acquisition.

First Advantage believes the following are the more critical accounting policies that impact its financial statements, some of which are based on
management’s best estimates available at the time of preparation. Other
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accounting policies also have a significant effect on First Advantage’s consolidated financial statements, and some of these policies also require the use of
estimates and assumptions. Although First Advantage believes that its estimates and assumptions are reasonable, actual results may differ.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of reports and leads is recognized at the time of delivery, as the Company has no significant ongoing obligation after delivery.
Revenue from investigative services is recognized as services are performed. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the Company includes
reimbursed government fees in revenue and in cost of service.

Revenue via the eAdvertising network of LeadClick Media, Inc. is recognized when transactions are completed as evidenced by qualifying actions by end
users of the publishers and /or advertiser on the proprietary eAdvertising network. Revenue as a result of list management services is recognized when
transactions are completed as evidenced by qualifying actions of end users. In most instances, the qualifying action that completes the earnings process is the
submission of an on-line form that generates a sales lead via the internet.

Membership fees, billed monthly to member’s accounts, are recognized in the month the fee is earned. A portion of the membership revenue received is
paid in the form of a commission to clients and is reflected in other operating expenses. Revenue earned from providing services to third party issuers of
membership based consumer products is recognized at the time the service is provided, generally on a monthly basis.

Software maintenance revenues are recognized ratably over the term of the maintenance period. Custom programming and professional consulting service
revenue is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method pursuant to Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 45 “Long-Term Construction-Type
Contracts.” To the extent that interim amounts billed to clients exceed revenue earned, deferred income is recorded. Other revenue is recognized upon completion
of the contractual obligation, which is typically evidenced by delivery of the product or performance of the service.

Allowance for Uncollectible Receivables

The allowance for all probable uncollectible receivables is based on a combination of historical data, cash payment trends, specific customer issues, write-
off trends, general economic conditions and other factors. These factors are continuously monitored by management to arrive at an estimate for the amount of
accounts receivable that may ultimately be uncollectible. In circumstances where First Advantage is aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its financial
obligations, First Advantage records a specific allowance for bad debts against amounts due to reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount it reasonably
believes will be collected. This analysis requires making significant estimates, and changes in facts and circumstances could result in material changes in the
allowance for uncollectible receivables.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

First Advantage capitalizes costs associated with developing software for internal use, which costs primarily include salaries of developers. Direct costs
incurred in the development of software are capitalized once the preliminary project stage is completed, management has committed to funding the project and
completion and use of the software for its intended purpose are probable. First Advantage ceases capitalization of development costs once the software has been
substantially completed at the date of conversion and is ready for its intended use.
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Database Development Costs

Database development costs represent expenditures associated with First Advantage’s databases of information for customer usage. The costs are
capitalized from the time technological feasibility is established until the information is ready for use.

Impairment of Intangible and Long-Lived Assets

First Advantage carries intangible and long-lived assets at cost less accumulated amortization (where applicable). Accounting standards require that assets
be written down if they become impaired. Intangible and long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset is not recoverable. At such time that an impairment in value of an intangible or long-lived asset is identified; the impairment will
be measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value. Fair value is determined by employing an expected present
value technique, which utilizes multiple cash flow scenarios that reflect the range of possible outcomes and an appropriate discount rate. In accordance with SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company completed a goodwill impairment test, for the year ending December 31, 2005, for all reporting
units. A valuation date of September 30, 2005 was used for this impairment test and was performed by management. The test determined that each reporting unit
had a fair value in excess of carrying value, therefore, no goodwill impairment was recorded.

Purchase Accounting

First Advantage completed fifteen acquisitions in 2005, fourteen acquisitions in 2004, and nine acquisitions in 2003. The purchase method of accounting
requires companies to assign values to assets and liabilities acquired based upon their fair values. In most instances, there is not a readily defined or listed market
price for individual assets and liabilities acquired in connection with a business, including intangible assets. The determination of fair value for assets and
liabilities in many instances requires a high degree of estimation. The valuation of intangibles assets, in particular, is very subjective. First Advantage generally
uses internal cash flow models and, in certain instances, third party valuations in estimating fair values. The use of different valuation techniques and assumptions
can change the amounts and useful lives assigned to the assets and liabilities acquired, including goodwill and other intangible assets and related amortization
expense. Amounts allocated to certain assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2005 are based on preliminary estimates of fair value and may be revised in 2006.
The Company does not anticipate that revisions to the amounts allocated to acquired assets and liabilities, if any, will be significant to the Company’s financial
statements.

On September 14, 2005, the Company completed the acquisition to buy First American’s CIG Business under the terms of the master transfer agreement.
First Advantage paid for the CIG Business and related businesses with 29,073,170 shares of its Class B common stock. The acquisition of CIG by First
Advantage is a transaction between businesses under common control of First American. As such, First Advantage has recorded the assets and liabilities of CIG at
historical cost. Historical income statements of First Advantage have been restated to include results of operations of CIG at historical costs.

Stock Based Compensation

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123R is a revision of FASB Statement 123
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and its related implementation
guidance. The Statement focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions.
SFAS No. 123R requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date
fair value of the award (with limited exceptions). The cost will be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide
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services in exchange for the award. In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission approved a new rule that amended the effective date of SFAS 123R,
whereby the Company will be required to adopt this standard no later than January 1, 2006. Based on options outstanding at February 28, 2006, the Company
estimates the effects of the FAS 123R will reduce diluted earnings per share by $0.13 to $0.15 in 2006 depending on the timing of issuance of the underlying
securities and the deductibility of the stock-based compensation expense for financial reporting purposes.
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The following is a summary of the operating results by the Company’s business segments for the three years ended December 31, 2005.

2005
Service revenue
Reimbursed government fee revenue
Total revenue
Cost of service revenue
Government fees paid
Total cost of service
Gross margin
Salaries and benefits
Facilities and telecommunications
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Income (loss) from operations

Operating margin percentage

2004
Service revenue
Reimbursed government fee revenue
Total revenue
Cost of service revenue
Government fees paid
Total cost of service
Gross margin
Salaries and benefits
Facilities and telecommunications
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Income (loss) from operations

Operating margin percentage

Invest/
Litigation
Lender Data Dealer Employer Multifamily Support
Services Services Services Services Services Services Corporate Total
$ 168,327,000 $ 91,699,000 $ 98,357,000 $ 143,839,000 $ 63,254,000 $ 34,580,000 $ (3,951,000) $ 596,105,000
— 39,432,000 — 10,556,000 — — (2,344,000) 47,644,000
168,327,000 131,131,000 98,357,000 154,395,000 63,254,000 34,580,000 (6,295,000) 643,749,000
55,094,000 16,756,000 50,218,000 46,654,000 6,232,000 12,980,000 (3,958,000) 183,976,000
— 39,432,000 — 10,556,000 — — (2,344,000) 47,644,000
55,094,000 56,188,000 50,218,000 57,210,000 6,232,000 12,980,000 (6,302,000) 231,620,000
113,233,000 74,943,000 48,139,000 97,185,000 57,022,000 21,600,000 7,000 412,129,000
49,815,000 15,776,000 14,603,000 52,005,000 22,589,000 12,284,000 13,855,000 180,927,000
7,146,000 2,507,000 1,283,000 6,259,000 3,318,000 1,204,000 4,026,000 25,743,000
1,341,000 20,404,000 16,305,000 20,309,000 10,884,000 4,123,000 6,485,000 79,851,000
6,726,000 6,796,000 2,389,000 5,311,000 4,109,000 1,882,000 392,000 27,605,000
$ 48,205,000 $ 29,460,000 $ 13,559,000 $ 13,301,000 $ 16,122,000 $ 2,107,000 $ (24,751,000) $ 98,003,000
28.6% 32.1% 13.8% 9.2% 25.5% 6.1% N/A 16.4%
Invest/
Litigation
Lender Data Dealer Employer Multifamily Support
Services Services Services Services Services Services Corporate Total
$ 135,201,000 $ 74,905,000 $ 69,842,000 $ 115,461,000 $ 54,135,000 $ 25,714,000 $ (3,116,000) $ 472,142,000
— 34,452,000 — 10,147,000 — — — 44,599,000
135,201,000 109,357,000 69,842,000 125,608,000 54,135,000 25,714,000 (3,116,000) 516,741,000
39,920,000 16,556,000 32,512,000 42,823,000 6,027,000 13,002,000 (3,116,000) 147,724,000
— 34,452,000 — 10,147,000 — — — 44,599,000
39,920,000 51,008,000 32,512,000 52,970,000 6,027,000 13,002,000 (3,116,000) 192,323,000
95,281,000 58,349,000 37,330,000 72,638,000 48,108,000 12,712,000 — 324,418,000
43,726,000 11,759,000 11,538,000 39,323,000 20,049,000 7,492,000 9,093,000 142,980,000
6,759,000 2,284,000 1,484,000 5,721,000 2,865,000 870,000 697,000 20,680,000
(207,000) 24,597,000 14,558,000 14,104,000 8,982,000 2,266,000 1,048,000 65,348,000
6,946,000 5,346,000 1,586,000 4,110,000 3,940,000 1,176,000 80,000 23,184,000
$ 38,057,000 $ 14,363,000 $ 8,164,000 $ 9,380,000 $ 12,272,000 $ 908,000 $(10,918,000) $ 72,226,000
28.1% 19.2% 11.7% 8.1% 22.7% 3.5% N/A 15.3%
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Invest/

Litigation
Lender Data Dealer Employer Multifamily Support
Services Services Services Services Services Services Corporate Total
2003
Service revenue $151,220,000 $56,479,000 $66,912,000 $66,187,000 $42,085,000 $8,065,000 $(2,172,000)  $388,776,000
Reimbursed government fee revenue — 27,201,000 — 4,384,000 — — — 31,585,000
Total revenue 151,220,000 83,680,000 66,912,000 70,571,000 42,085,000 8,065,000 (2,172,000) 420,361,000
Cost of service revenue 42,741,000 10,918,000 29,206,000 30,256,000 5,178,000 4,763,000 (2,172,000) 120,890,000
Government fees paid — 27,201,000 — 4,384,000 — — — 31,585,000
Total cost of service 42,741,000 38,119,000 29,206,000 34,640,000 5,178,000 4,763,000 (2,172,000) 152,475,000
Gross margin 108,479,000 45,561,000 37,706,000 35,931,000 36,907,000 3,302,000 — 267,886,000
Salaries and benefits 43,664,000 10,981,000 12,193,000 22,271,000 17,920,000 1,733,000 3,938,000 112,700,000
Facilities and telecommunications 7,878,000 1,791,000 2,280,000 3,735,000 2,135,000 322,000 247,000 18,388,000
Other operating expenses 6,142,000 21,492,000 11,439,000 7,498,000 7,147,000 531,000 2,470,000 56,719,000
Depreciation and amortization 8,825,000 3,590,000 1,815,000 4,896,000 3,112,000 213,000 7,000 22,458,000
Income (loss) from operations $ 41,970,000 $ 7,707,000 $ 9,979,000 $(2,469,000) $ 6,593,000 $ 503,000 $(6,662,000) $ 57,621,000
Operating margin percentage 27.8% 13.6% 14.9% -3.7% 15.7% 6.2% N/A 14.8%

Lender Services Segment
2005 Compared to 2004

Total service revenue was $168.3 million in 2005, an increase of $33.1 million compared to 2004 service revenue of $135.2 million. The acquisition of
mortgage credit reporting businesses during the first and fourth quarters of 2005 accounted for $16.2 million of the increase, and an increase in transactions and
an expansion of products and services accounted for the additional growth in service revenue.

Cost of service revenue was $55.1 million in 2005, an increase of $15.2 million compared to cost of service revenue of $39.9 million in 2004. The
acquisition of mortgage credit reporting businesses during the first and fourth quarters of 2005 accounted for $6.7 million of the increase, and an increase in
transactions, the expansion of products and services, and the addition of a surcharge by the three credit bureaus related to free credit reports to consumers
pursuant to the FACT Act were the primary reasons for the additional increase in the cost of service revenue.

Salaries and benefits increased by $6.1 million. Salaries and benefits were 29.6% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 32.3% of service revenue in
2004. Salaries and benefits expense increased $3.8 million due to the acquisitions, and the percentage decrease is primarily due to operational efficiencies based
on the increased transaction volume and related increase in revenue.

Facilities and telecommunications increased by $.4 million. Facilities and telecommunications were 4.2% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 5.0% of
service revenue in 2004. The percentage decrease is primarily due to a decrease in rent expense and the increase in revenues. The decrease in rent expense is due
to the 2004 closure of one office and the downsizing and relocation of another office.
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Other operating expenses increased by $1.5 million and were 0.8% of service revenue in 2005 compared to (0.2)% in 2004. The increase is primarily due to
the acquisitions which increased other operating expenses by $2.2 million, offset by non-recurring professional fees incurred during 2004.

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $.2 million. Depreciation and amortization was 4.0% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 5.1% in 2004.
The decrease is primarily due to assets becoming fully depreciated, offset by an increase in amortization expense related to acquisitions.

The operating margin percentage increased from 28.1% to 28.6% primarily due to the operational efficiencies gained from the higher revenues within the
existing businesses which were partially offset by the impact of the two acquisitions which have lower operating margins.

Income from operations was $48.2 million in 2005, compared to income from operations of $38.1 million in 2004. Operating income from existing
businesses increased by $8.8 million.

2004 Compared to 2003

Total service revenue was $135.2 million in 2004, a decrease of $16.0 million compared to 2003 service revenue of $151.2 million. A decrease in
transactions and a decrease in servicing income related to a joint venture between a division of First American and a nationwide mortgage lender accounted for
the decrease in service revenue.

Cost of service revenue was $39.9 million in 2004, a decrease of $2.8 million compared to cost of service revenue of $42.7 million in 2003. A decrease in
transactions accounted for the decrease in the cost of service revenue.

Salaries and benefits were flat when comparing 2004 and 2003. Salaries and benefits were 32.3% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 28.9% of service
revenue in 2003. The percentage increase is primarily due to the impact of the decreased transaction volume and related decrease in revenue.

Facilities and telecommunications decreased by $1.1 million. Facilities and telecommunications were 5.0% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 5.2%
of service revenue in 2003. The percentage decrease is primarily due to a reduction in telecommunication expense as a result of re-negotiated telecommunication
contracts, due to a decrease in rent expense, and the impact of the decrease in revenues. The decrease in rent expense is due to the 2004 closure of one office and
the downsizing and relocation of another office.

Other operating expenses decreased by $6.3 million. The change in 2004 is primarily due to a decrease in temporary and contract labor due to labor and
operational efficiencies, and due to an increase in the amounts allocated to the Dealer Services Segment for shared services costs on a per unit basis related to
processing an increased number of auto related transactions on the credit platform.

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $1.9 million. Depreciation and amortization was 5.1% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 5.8% in 2003.
The decrease is primarily due to assets becoming fully depreciated.

Income from operations was $38.1 million in 2004, compared to $42.0 million in 2003.

Data Services Segment
2005 Compared to 2004

Total service revenue was $91.7 million in 2005, an increase of $16.8 million compared to 2004 service revenue of $74.9 million. The increase is primarily
due to acquisitions in the fourth quarters of 2004 and 2005.
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Acquired companies accounted for $16.3 million of the increase. Revenue increased by 0.7%, at businesses owned in 2004. The organic growth is related to an
increase in products and services offered by our subprime credit division.

Cost of service revenue was $16.8 million in 2005, an increase of $.2 million compared to cost of service revenue of $16.6 million in 2004.

Salaries and benefits increased by $4.0 million. Salaries and benefits were 17.2% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 15.7% in 2004. The increase is
primarily due to acquisitions and overall increase in employees.

Facilities and telecommunications were flat when comparing 2005 and 2004. Facilities and telecommunications were 2.7% of service revenue in 2005
compared to 3.0% of service revenue in 2004.

Other operating expenses decreased by $4.2 million and were 22.3% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 32.8% in 2004. The decrease in other
operating expenses is primarily due to non-recurring 2004 expenses at the consumer credit division. The Company incurred, during the second quarter of 2004,
$3.0 million to settle a lawsuit and $2.1 million to write-off of the carrying value of the related limited liability company’s stock. This decrease is offset by
increased operating expenses due to acquisitions.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $1.5 million due to an increase in amortization of intangible assets as a result of the acquisitions.

Income from operations was $29.5 million in 2005 compared to $14.4 million in 2004. The increase is due to acquisitions in 2005 and late 2004 offset by
non-recurring expenses recognized in 2004.

2004 Compared to 2003

Total service revenue was $74.9 million in 2004, an increase of $18.4 million compared to 2003 service revenue of $56.5 million. The increase is primarily
related to the acquisitions in late 2003 and throughout 2004. In this segment there were two companies acquired in the second half of 2003 and four companies in
2004. In addition, there was a $6.3 million and a $3.0 million increase in service revenue in the consumer credit division and the sub-prime credit division,
respectively. The increase in consumer service revenue is due to a substantial increase in the services performed related to servicing membership based consumer
products. The increase in sub-prime service revenue is related to expanded market share and an increase in products and services.

Salaries and benefits increased $.8 million when comparing 2004 and 2003. Salaries and benefits were 15.7% of service revenue in 2004 compared to
19.4% of service revenue in 2003. The percentage decrease is primarily due to efficiencies obtained offset by increases due to the acquisitions.

Facilities and telecommunications increased by $.5 million. Facilities and telecommunications were 3.0% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 3.2% of
service revenue in 2003.

Other operating expenses increased by $3.1 million. The increase is primarily due to non-recurring 2004 expenses at our consumer credit division. The
Company incurred, during the second quarter of 2004, $3.0 million to settle a lawsuit and $2.1 million to write-off of the carrying value of the related limited
liability company’s stock, offset by increases in operating cost related to increased revenues and acquisitions.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $1.8 million. Depreciation and amortization was 7.1% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 6.4% in 2003.
Intangible assets increased in 2004 due to acquisitions made in the second half of 2003 and during 2004.

The operating margin percentage increased from 13.6% to 19.2% primarily due to operating efficiencies and also due to the acquisitions, which generate
higher operating margin levels than the existing companies. The increase is offset by the $5.1 million of 2004 non-recurring expenses for the membership
business.
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Income from operations was $14.4 million in 2004, compared to $7.7 million in 2003.

Dealer Services
2005 Compared to 2004

Total service revenue was $98.4 million in 2005, an increase of $28.6 million compared to 2004 service revenue of $69.8 million. The acquisition of an
automotive lead generation business during the second quarter of 2005 accounted for $18.4 million of the increase, and an increase in market share accounted for
the additional growth in service revenue.

Cost of service revenue was $50.2 million in 2005, an increase of $17.7 million compared to cost of service revenue of $32.5 million in 2004. The
acquisition of the automotive lead generation business during the second quarter of 2005 accounted for $11.0 million of the increase, and an increase in
transactions and the addition of a surcharge by the three credit bureaus related to free credit reports to consumers pursuant to the FACT Act were the primary
reasons for the additional increase in the cost of service revenue and related decrease in the gross margin percentage.

Salaries and benefits increased by $3.1 million. Salaries and benefits were 14.8% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 16.5% in 2004. Salaries and
benefits expense increased $4.0 million due to the acquisitions, and the percentage decrease is primarily due to operational efficiencies based on the increase in
revenue and a reduction in employees at the credit automation software subsidiary.

Facilities and telecommunications were flat when comparing 2005 and 2004. Facilities and telecommunications were 1.3% of service revenue in 2005
compared to 2.1% of service revenue in 2004. The percentage decrease is primarily due to expense reductions related to the relocation of certain facilities and
based on the increase in revenues.

Other operating expenses increased by $1.7 million and were 16.6% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 20.8% in 2004. The increase in 2005 was due
to the acquisition, and the percentage decrease is due to operational efficiencies realized on the increase in revenues.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $.8 million due to an increase in amortization of intangible assets as a result of the acquisition.

The operating margin percentage increased from 11.7% to 13.8% primarily due to operational efficiencies achieved in 2005 based on the growth in
transactions and related increase in revenue.

Income from operations was $13.6 million for the year ended December 2005 compared to $8.2 million in 2004. Operating income from existing
businesses increased by $5.2 million.

2004 Compared to 2003

Total service revenue was $69.8 million in 2004, an increase of $2.9 million compared to 2003 service revenue of $66.9 million. An increase in automotive
related credit reports delivered accounted for the growth in service revenue. This was partially offset by the disposition of CMSI’s Credit Online subsidiary during
March 2003 which decreased service revenue in 2004 by $2.4 million when compared to the year ended December 2003.

Cost of service revenue was $32.5 million in 2004, an increase of $3.3 million compared to cost of service revenue of $29.2 million in 2003. An increase in
automotive related credit transactions and an increase in certain components of credit data charges imposed by the three credit bureaus were the primary reasons
for the increase
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in the cost of service revenue. This was partially offset by a reduction in the cost of service revenue by $2.2 million as a result of the disposition of CMSI’s Credit
Online subsidiary during March 2003.

Salaries and benefits decreased $.7 million when comparing 2004 and 2003. Salaries and benefits were 16.5% of service revenue in 2004 compared to
18.2% of service revenue in 2003. The percentage decrease is primarily due to operational efficiencies based on the increase in revenue and a reduction in
employees at the credit automation software subsidiary.

Facilities and telecommunications decreased by $.8 million. Facilities and telecommunications were 2.1% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 3.4% of
service revenue in 2003. The percentage decrease is primarily due to expense reductions related to the relocation of certain facilities and based on the increase in
revenues.

Other operating expenses increased by $3.1 million and were 20.8% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 17.1% in 2003. The increase in 2004 was due
primarily to an increase in the amounts allocated to the Dealer Services Segment from the Lender Services Segment for shared services on a per unit basis related
to processing an increased number of auto related transactions on the credit platform.

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $.2 million. Depreciation and amortization was 2.3% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 2.7% in 2003.
The decrease is due primarily to a decrease in the depreciation of leasehold improvements as a result of the relocation of certain facilities.

The operating margin percentage decreased from 14.9% to 11.7%, primarily due to an increase in shared services costs and a decrease in the gross profit
margin due to higher credit charges.

Income from operations was $8.2 million for the year ended December 2004 compared to $10.0 million in 2003.

Employer Services
2005 Compared to 2004

Total service revenue was $143.8 million in 2005, an increase of $28.3 million compared to 2004 service revenue of $115.5 million. The increase is
primarily due to acquisitions of the tax incentive and background screening companies in this segment. Acquisitions accounted for $24.2 million of the revenue
growth on a year-to-date basis.

Salaries and benefits increased by $12.7 million. Salaries and benefits were 36.2% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 34.1% in 2004. The increase is
primarily due to the increase of employees due to the acquisitions.

Facilities and telecommunications increased by $.5 million. Facilities and telecommunications were 4.4% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 5.0% of
service revenue in 2004. The percentage decrease is primarily due to expense reductions related to the relocation of certain facilities and based on the increase in
revenues.

Other operating expenses increased by $6.2 million and were 14.1% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 12.2% in 2004. The increase is due to
increased travel, leased equipment expense, and the duplication of staff and temporary employee costs required during the transition to lower cost facilities.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $1.2 million due to an increase in amortization of intangible assets at the newly acquired entities. This is offset
by some property plant and equipment and intangibles becoming fully depreciated or amortized.
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The operating margin increased from 8.1% to 9.2% primarily due to the higher operating margins in the acquired businesses and negotiated discounts to
reduce expense through consolidation and increased volumes.

Income from operations was $13.3 million in 2005 compared to $9.4 million in 2004.

2004 Compared to 2003

Total service revenue was $115.5 million in 2004, an increase of $49.3 million compared to 2003 service revenue of $66.2 million. The increase is
primarily due to acquisitions. Seven businesses were acquired in 2003 and five were acquired in 2004. The tax incentive service division significantly contributed
to the increase in revenue due to the acquisitions in this division.

Salaries and benefits increased $17.1 million, primarily due to acquisitions. Salaries and benefits were 34.1% of service revenue in 2004 compared to
33.6% of service revenue in 2003.

Facilities and telecommunications increased by $2.0 million. Facilities and telecommunications were 5.0% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 5.6% of
service revenue in 2003.

Other operating expenses increased by $6.6 million and were 12.2% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 11.3% in 2003.

Depreciation and amortization decreased by $.8 million. Depreciation and amortization was 3.6% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 7.4% in 2003.
An impairment charge of $1.7 million was recorded in 2003 for capitalized software in connection with the integration of operations in the Employer Services
segment.

The operating margin increased from an operating loss of (3.7)% to 8.1% primarily due to the higher operating margins in the acquired businesses and
negotiated discounts to reduce expense through consolidation and increased volumes.

Income from operations was $9.4 million in 2004, compared to a loss from operations of $2.5 million in 2003.

Multifamily Services
2005 Compared to 2004

Total service revenue was $63.3 million in 2005, an increase of $9.2 million compared to 2004 service revenue of $54.1 million. The segment’s organic
growth was approximately 15%. This growth rate, excluding acquisitions, is due to expanded market share and an increase in products and services. In addition,
two businesses were acquired in 2005 and three businesses were acquired in 2004.

Salaries and benefits increased by $2.5 million. Salaries and benefits were 35.7% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 37.0% in 2004. This expense
increase reflects increased personnel from acquisitions. The percentage decrease is due to management’s continued efforts to increase efficiencies and increased
service revenues.

Facilities and telecommunications increased by $.5 million. Facilities and telecommunications were 5.2% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 5.3% of
service revenue in 2004.

Other operating expenses increased by $1.9 million and were 17.2% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 16.6% in 2004.
Depreciation and amortization increased by $.2 million due to an increase in amortization of intangible assets as a result of the acquisitions.
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The operating margin increased from 22.7% to 25.5% primarily as a result of efficiencies realized from consolidating operations and leveraging vendor
relationships.

Income from operations was $16.1 million in 2005 compared to $12.3 million in 2004.

2004 Compared to 2003

Total service revenue was $54.1 million in 2004, an increase of $12.0 million compared to 2003 service revenue of $42.1 million. Three businesses were
acquired in 2004 and accounted for approximately $7.0 million of the increase.

Salaries and benefits increased $2.1 million when comparing 2004 and 2003. Salaries and benefits were 37.0% of service revenue in 2004 compared to
42.6% of service revenue in 2003. This expense increase reflects the increased personnel from acquisitions. The percentage decrease is due to management’s
continued efforts to increase efficiencies.

Facilities and telecommunications increased by $.7 million, primarily due to acquisitions. Facilities and telecommunications were 5.3% of service revenue
in 2004 compared to 5.1% of service revenue in 2003.

Other operating expenses increased by $1.8 million and were 16.6% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 17.0% in 2003. The expense increase is
primarily related to acquisitions.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $.8 million. Depreciation and amortization was 7.3% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 7.4% in 2003.
The expense increase is due to an increase in amortization of intangible assets as a result of the acquisitions.

The operating margin percentage of service revenue increased from 15.7% to 22.7% primarily as a result of efficiencies realized from consolidating
operations and leveraging vendor relationships.

Income from operations was $12.3 million in 2004, compared $6.6 million in 2003.
Investigative and Litigation Support Services

2005 Compared to 2004

Total service revenue was $34.6 million in 2005, an increase of $8.9 million compared to 2004 service revenue of $25.7 million. The increase is due to
acquisitions in the segment.

Salaries and benefits increased by $4.8 million. Salaries and benefits were 35.5% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 29.1% in 2004. The increase is
primarily due to the increase in employees related to acquisitions.

Facilities and telecommunications increased by $.3 million. Facilities and telecommunications were 3.5% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 3.4% of
service revenue in 2004.

Other operating expenses increased by $1.9 million and were 11.9% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 8.8% in 2004. The increase is due to
acquisitions in the segment.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $.7 million due to an increase in amortization of intangible assets as a result of the acquisitions.

The operating margin percentage of service revenue increased from 3.5% to 6.1% primarily as a result of acquired companies which have higher operating
margins.

Income from operations was $2.1 million in 2005 compared to $.9 million in 2004.
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2004 Compared to 2003

Total service revenue was $25.7 million in 2004, an increase of $17.6 million compared to 2003 service revenue of $8.1 million. In September 2003, the
Company acquired an investigative service business to enter the Investigative and Litigation support market. Companies acquired in 2004 accounted for
approximately $5.9 million of the revenue increase.

Salaries and benefits increased $5.8 million when comparing 2004 and 2003. Salaries and benefits were 29.1% of service revenue in 2004 compared to
21.5% of service revenue in 2003. The increase is primarily due to the increase in employees related to acquisitions.

Facilities and telecommunications increased by $.5 million, primarily due to acquisitions. Facilities and telecommunications were 3.4% of service revenue
in 2004 compared to 4.0% of service revenue in 2003.

Other operating expenses increased by $1.7 million and were 8.8% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 6.6% in 2003.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $1.0 million. Depreciation and amortization was 4.6% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 2.6% in 2003.
The increase is mainly due to the amortization of customer lists and non-compete agreements related to the acquisitions.

The operating margin percentage of service revenue decreased from 6.2% to 3.5%.

Income from operations was $.9 million in 2004, compared to $.5 million in 2003.

Corporate
2005 Compared to 2004

Corporate costs and expenses primarily represent compensation and benefits for senior management, administrative staff, technology personnel and their
related expenses in addition to an administrative fee paid to First American. Additional costs were incurred for the increased level of professional fees for audit
related services, Sarbanes Oxley compliance and increased staffing in the technology and legal departments to support corporate growth. The corporate expenses
were $24.8 million in 2005 compared to expenses of $10.9 million in 2004. The current year increase was impacted by the following one-time expenses; (a) $3.2
million related to CIG acquisition costs; (b) $2.0 million related to relocation expenses; and (c) $.6 million related to launching the Company’s branding initiative.

2004 Compared to 2003

Corporate costs and expenses represent primarily compensation and benefits for senior management, administrative staff, technology personnel and their
related expenses in addition to an administrative fee paid to First American. Additional costs were incurred for the increased level of professional fees for audit
related services, Sarbanes Oxley compliance and increased staffing in the technology and legal departments to support corporate growth. The corporate expenses
were $10.9 million in 2004 compared to expenses of $6.7 million in 2003.

Consolidated Results
2005 Compared to 2004

Consolidated service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2005 was $596.1 million, an increase of $124.0 million from 2004. Acquisitions accounted
for $86.1 million of the increase. The consolidated organic revenue growth for existing businesses was $37.9 million, representing an 8.6% increase.
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Salaries and benefits were 30.4% of service revenue in 2005 and 30.3% in 2004.

Facilities and telecommunications were $25.7 million in 2005 compared to $20.7 million in 2004. Facilities and telecommunications were 4.3% of service
revenue in 2005 compared to 4.4% of service revenue in 2004.

Other operating expenses were 13.4% of service revenue in 2005 compared to 13.8% in 2004.
Depreciation and amortization increased by $4.4 million due to an increase in amortization of intangible assets as a result of fifteen acquisitions.

The consolidated operating margin was 16.4% for 2005 compared to 15.3% for 2004. The increase is due to the change in the mix of operating margins
related to the acquired businesses, and efficiencies realized from consolidating operations and leveraging vendor relationships and internal databases, along with
the offset of the 2004 non-recurring expense of $5.1 million related to the membership services and the 2005 non-recurring expenses of $5.8 million related to
acquisition costs, relocations, consolidations and branding.

Income from operations was $98.0 million in 2005 compared to $72.2 million in 2004. The increase of $25.8 million is comprised of an increase in
operating income of $10.1 million in the Lender Services segment, an increase in operating income of $15.1 million in the Data Services segment, an increase in
operating income of $5.4 million in the Dealer Services segment, an increase in operating income of $3.9 million in the Employer Services segment, an increase
in operating income of $3.9 million in the Multifamily segment, and an increase in operating income of $1.2 million in the Investigative and Litigation Support
Services segment. An increase in Corporate expenses of $13.8 million offset the combined increase of $39.6 million in operating income at the business
segments.

2004 Compared to 2003
Consolidated service revenue for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $472.1 million, an increase of $83.3 million from 2003. Acquisitions accounted
for $76.4 million of the increase.
Salaries and benefits were 30.3% of service revenue in 2004 and 29.0% in 2003.

Other operating expenses were 13.8% of service revenue in 2004 compared to 14.6% in 2003.

Depreciation and amortization increased by $.7 million due to an increase in amortization of intangible assets as a result of acquisitions. An impairment
charge of $1.7 million was recorded in 2003 for capitalized software in connection with the integration of operations in the Employer Services segment.

The consolidated operating margin was 15.3% for 2004 compared to 14.8% for 2003.

Income from operations was $72.2 million in 2004 compared to $57.6 million in 2003. The increase of $14.6 million is comprised of an increase in
operating income of $6.7 million in the Data Services segment, an increase in operating income of $11.8 million in the Employer Services segment, an increase in
operating income of $5.7 million in the Multifamily segment, an increase in operating income of $.4 million in the Investigative and Litigation Support Services
segment, offset by a decrease in operating income of $3.9 million in the Lender Services segment, and a decrease in operating income of $1.8 million in the
Dealer Services segment. An increase in Corporate expenses of $4.3 million offset the combined increase of $18.9 million in operating income at the business
segments.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company’s primary source of liquidity is cash flow from operations and amounts available under credit lines the Company has established with a bank
syndication. Prior to the June 5, 2003 merger with US SEARCH,
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contributions from First American were also a primary source of liquidity. As of December 31, 2005, cash and cash equivalents were $28.4 million.

Cash provided by operating activities was $72.3 million; $59.0 million; and $37.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively.

Cash provided from operating activities increased by $13.3 million from 2004 to 2005. The increase was derived from 2005 net income of $58.4 million
compared to $42.3 million in 2004, an increase in depreciation and amortization of $4.4 million, a decrease in deferred taxes of $1.8 million, and a net cash
outflow of $2.4 million due to changes in operating assets and liabilities compared to 2004, offset by a gain on investment of $9.5 million. The primary changes
in operating assets and liabilities were due to increases in prepaid expenses, and accounts receivable and decreases in accounts payable and income taxes. These
are offset by an increase in accrued compensation and other liabilities and a decrease in goodwill, intangibles, and other assets.

Cash provided from operating activities increased by $21.1 million from 2003 to 2004 while net income was $42.3 million in 2004 compared to $37.9
million in 2003. The increase in cash provided from operating activities was due to an increase in depreciation and amortization of $2.5 million, a decrease in
deferred taxes of $5.6 million and a net cash inflow of $18.2 million due to changes in operating assets and liabilities compared to 2003, offset by a 2002 gain on
investment of $13.0 million. The primary changes in operating assets and liabilities were mainly due to a decrease in goodwill, intangibles and other assets and an
increase in accounts payable, offset by an increase in accounts receivable.

Cash used in investing activities was $154.1 million, $64.8 million, and $19.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
In 2005, cash in the amount of $153.6 million was used for acquisitions compared to $58.4 million in 2004 and $10.9 million in 2003. Purchases of property and
equipment were $19.1 million in 2005 compared to $8.2 million in 2004 and $2.9 million in 2003. Database development costs were $3.4 million in 2005
compared to $2.9 million in 2004 and $2.3 million in 2003.

Cash provided by financing activities was $100.2 million and $7.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Cash used in
financing activities was $18.9 million in 2003. In 2005, proceeds from bank financing were $180.1 million. First American contributed $45.0 million to
LeadClick LLC (70% owned by First Advantage and 30% owned by First American), a consolidated subsidiary of First Advantage, which acquired 75% of
LeadClick Media, Inc. in 2005. Repayment of debt was $106.9 million in 2005, $36.2 million in 2004, and $4.7 million in 2003. In 2005 the CIG Business made
a cash distribution to First American of $25.7 million prior to the 2005 acquisition and $32.3 million in 2004 and $35.7 million in 2003. Prior to the June 2003
merger with US SEARCH, cash contributions from First American were $5.3 million in 2003.

At December 31, 2005, the Company had available lines of credit of $89.5 million.

First Advantage also leases certain office facilities, automobiles and equipment under operating leases, which, for the most part, are renewable. The
majority of these leases also provide that First Advantage will pay insurance and applicable taxes.

On January 17, 2005, the Company entered into a thirteen-year facilities lease agreement with 100 Carillon, LLC for approximately 74,000 square feet of
office space in St. Petersburg, Florida. This office space will serve as the Company’s new corporate headquarters. The Company’s Florida based employment
background screening group and investigative services group also reside in this new office space. Aggregate minimum lease payments are $22.8 million over the
term of the lease, which commenced on April 1, 2005. The monthly lease payment was prorated based on partial occupancy until August 1, 2005.

On September 29, 2005, the Company executed of a revolving credit agreement, with a bank syndication (the “Credit Agreement”). Borrowings available
under the Credit Agreement total up to $225 million. The Credit
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Agreement includes a $10 million sub-facility for the issuance of letters of credit and up to a $5 million swing loan facility. The credit facility maturity date is
September 28, 2010. The proceeds from this Credit Agreement were used to payoff the previously noted Loan Agreement and Line of Credit.

The interest rate is based on one of two options consisting of 1) the higher of Federal Funds Rate plus /2% and Bank of America’s announced “Prime
Rate” or 2) a “LIBOR based rate”. The “LIBOR based rate” is based on LIBOR plus a margin that can range from 1.125% to 1.75% (based on progressive levels
of leverage). First Advantage management must elect the LIBOR based option up to three days prior to its utilization.

The agreement contains usual and customary negative covenants for transactions of this type including but not limited to those regarding liens, investments,
creation of indebtedness and fundamental changes, as well as financial covenants of consolidated leverage ratio and minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage
ratio.

The agreement contains usual and customary provisions regarding acceleration. In the event of a default by the Company under the credit facility, the
lenders will have no further obligation to make loans or issue letters of credit and in some cases may, at the option of a majority of the lenders, declare all
amounts owed by the Company immediately due and payable and require the Company to provide collateral, and in some cases any amounts owed by the
Company under the credit facility will automatically become immediately due and payable. There was $135.5 million outstanding at December 31, 2005.

On April 27, 2004, the Company entered into a Promissory Note with First American. The loan evidenced by the Promissory Note is a $20 million
uncollateralized revolving loan, with interest payable monthly. The Promissory Note was subordinated to the bank Loan Agreement and Line of Credit and bears
interest at the rate payable under the $20 million bank Loan Agreement plus 0.5% per annum. On September 14, 2005, in connection with the consummation of
the acquisition of the CIG Business and related businesses from First American, First Advantage repaid in full the principal amount of $20 million, by issuing
975,610 shares of First Advantage’s Class B common stock.

In July 2003, First Advantage entered into a Promissory Note with The First American Corporation. The loan evidenced by the Promissory Note is a $10
million uncollateralized revolving loan with interest payable monthly. The principal balance of the Promissory Note is payable on July 31, 2006. The Promissory
Note is subordinated to the $45 million bank debt and bears interest at the rate payable under the $45 million bank debt plus 0.5% per annum. There was $10
million outstanding at December 31, 2005.

At December 31, 2005, the Company was in compliance with the financial covenants of its loan agreement.

First Advantage filed an amended Registration Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the issuance of up to 5,000,000 shares of our
Class A common stock, par value $.001 per share, from time to time as full or partial consideration for the acquisition of businesses, assets or securities of other
business entities. The Registration Statement was declared effective on January 9, 2006. As of February 28, 2006, 356,305 shares were issued.

First Advantage filed a Registration Statement with the Securities and Exchange Commission for the issuance of up to 2,000,000 shares of our Class A
common stock, par value $.001 per share, from time to time for general corporate purposes. The Registration Statement was declared effective on January 3,
2005. No shares have been issued as of December 31, 2005.

In 2005, 2004 and 2003, First Advantage sought to acquire other businesses as part of its growth strategy. The Company will continue to evaluate
acquisitions in order to achieve economies of scale, expand market share and enter new markets. The extent of future acquisitions, however, is dependent upon
the availability of capital and liquidity to fund such acquisitions.
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While uncertainties within the Company’s industry exist, management is not aware of any trends or events likely to have a material adverse effect on
liquidity or the accompanying financial statements. The Company believes that, based on current levels of operations and anticipated growth, the Company’s cash
flow from operations, together with available sources of liquidity, will be sufficient to fund operations, anticipated capital expenditures, make required payments
of principal and interest on debt, and satisfy other long-term contractual commitments. However, any material adverse change in our operating results from our
business plan or acceleration of existing debt obligations or in the amount of investment in acquisitions, technology or products could require the Company to
seek other funding alternatives including raising additional capital.

The following is a schedule of long-term contractual commitments as of December 31, 2005 over the periods in which they are expected to be paid.

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total
Advertising commitments $ 525,000 $ — % — 3 — 3 — 3 — 3 525,000
Minimum contract purchase commitments 2,461,000 2,483,000 1,576,000 195,000 195,000 — 6,910,000
Operating leases 17,985,000 14,842,000 11,584,000 9,594,000 7,446,000 23,396,000 84,847,000
Debt and capital leases 38,444,000 18,406,000 14,961,000 6,400,000 142,360,000 — 220,571,000
Interest payments related to debt () 11,402,000 9,832,000 9,049,000 8,354,000 5,986,000 — 44,623,000
Total $70,817,000 $ 45,563,000 $ 37,170,000 $ 24,543,000 $ 155,987,000 $ 23,396,000 $ 357,476,000

™ Estimated interest payments are calculated assuming current interest rates over minimum maturity periods specified in debt agreements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The Company considered the provision of Financial Reporting Release No. 48 “Disclosure of Accounting Policies for Derivative Financial Instruments and
Derivative Commodity Instruments, and Disclosure of Quantitative and Qualitative Information about Market Risk Inherent In Derivative Financial Instruments,
Other Financial Instruments and Derivative Commodity Instruments.” The Company had no holdings of derivative financial instruments at December 31, 2005
and our total liabilities as of December 31, 2005 consist primarily of notes payable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities. Although the Company has
operations in certain foreign countries, these operations, in the aggregate, are not material to the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

The Company’s fixed rate debt consists primarily of uncollateralized term notes. In addition, the Company has $177.9 million of variable rate debt
outstanding. A 1% increase in interest rates, due to increased rates nationwide, would result in $1,779,000 additional annual interest payments which could be
significant to the Company. The table below provides information about certain liabilities that are sensitive to changes in interest rates and presents cash flows
and the related weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates.

Fair Market
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total Value
Debt
Fixed Rate $ 22,257,000 $ 12,128,000 $ 8,330,000 $ — $ — $ 42,715,000 $ 41,422,000
Average Interest Rate 4.65% 4.98% 5.09% 0.00% 0.00% 4.83%
Variable Rate $ 16,187,000 $ 6,278,000 $ 6,631,000 $ 6,400,000 $ 142,360,000 $ 177,856,000 $ 177,856,000
Average Interest Rate 6.49% 7.25% 7.25% 7.25% 5.66% 5.90%
Total $ 38,444,000 $ 18,406,000 $ 14,961,000 $ 6,400,000 $ 142,360,000 $ 220,571,000 $ 219,278,000
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of First Advantage Corporation:

We have completed an integrated audit of First Advantage Corporation’s 2005 consolidated financial statements and of its internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2005 and audits of its 2004 and 2003 consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below.

Consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(1) present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of First Advantage Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition,
in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the index appearing under Item 15(a)(2) presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on
our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements under the heading “Basis of Presentation,” the Company has accounted for the acquisition
of the Credit Information Group as a transfer of assets under common control.

Internal control over financial reporting

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessment, included in Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing under
Item 9A, that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), is fairly stated, in all material
respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2005 based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the COSO. The Company’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express opinions on management’s assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial reporting includes obtaining an
understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinions.

41



A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Tampa, Florida
March 16, 2006
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Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of $4,918,000 and $3,444,000 in 2005 and 2004,

respectively)

Notes receivable

Income taxes receivable

Due from affiliates

Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Database development costs, net
Investment in equity investee
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income
Income taxes payable
Current portion of long-term debt and capital leases
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt and capital leases, net of current portion
Deferred income tax liability
Other liabilities
Minority interest
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $.001 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding

Class A common stock, $.001 par value; 125,000,000 and 75,000,000 shares authorized; 9,688,610 and 7,226,801
shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively

Class B common stock, $.001 par value; 75,000,000 shares authorized; 46,076,066 and 42,856,553 shares issued

First Advantage Corporation

Consolidated Balance Sheets

and outstanding as of December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2004, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total stockholders’ equity
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

December 31,

2005 2004
$ 28,380,000 $ 9,996,000
107,410,000 67,981,000
— 4,000,000

395,000 —

2,756,000 553,000
6,240,000 3,217,000
145,181,000 85,747,000
56,684,000 44,966,000
605,884,000 380,596,000
111,274,000 43,596,000
10,127,000 9,688,000
45,710,000 34,854,000
3,185,000 3,657,000

$ 978,045,000

$ 603,104,000

$ 16,660,000 $ 14,726,000
27,448,000 19,918,000
42,441,000 22,415,000

6,809,000 4,558,000
— 3,179,000
38,444,000 24,326,000
131,802,000 89,122,000
182,127,000 86,480,000
27,213,000 8,454,000
6,343,000 861,000
47,712,000 —
395,197,000 184,917,000
10,000 7,000
46,000 43,000
430,026,000 298,243,000
152,405,000 119,636,000
361,000 258,000
582,848,000 418,187,000

$ 978,045,000

$ 603,104,000




First Advantage Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Service revenue
Reimbursed government fee revenue
Total revenue
Cost of service revenue
Government fees paid
Total cost of service
Gross margin
Salaries and benefits
Facilities and telecommunications
Other operating expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment loss
Total operating expenses
Income from operations
Interest (expense) income:
Interest expense
Interest income
Total interest (expense) income, net
Equity in earnings (loss) of investee
Gain on sale of investment
Income before income taxes and minority interest
Provision for income taxes
Income before minority interest
Minority interest
Net income
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Comprehensive income
Per share amounts:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2005 2004 2003
$ 596,105,000 472,142,000  $ 388,776,000
47,644,000 44,599,000 31,585,000
643,749,000 516,741,000 420,361,000
183,976,000 147,724,000 120,890,000
47,644,000 44,599,000 31,585,000
231,620,000 192,323,000 152,475,000
412,129,000 324,418,000 267,886,000
180,927,000 142,980,000 112,700,000
25,743,000 20,680,000 18,388,000
79,851,000 65,348,000 56,719,000
27,605,000 23,184,000 20,719,000
— — 1,739,000
314,126,000 252,192,000 210,265,000
98,003,000 72,226,000 57,621,000
(6,618,000) (2,724,000) (540,000)
150,000 769,000 857,000
(6,468,000) (1,955,000) 317,000
1,385,000 1,782,000 (326,000)
9,471,000 — 13,028,000
102,391,000 72,053,000 70,640,000
43,522,000 29,720,000 32,755,000
58,869,000 42,333,000 37,885,000
443,000 — —
58,426,000 42,333,000 37,885,000
103,000 258,000 —
$ 58,529,000 42,591,000  $ 37,885,000
$ 1.10 085 $ 0.79
$ 1.09 085 % 0.79
52,883,760 49,711,384 48,065,731
53,593,155 50,035,519 48,202,464



First Advantage Corporation

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Accumulated
Common Common Additional Other
Stock Stock Paid-in Comprehensive Retained
Shares Amount Capital Income Earnings Total
Balance at January 1, 2003, as previously reported 1 $ — $ 141,492,000 $ — $ 3,880,000 $ 145,372,000
CIG acquisition 26,829,267 27,000 26,248,000 103,541,000 129,816,000
Balance at January 1, 2003, combined 26,829,268 27,000 167,740,000 — 107,421,000 275,188,000
Distribution to First American from CIG prior to merger — $ — $ — $ — $  (35,690,000) (35,690,000)
Net income for 2003 — — — — 37,885,000 37,885,000
Contribution from First American—Operations — — 10,696,000 — — 10,696,000
Contribution from First American—Cash — — 5,269,000 — — 5,269,000
Class A Shares issued in connection with US SEARCH.com acquisition 3,974,761 4,000 60,147,000 — — 60,151,000
Class B Shares issued to First American in connection with US SEARCH.com
acquisition 16,027,285 16,000 — — — 16,000
Class A Shares issued in connection with acquisitions 864,082 1,000 15,149,000 — — 15,150,000
Class A Shares issued in connection with option, benefit and savings plans 27,519 — 348,000 — — 348,000
Balance at December 31, 2003 47,722,915 $ 48,000 $ 259,349,000 $ — $ 109,616,000 $ 369,013,000
Distribution to First American from CIG prior to merger — — — — (32,313,000) (32,313,000)
Net income for 2004 — — — — 42,333,000 42,333,000
Class A Shares issued in connection with acquisitions 1,361,622 1,000 23,179,000 — — 23,180,000
Class A Shares issued in connection with warrants and option, benefit and savings
plans 243,767 — 3,704,000 — — 3,704,000
Class A Shares issued in connection with convertible debt 755,050 1,000 12,011,000 — — 12,012,000
Foreign currency translation — — — 258,000 — 258,000
Balance at December 31, 2004 50,083,354 $ 50,000 $ 298,243,000 $ 258,000 $ 119,636,000 $ 418,187,000
Distribution to First American from CIG prior to merger — — — — (25,657,000) (25,657,000)
Contribution from First American for CIG liabilities prior to merger — — 4,608,000 — — 4,608,000
Net income for 2005 — — — — 58,426,000 58,426,000
Class A Shares issued in connection with acquisitions 2,015,206 2,000 51,231,000 — — 51,233,000
Class A Shares issued in connection with warrants and option, benefit and savings
plans 446,603 1,000 8,504,000 — — 8,505,000
Class B Shares issued in connection with acquisitions 2,243,903 2,000 46,553,000 — — 46,555,000
Class B Shares issued in connection with conversion of debt 975,610 1,000 19,999,000 — — 20,000,000
Tax benefit related to stock options — — 888,000 — — 888,000
Foreign currency translation — — — 103,000 — 103,000
Balance at December 31, 2005 55,764,676 ~$ 56,000 $ 430,026,000 $ 361,000 $ 152,405,000 $ 582,848,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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First Advantage Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income tax
Equity in earnings (loss) of investee
Gain on investment
Minority interests in net income
Impairment loss
Change in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Goodwill, intangibles and other assets
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income
Due to affiliates
Net change in income tax accounts
Accrued compensation and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Database development costs
Purchases of property and equipment
Notes receivable
Cash paid for acquisitions
Cash balance of companies acquired
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt
Repayment of long-term debt
Cash contributions from First American to LeadClick, LLC (Note 3)
Cash contributions from First American
Proceeds from Class A Shares issued in connection with stock option plan and employee
stock purchase plan
Distribution to First American from CIG prior to the merger
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Effect of exchange rates on cash
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2005 2004 2003
$ 58,426,000 $ 42,333,000 $ 37,885,000
27,605,000 23,184,000 20,719,000
(1,837,000) (5,646,000) 7,557,000
(1,385,000) (1,782,000) 326,000
(9,471,000) — (13,028,000)
443,000 — —
— — 1,739,000
(12,346,000) (9,562,000) (3,779,000)
(2,589,000) 1,391,000 (15,000)
18,165,000 12,148,000 (3,918,000)
(6,162,000) 4,004,000 (7,607,000)
(530,000) (2,973,000) (6,395,000)
(1,307,000) 769,000 1,884,000
3,378,000 (2,683,000) 69,000
(4,624,000) 2,230,000 (2,112,000)
4,540,000 (4,442,000) 4,569,000
72,306,000 58,971,000 37,894,000
(3,434,000) (2,906,000) (2,276,000)
(19,102,000) (8,187,000) (2,924,000)
4,000,000 1,000,000 (5,000,000)
(153,605,000) (58,455,000) (10,930,000)
18,060,000 3,721,000 1,967,000
(154,081,000) (64,827,000) (19,163,000)
180,081,000 72,000,000 15,824,000
(106,870,000) (36,224,000) (4,648,000)
45,000,000 — —
— — 5,269,000
7,603,000 3,704,000 348,000
(25,657,000) (32,313,000) (35,690,000)
100,157,000 7,167,000 (18,897,000)
2,000 62,000 —
18,384,000 1,373,000 (166,000)
9,996,000 8,623,000 8,789,000
$ 28,380,000 $ 9,996,000 $ 8,623,000




First Advantage Corporation

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows—(Continued)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes
Cash received for tax refund

Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Operations contributed by First American

Common stock issued in connection with US SEARCH.com acquisition
Class A Shares issued in connection with acquisitions

Class A Shares issued in connection with convertible debt

Notes issued in connection with acquisitions

Class A Shares issued for benefit plans

Class B Shares issued in connection with acquisitions

Class B Shares issued for converted debt

Gain on sale of investment

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2005 2004 2003
$ 4,769,000 $ 2,117,000 $ 214,000
$ 8,803,000 $ 224,000 $ 63,000
$ — $ 2,146,000 $ —
$ — $ — $ 10,696,000
$ — $ — $ 60,167,000
$ 51,233,000 $ 23,180,000 $ 15,150,000
$ = $ 12,012,000 $ =
$ 56,191,000 $ 58,970,000 $ 11,250,000
$ 902,000 $ — $ —
$ 46,555,000 $ — $ —
$ 20,000,000 $ = $ =
$ 9,471,000 $ — $ 13,028,000




First Advantage Corporation

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

1. Organization and Nature of Business

In June 2003, First Advantage Corporation (the “Company”), a newly formed holding company, acquired US SEARCH.com and six operating subsidiaries
of The First American Corporation (“First American”) that formerly comprised its First American Screening Technologies (“FAST”) division. The operating
subsidiaries included HireCheck, Inc., First American Registry, Inc., Substance Abuse Management, Inc., American Driving Records, Inc., Employee Health
Programs, Inc., and SafeRent, Inc.

In September 2005, the Company completed the acquisition to buy First American’s Credit Information Group (“CIG”) Business. First Advantage paid for
the CIG Business and related businesses with 29,073,170 shares of its Class B common stock. First American owns approximately 77% of the shares of capital
stock of the Company as of December 31, 2005. The Class B common stock owned by First American is entitled to ten votes per share on all matters presented to
the stockholders for vote.

The Company is a global risk mitigation and business solutions provider. The Company operates in six primary business segments; Lender Services, Data
Services, Dealer Services, Employer Services, Multifamily Services, and Investigative and Litigation Support Services.

The Lender Services segment provides consumer credit reporting solutions for mortgage and home equity needs.

The Data Services segment includes business lines that provide transportation credit reporting, motor vehicle record reporting, fleet management, supply
chain theft and damage mitigation consulting, consumer location, criminal records reselling, subprime credit reporting, consumer credit reporting and lead
generation services.

The Dealer Services segment serves the automotive dealer marketplace by delivering consolidated consumer credit reports, credit automation software and
automotive lead generation services.

The Employer Services segment includes employment background screening, hiring management solutions, occupational health services, and tax incentive
services.

The Multifamily Services segment includes resident screening services, property management software and renters insurance services.

The Investigative and Litigation Support Services segment provides corporate and litigation investigative services.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The Company’s operating results for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003 include results for acquired entities (excluding the CIG Business)
from their respective dates of acquisition. The acquisition of the CIG Business by First Advantage is a transaction between businesses under the common control
of First American. In an acquisition of businesses under common control, the acquiring company records acquired assets and liabilities at historical costs. The
historical consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows of First Advantage for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004
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First Advantage Corporation
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

and 2003 include the operations of the CIG business at historical cost assuming the acquisition was completed on January 1, 2003. The balance sheet at
December 31, 2004 reflects the acquisition of the CIG Business assuming it was completed on December 31, 2004.

Certain amounts for the year ended December 31, 2004, and 2003 have been reclassified to conform to the 2005 presentation.

The results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2005, include $3.2 million of nondeductible merger costs that First Advantage incurred in
connection with its acquisition of the CIG Business from First American; $2.0 million of costs incurred in connection with the relocation of the company’s
corporate headquarters and other office consolidations; and $0.6 million of costs related to the launch of the corporate branding initiative that was announced in
June 2005. These costs are included in the Company’s Corporate segment.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2005 include the accounts of the Company and all majority owned subsidiaries. All
significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the statements. Actual results could differ from the estimates and assumptions used.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of the Company’s financial instruments at December 31, 2005 and 2004, which includes cash and cash equivalents and accounts
receivable, approximates fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments. The Company considers the variable rate debt to be representative of
current market rates and, accordingly, estimates that the recorded amounts approximate fair market value. Fair value estimates of the fixed rate debt were
determined using discounted cash flow methods with a discount rate of 7.25% and 5.25%, which is the rate that similar instruments could be negotiated at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments, none of which are held for trading purposes, are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,380,000 $ 28,380,000 $ 9,996,000 $ 9,996,000
Accounts receivable 107,410,000 107,410,000 67,981,000 67,981,000
Notes receivable — — 4,000,000 4,000,000
Long-term debt and capital leases (220,571,000) (219,464,000) (110,806,000) (106,625,000)

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash equivalents to be all short-term investments that have an initial maturity of 90 days or less.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are due from companies in a broad range of industries located throughout the United States and abroad. Credit is extended based on an
evaluation of the customer’s financial condition, and generally, collateral is not required.

The allowance for all probable uncollectible receivables is based on a combination of historical data, cash payment trends, specific customer issues, write-
off trends, general economic conditions and other factors. These factors are continuously monitored by management to arrive at the estimate for the amount of
accounts receivable that may be ultimately uncollectible. In circumstances where the Company is aware of a specific customer’s inability to meet its financial
obligations, the Company records a specific allowance for doubtful accounts against amounts due, to reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount it
reasonably believes will be collected. Management believes that the allowance at December 31, 2005 and 2004 is reasonably stated.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Property and equipment includes computer software acquired and developed for internal use. Software
development costs are capitalized from the time technological feasibility is established until the software is ready for use.

The Company follows Statement of Position (“SOP”) 98-1, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use.”
SOP 98-1 requires the Company to capitalize interest costs incurred and certain payroll-related costs of employees directly associated with developing software in
addition to incremental payments to third parties. The Company capitalized interest of approximately $371,000 and $187,000 in the years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Depreciation on leasehold improvements is computed on the straight-line method over the shorter of the life of the asset, or the lease term, ranging from 3
to 13 years. Depreciation on data processing equipment and furniture and equipment is computed using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives
ranging from 3 to 10 years. Capitalized software costs are amortized using the straight-line method over estimated useful lives of 3 to 7 years.

Database Development Costs

Database development costs represent the cost to develop the proprietary databases of information for customer usage. The costs are capitalized from the
time technological feasibility is established until the information is ready for use. These costs are amortized using the straight-line method over estimated useful
life of 7 to 10 years.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Other intangibles, which include customer lists and covenants not to compete, are amortized over their estimated useful lives, ranging from 2 to 20 years.
The Company regularly evaluates the amortization period assigned to each intangible asset to ensure that there have not been any events or circumstances that
warrant revised estimates of useful lives. The Company has selected September 30 as the annual valuation date to test goodwill for impairment. The valuation
was performed by the company in 2005 and by a third party in 2004.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

The Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” impairment testing process includes two
phases. The first phase (Test 1) compares the fair value of each reporting unit to its book value. The fair value of each reporting unit is determined by using
discounted cash flow analysis, market approach valuations and third-party valuation advisors. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its book value, the
goodwill is not considered impaired and no additional analysis is required. However, if the book value is greater than the fair value, a second test (Test 2) must be
completed to determine if the fair value of the goodwill exceeds the book value of the goodwill. The fair value of the goodwill is determined by discounted cash
flow analysis and appraised values.

Purchase Accounting

The purchase method of accounting requires companies to assign values to assets and liabilities acquired based upon their fair values. In most instances
there is not a readily defined or listed market price for individual assets and liabilities acquired in connection with a business, including intangible assets. The
determination of fair value for assets and liabilities in many instances requires a high degree of estimation. The valuation of intangible assets, in particular is very
subjective. The Company generally uses internal cash flow models and in certain instances third party valuations in estimating fair values. The use of different
valuation techniques and assumptions could change the amounts and useful lives assigned to the assets and liabilities acquired, including goodwill and other
intangible assets and related amortization expense. Amounts allocated to certain assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2005 are based on preliminary estimates
of fair value and may be revised in 2006. The Company does not anticipate that revisions to the amounts allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities, if any, will
be significant to the Company’s financial statements.

Income Taxes

Taxes are based on income for financial reporting purposes and include deferred taxes applicable to temporary differences between the financial statement
carrying amount and the tax basis of certain of the Company’s assets and liabilities. The tax provision has been calculated on a separate return basis. The
Company’s income tax returns are filed either on a separate company basis or as part of the consolidated income tax returns of First American, depending on
when an operating subsidiary was acquired and the rules of the jurisdiction. The Company has a tax sharing arrangement with First American whereby the
Company will fund any tax liabilities due related to its operations and First American will repay any refunds received related to the Company’s operations. Such
items are accrued in the year to which they relate.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

With respect to long-lived assets to be held and used, an asset (or group of assets) will be considered impaired when the expected undiscounted cash flows
from use and/or disposition are less than the asset’s carrying value. The amount of any impairment charge will be based on the difference between the carrying
and fair value of the asset. The determination of fair values considers quoted market prices, if available, and prices for similar assets and the results of other
valuation techniques.

For assets to be sold, an asset (or group of assets) that meets the criteria established by SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment of Disposal of Long
Lived Assets,” for classification of assets held for sale will be carried at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.
Revenue Recognition

Revenue from the sale of reports and leads is recognized at the time of delivery, as the Company has no significant ongoing obligation after delivery.
Revenue from investigative services is recognized as services are
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

performed. In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, the Company includes reimbursed government fees in revenue and in cost of service.

Revenue via the eAdvertising network of LeadClick Media is recognized when transactions are completed as evidenced by qualifying actions by end users
of the publishers and /or advertiser on the proprietary eAdvertising network. Revenue as a result of list management services is recognized when transactions are
completed as evidenced by qualifying actions of end users. In most instances, the qualifying action that completes the earnings process is the submission of an on-
line form that generates a sales lead via the internet.

Membership fees, billed monthly to member’s accounts, are recognized in the month the fee is earned. A portion of the membership revenue received is
paid in the form of a commission to clients and is reflected in other operating expenses. Revenue earned from providing services to third party issuers of
membership based consumer products is recognized at the time the service is provided, generally on a monthly basis.

Software maintenance revenues are recognized ratably over the term of the maintenance period. Custom programming and professional consulting service
revenue is recognized using the percentage-of-completion method pursuant to Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 45 “Long-Term Construction-Type
Contracts.” To the extent that interim amounts billed to clients exceed revenue earned, deferred income is recorded. Other revenue is recognized upon completion
of the contractual obligation, which is typically evidenced by delivery of the product or performance of the service.

Comprehensive Income

SFAS No. 130, “Reporting Comprehensive Income”, governs the financial statement presentation of changes in stockholders’ equity resulting from non-
owner sources. Comprehensive income includes all changes in equity except those resulting from investments by owners and distribution to owners.

Stock Based Compensation

The Company adopted SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure,” as of January 1, 2003 with respect to the
disclosure requirements. The Company has elected to continue accounting for stock-based compensation using the intrinsic value method prescribed in
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. The fair value for each option
grant is estimated using the Black-Scholes pricing model assuming a dividend yield of 0%; expected volatility of 25%; a weighted-average risk free interest rate
of 4.52% and an expected life of six years. If the Company had elected or was required to apply the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock Based Compensation,” to stock-based employee compensation, net income and net income per share would have been reduced to the pro
forma amounts indicated in the following table.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Net income, as reported $ 58,426,000 $ 42,333,000 $ 37,885,000

Less: stock based compensation expense, net of tax 6,440,000 4,262,000 1,904,000

Pro forma net income $ 51,986,000 $ 38,071,000 $ 35,981,000
Earnings per share:

Basic, as reported $ 1.10 $ 0.85 $ 0.79

Basic, pro forma $ 0.98 $ 0.77 $ 0.75

Diluted, as reported $ 1.09 $ 0.85 $ 0.79

Diluted, pro forma $ 0.97 $ 0.76 $ 0.75
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Continued)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R (Revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment.” SFAS No. 123R is a revision of FASB Statement 123
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25 “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and its related implementation
guidance. The Statement focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions.
SFAS No. 123R requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments based on the grant-date
fair value of the award (with limited exceptions). The cost will be recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide services in
exchange for the award. In April 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission approved a new rule that amended the effective date of SFAS 123R, whereby the
Company will be required to adopt this standard no later than January 1, 2006. Based on options outstanding at February 28, 2006, the Company estimates the
effects of the FAS 123R will reduce diluted earnings per share by $0.13 to $0.15 in 2006 depending on the timing of issuance of the underlying securities and the
deductibility of the stock-based compensation expense for financial reporting purposes.

3. Acquisitions

During 2005, the Company acquired fifteen businesses. Each of the Company’s segments included an acquired company. The preliminary allocation of the
purchase price is based upon estimates of the assets and liabilities acquired in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.”

The aggregate purchase price of these acquisitions is as follows:

Cash $ 153,605,000
Notes payable 56,191,000
Stock (2,002,428 Class A shares issued) 51,000,000
Stock (2,243,903 Class B shares issued) 46,555,000
Accrued payments 8,152,000
Purchase price $ 315,503,000

The cash paid includes $45.0 million contributed by First American to LeadClick Holding Company, LLC (70% owned by First Advantage and 30%
owned by First American), a consolidated subsidiary of First Advantage, which acquired 75% of LeadClick Media, Inc. in 2005. In connection with the
acquisition of LeadClick Media Inc. (“LeadClick”), the Company and First American are obligated to purchase the remaining 25% interest in LeadClick ratably
over the next three years unless the period is extended by mutual agreement of the parties. The purchase price for the remaining 25% interest is based upon a
multiple of LeadClick’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization.

The allocation of the aggregate purchase price of the acquisitions in 2005 is as follows:

Goodwill $ 241,697,000
Identifiable intangible assets 75,757,000
Net assets acquired (1,951,000)

$ 315,503,000
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, by operating segment, for the year ended December 31, 2005 are as follows:

Recognition of

Balance at Adjustments to pre-acquisition Balance at
December 31, net assets tax loss December 31,
2004 Acquisitions acquired carryforwards 2005
Lender Services $ 27,710,000 $ 19,372,000 $ — $ — $ 47,082,000
Data Services 116,013,000 120,114,000 778,000 (17,639,000) 219,266,000
Dealer Services 34,727,000 22,166,000 — — 56,893,000
Employer Services 123,834,000 51,735,000 354,000 4,191,000 180,114,000
Multifamily Services 44,740,000 6,351,000 2,507,000 (7,063,000) 46,535,000
Investigative and Litigation Support Services 33,572,000 21,959,000 75,000 388,000 55,994,000
Consolidated $ 380,596,000 $ 241,697,000 $ 3,714,000 $ (20,123,0000 $ 605,884,000

In June 2003, the Company acquired US SEARCH.com for a total purchase price of approximately $60.2 million. The purchase price was based upon an
estimate of the fair value of the net assets of the FAST division contributed by First American to the Company in the mergers and estimated direct costs of the
mergers. The allocation of the purchase price is based upon estimates of the assets and liabilities acquired in accordance with SFAS No. 141, “Business
Combinations”. In connection with the acquisition of US SEARCH.com, approximately $2.4 million of severance costs were accrued and included in net assets
acquired in the allocation of the purchase price. In 2003, approximately $1.2 million of these severance costs were paid and charged to the accrual. The balance of
the severance costs were paid in 2004. A full determination of the purchase price allocation was made concurrent with the effective acquisition date based on
internal cash flow models and third party valuation analysis of tangible and intangible assets.

The allocation of the purchase price of the acquisition is as follows:

Fair value of FAST Division net assets $ 173,000,000
Fair value of 20% of the FAST Division net assets contributed $ 34,600,000
Net cash infusion from First American 295,000
Merger related closing costs 6,772,000
Cash loaned to US SEARCH.com by First American 1,448,000
Total consideration paid by First American for 80% of US SEARCH.com $ 43,115,000
Value of 100% of US SEARCH.com $ 53,894,000
Value of vested options and outstanding warrants of US SEARCH.com 6,273,000
Purchase price $ 60,167,000

In applying the purchase method of accounting, management undertook a comprehensive review of the acquired entities to ensure that all identifiable assets
and liabilities are properly recorded at their fair value. The acquisition of these companies was based on management’s consideration of past and expected future
performance as well as the potential strategic fit with the long-term goals of First Advantage. The expected long-term growth, market position and expected
synergies to be generated by inclusion of these companies are the primary factors which gave rise to an acquisition price which resulted in the recognition of
goodwill.

In determining fair value, the Company utilizes a variety of valuation techniques including discounted cash flow analysis and outside appraisals to the
extent necessary given materiality and complexity. All excess
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purchase price is appropriately recorded as goodwill. The useful lives for all assets recorded in purchase accounting are based on market conditions, contractual
terms and other appropriate factors.

Unaudited pro forma results of operations assuming all of the acquisitions were consummated on January 1, 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004

Total revenue $ 740,182,000 $ 661,809,000
Net income $ 63,847,000 $ 43,255,000
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 1.17 $ 0.80

Diluted $ 1.15 $ 0.80
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:

Basic 54,632,524 54,230,980

Diluted 55,341,918 54,387,442

4. Notes Receivable

Notes receivable consist of uncollateralized loan participation interests issued by financial institutions with respect to certain single payment, short term
loans made by these financial institutions to their customers. The interest rate of the notes was 19.4% at December 31, 2004. The notes and related accrued
interest at December 31, 2004 were paid in full during January 2005.

5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company’s reporting units for purposes of allocating goodwill and testing for impairment are the following: (i) lender services; (ii) data services
(consumer location, subprime lending, transportation, consumer credit, fleet management) ; (iii) dealer services; (iv) employer services; (v) multifamily services;
and (vi) investigative and litigation services.

In accordance with the adoption of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” the Company completed the transitional goodwill impairment
test for all reporting units and determined that each reporting unit had a fair value in excess of carrying value, therefore, no goodwill impairment was recorded.
The annual test for impairment was again performed in 2005, by management (using the September 30 valuation date) and each reporting unit had a fair value in
excess of carrying value and no goodwill impairment was recorded.

Goodwill and other intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004

Goodwill $ 605,884,000 $ 380,596,000
Intangible assets:

Customer lists $ 90,437,000 $ 46,234,000

Noncompete agreements 13,530,000 3,356,000

Trade names 21,596,000 784,000

Other 129,000 129,000

125,692,000 50,503,000

Less accumulated amortization (14,418,000) (6,907,000)

Intangible assets, net $ 111,274,000 $ 43,596,000
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Amortization expense of other intangible assets was approximately $8,104,000, $3,942,000 and $1,804,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004
and 2003, respectively. Amortization expense relating to intangible asset balances as of December 31, 2005 is expected to be as follows over the next five years:

Year ending December 31,

2006 $ 15,762,000
2007 15,239,000
2008 14,043,000
2009 13,165,000
2010 12,909,000
Thereafter 40,156,000

$ 111,274,000

The change in the carrying amount of intangible assets is as follows for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Intangible
Assets
Balance, at December 31, 2004 $ 43,596,000
Acquisitions 75,757,000
Adjustments 25,000
Amortization (8,104,000)
Balance, at December 31, 2005 $ 111,274,000
6. Property and Equipment
As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, property and equipment is as follows:
2005 2004
Furniture and equipment $ 16,131,000 $ 12,588,000
Data processing equipment 22,174,000 19,213,000
Capitalized software 92,479,000 78,760,000
Leasehold improvements 7,944,000 4,330,000
138,728,000 114,891,000
Less accumulated depreciation (82,044,000) (69,925,000)
Property and equipment, net $ 56,684,000 $ 44,966,000

Depreciation and amortization expense was approximately $16,506,000, $16,745,000 and $16,804,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

An impairment charge of approximately $1.7 million was recorded in 2003 for capitalized software that was in the process of being replaced by a new
operating system for the Employer Services segment. The carrying value of the software was reduced to $524,000, its estimated fair value. There is no active
market for this proprietary software. The fair value was determined by management and is based upon estimated replacement cost and the remaining useful life of
the software.
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The capitalized cost of equipment under capital leases, which is included in data processing equipment in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets,
was as follows at December 31:

2005 2004

Property and equipment $ 931,000 $ 619,000
Less accumulated depreciation (915,000) (578,000)

$ 16,000 $ 41,000

7. Database Development Costs
Database development costs for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004
Eviction data $ 13,862,000 $ 11,892,000
Criminal data 3,035,000 2,094,000
Sub-prime credit data 5,962,000 5,512,000
Less accumulated amortization (12,732,000) (9,810,000)
Database development costs $ 10,127,000 $ 9,688,000

Amortization expense relating to database development costs was approximately $2,995,000, $2,497,000 and $2,111,000 for the years ended December 31,
2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

8. Investment in Equity Investee

During March 2003, the Company exchanged its equity interest in a subsidiary of First American Credit Management Solutions, Inc. (“CMSI”), a division
of the CIG Business, for a 21% equity interest in DealerTrack, a leading provider of transformational business processes for the auto finance industry. The
transaction was accounted for at fair value determined by a third party and resulted in a gain of $13,028,000. The investment in DealerTrack is accounted for on
the equity method. An investor using the equity method initially records an investment at cost. Subsequently, the carrying amount of the investment is increased
to reflect the investor’s share of income of the investee and is reduced to reflect the investor’s share of losses of the investee or dividends received from the
investee. The cost of the investment exceeded the Company’s ownership interest in the equity of DealerTrack by approximately $28.6 million at the date of
acquisition and the excess purchase price was accounted for as goodwill. The Company has reviewed the carrying value of its Investment in Equity Investee and
has determined that there is no impairment of value.

On December 13, 2005, DealerTrack completed an initial public offering (“IPO”) of its stock. In accordance with the Master Transfer agreement with First
American, First Advantage is obligated to issue additional shares of Class B common stock to First American. The number of shares to be issued will be equal to
the quotient of (x) 50% of the amount by which the value of the DealerTrack Interest exceeds $50 million (based on the average closing price per share of
DealerTrack’s stock over the 60 business day period beginning on the fifth business day after the completion of its initial public offering), divided by (y) $20.50.
Based on DealerTrack’s stock price at March 7, 2006, the Company’s currently estimates that approximately 1,600,000 Class B shares will be issued.

As aresult of the IPO, the Company recognized a pretax investment gain of $9,471,000. The sale of the stock was at a price per share in excess of its
carrying value. As a result of the issuance of the shares, the
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Company’s ownership interest in DealerTrack decreased from 21% to 16%. The Company will continue to account for the investment under the equity method
since it has maintained direct influence at DealerTrack.

9. Debt

On July 31, 2003, the Company entered into a $15 million loan agreement with a bank (the “Loan Agreement”). On September 7, 2004, the Loan
Agreement was amended whereby the Company’s available borrowings there under were increased from $15 million to $20 million. On March 28, 2005, the
Loan Agreement was amended a second time. Under the terms of the second amendment, the outstanding principal increased to $45 million.

On March 18, 2004, the Company entered into a three year $25 million uncollateralized revolving line of credit with a bank (the “Line of Credit”). The
Line of Credit was guaranteed by First American.

On September 29, 2005, the Company executed of a revolving credit agreement, with a bank syndication (the “Credit Agreement”). Borrowings available
under the Credit Agreement total up to $225 million. The Credit Agreement includes a $10 million sub-facility for the issuance of letters of credit and up to a
$5 million swing loan facility. The credit facility maturity date is September 28, 2010. The proceeds from this Credit Agreement were used to payoff the
previously noted Loan Agreement and Line of Credit.

The interest rate is based on one of two options consisting of 1) the higher of Federal Funds Rate plus /2% and Bank of America’s announced “Prime
Rate” or 2) a “LIBOR based rate”. The “LIBOR based rate” is based on LIBOR plus a margin that can range from 1.125% to 1.75% (based on progressive levels
of leverage). First Advantage management must elect the LIBOR based option up to three days prior to its utilization.

The agreement contains usual and customary negative covenants for transactions of this type including but not limited to those regarding liens, investments,
creation of indebtedness and fundamental changes, as well as financial covenants of consolidated leverage ratio and minimum consolidated fixed charge coverage
ratio.

The agreement contains usual and customary provisions regarding acceleration. In the event of a default by the Company under the credit facility, the
lenders will have no further obligation to make loans or issue letters of credit and in some cases may, at the option of a majority of the lenders, declare all
amounts owed by the Company immediately due and payable and require the Company to provide collateral, and in some cases any amounts owed by the
Company under the credit facility will automatically become immediately due and payable. The Credit Agreement is collateralized by the stock of the Company’s
subsidiaries.

At December 31, 2005, the Company was in compliance with the financial covenants of its loan agreement.

On July 31, 2003, the Company entered into a Promissory Note with First American. The loan evidenced by the Promissory Note is a $10 million
uncollateralized revolving loan, with interest payable monthly. The principal balance of the Promissory Note is payable on July 31, 2006. The Promissory Note
bears interest at the rate payable under the syndicated bank debt plus 0.5% per annum.

On April 27, 2004, the Company entered into a Promissory Note with First American. The loan evidenced by the Promissory Note is a $20 million
uncollateralized revolving loan, with interest payable monthly. On September 14, 2005 in connection with the consummation of the acquisition of the CIG
Business and related
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businesses from First American, First Advantage repaid, in full, the principal amount of $20 million by issuing 975,610 shares of First Advantage’s Class B
common stock.

Long-term debt consists of the following at December 31:

2005 2004
Acquisition notes:
Weighted average interest rate of 5.7% and 4.5% at December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively,
with maturities through 2008 $ 74,790,000 $ 45,550,000
Uncollateralized notes:
Interest rate of prime (4.0% at December 31, 2004) — 1,026,000
Bank notes:
$225 million Secured Credit Facility, interest at 30-day LIBOR plus 1.25% (5.58% at December
31, 2005), matures September 2010 135,500,000 —
$45 million Loan Agreement, interest at 30-day LIBOR plus 1.25% (3.65% at December 31,
2004) — 12,500,000
$25 million Line of Credit, interest at 30-day LIBOR plus 1.39% (3.79% at December 31, 2004) — 25,000,000
Promissory notes with First American:
$10 million revolving loan, interest at 30-day LIBOR plus 1.75% (6.08% and 4.15% at
December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively), matures July 2006 10,000,000 10,000,000
$20 million revolving loan, interest at 30-day LIBOR plus 1.89% (4.29% at December 31, 2004) — 12,500,000
Uncollateralized loan, interest rate of 10% at December 31, 2004 — 4,000,000
Capital leases and other debt:
Various interest rates with maturities through 2006 281,000 230,000
Total long-term debt and capital leases 220,571,000 110,806,000
Less current portion of long-term debt and capital leases 38,444,000 24,326,000
Long-term debt and capital leases, net of current portion $ 182,127,000 $ 86,480,000
Aggregate maturities of long-term borrowings over the next five years are as follows:
Year ending December 31,
2006 $ 38,444,000
2007 18,406,000
2008 14,961,000
2009 6,400,000
2010 142,360,000
Total $ 220,571,000
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The provision (benefit) for income taxes is summarized as follows:

2005 2004 2003
Current:
Federal $ 19,601,000 $ 21,124,000 $ 18,085,000
State 4,701,000 6,539,000 4,949,000
Foreign 560,000 — —
24,862,000 27,663,000 23,034,000
Deferred:
Federal 14,123,000 1,740,000 8,063,000
State 4,595,000 317,000 1,658,000
Foreign (58,000) — —
18,660,000 2,057,000 9,721,000
Total current and deferred $ 43,522,000 $ 29,720,000 $ 32,755,000

Income taxes differ from the amounts computed by applying the federal income tax rate of 35.0%. A reconciliation of the difference is as follows:

2005 2004 2003

Taxes calculated at federal rate $ 35,685,000 $ 25,181,000 $ 24,705,000
Amortization expense — — (12,000)
State taxes, net of federal benefit 6,043,000 4,457,000 4,295,000
Exclusion of certain meals and entertainment expenses 285,000 216,000 162,000
Gain on sale of investment 3,345,000
Other items, net 1,509,000 (134,000) 260,000

$ 43,522,000 $ 29,720,000 $ 32,755,000
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The primary components of temporary differences that give rise to the Company’s net deferred tax liability are as follows:

2005 2004
Deferred tax assets:
Federal net operating loss carryforwards $ 42,055,000 $ 43,697,000
State net operating loss carryforwards 4,878,000 5,758,000
State tax 3,404,000 1,747,000
Bad debt reserves 2,107,000 1,506,000
Employee benefits 1,761,000 1,308,000
Accrued expenses and loss reserves 545,000 368,000
Deferred revenue — 139,000
Other 243,000 211,000
Less: valuation allowance (20,446,000) (36,720,000)
34,547,000 18,014,000
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciable and amortizable assets 55,854,000 25,706,000
Equity in earnings of investee 5,462,000 597,000
Other 444,000 165,000
61,760,000 26,468,000
Net deferred tax liability $ 27,213,000 $ 8,454,000

The exercise of stock options represents a tax benefit and has been reflected as a reduction of taxes payable and an increase to the additional paid in capital
account. The benefit recorded was $888,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005.

As of December 31, 2005, the Company has federal and state net operating losses of approximately $120.2 million and $60.9 million, respectively. The
$120.2 million federal and $60.9 of state net operating losses were generated by various subsidiaries prior to their acquisition by the Company. The net operating
losses begin to expire at various times beginning in 2008. The valuation allowance relates primarily to deferred tax assets for federal net operating-loss
carryforwards relating to acquisitions. Utilization of the pre-acquisition net operating losses is subject to limitations by the Internal Revenue Code and state
jurisdictions. The Company evaluates the realizability of its deferred tax assets by assessing the valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount of such
allowance if necessary. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization are the Company’s forecast of future taxable income and available tax planning
strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets. The net change in the total valuation allowance for the year ending December 31, 2005
was a decrease of $16.3 million with an offsetting entry to goodwill.

Based upon a sustained pattern of historical taxable income, projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the net operating losses will be
deductible, and the impact the CIG acquisition had on the combined historical taxable income and on the projections for future taxable income, management
believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of the federal net operating losses. The valuation allowance relating to the state net
operating-loss carryforwards will remain until further evidence is available to indicate that these deferred assets are realizable.

As of December 31, 2005, United States taxes were not provided on earnings of our foreign subsidiaries, as we have invested or expect to invest the
undistributed earnings indefinitely. If in the future these earnings are repatriated to the United States, or if we determine that the earnings will be remitted in the
foreseeable future, additional tax provisions may be required.
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11. Employee Benefits

Effective January 1, 2004, the Company created the First Advantage Corporation 401(k) Plan (the “Savings Plan”). All employees of the Company who
participated in the First American Corporation 401(k) Savings Plan (the “First American Plan”) were transferred into the Savings Plan. A total of 2.0 million
shares of First Advantage Class A common stock are reserved for issuance in connection with the Company’s Savings Plan. The Savings Plan allows for
employee-elective contributions up to the maximum deductible amount as determined by the Internal Revenue Code. The Company makes contributions to the
Savings Plan based on profitability, as well as contributions of the participants. The Company’s expense related to the Savings Plan amounted to approximately
$1,235,000 and $898,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Prior to January 1, 2004, employees of the Company were eligible to participate in the First American Plan, which was available to substantially all
employees. Prior to the merger, the employees of CIG participated in the First American Plan. The Company’s expense related to the First American Plan
amounted to approximately $2,175,000, $2,155,000 and $3,628,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Certain employees of the Company are eligible to participate in First American’s defined benefit pension plan. Prior to the merger, certain employees of the
CIG Business were eligible to participate in First American’s defined benefit pension plan. The Company expensed payments to the pension plan of
approximately $737,000, $685,000 and $574,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The actuarial present value of
accumulated plan benefits and net assets available for benefits to the Company’s employees under this plan is not readily available.

In August 2003, the Company’s board of directors approved the First Advantage Corporation 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Stock Purchase
Plan”). The Stock Purchase Plan, which is intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, allows eligible employees to purchase First
Advantage Class A common stock through payroll deductions for 85% of the fair market value of the First Advantage Class A common stock. Participation in the
plan is voluntary. Eligible employees may participate by authorizing payroll deductions of up to 15% of their base pay for each payroll period. At the end of each
one-month offering period, each participant will receive an amount of First Advantage Class A common stock equal to the sum of that participant’s payroll
deductions during such period divided by 85% of the fair market value of the common stock at the end of the period. No employee may participate in the plan if
such employee owns or would own after the purchase of shares under the plan, 5% or more of the voting power of all classes of First Advantage stock. Shares of
First Advantage Class A common stock issued under the Stock Purchase Plan must be held for a period of one year. A total of 1.0 million shares of First
Advantage Class A common stock are reserved for issuance under the plan. A total of 29,446 and 19,198 shares have been issued in connection with the plan for
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

12. Related Parties

First American provides certain legal, financial, technology, administrative and managerial support services to the Company. Prior to April 1, 2003, the
amounts allocated to the Company, excluding the CIG Business, were based on reasonable assumptions (primarily usage, time incurred and number of
employees) as to the proportion of the services used by the Company in relation to the actual costs incurred by First American in providing the services. The
Company recognized expenses of approximately $457,000 in 2003 relating to these services.

The Company, excluding the CIG Business, and First American entered into a services agreement, which was implemented on April 1, 2003 and continued
through December 31, 2003. Human resources systems and
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payroll systems and support, network services and financial systems were provided at an annual cost of approximately $300,000. Legal and tax support, human
resources support, investor relations and corporate communications support, accounting and financial management support, strategic planning and general
management support were provided at an annual cost of approximately $600,000 plus reasonable out of pocket expenses. In addition, certain other services
including pension and 401(k) expenses, corporate and medical insurance, personal property leasing and company car programs were provided at actual cost. The
Company, excluding the CIG Business, incurred approximately $675,000 in related service fees for the year ended December 31, 2003.

An amended and restated services agreement was entered into on January 1, 2004. Under the terms of the new agreement, human resources systems and
payroll systems and support, network services and financial systems are provided at an annual cost of approximately $300,000. In addition, certain other services
including pension and 401(k) expenses, corporate and medical insurance, personal property leasing and company car programs are provided at actual cost. The
initial term of the agreement is for one year, and self renews every six months. The Company, excluding the CIG Business, incurred approximately $300,000 in
service fees for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004.

First American and certain affiliates provided sales and marketing, legal, financial, technology, leased facilities, leased equipment and other administrative
services to the CIG Business. As part of the acquisition of CIG, an amended and restated services agreement was entered into on September 14, 2005. Under the
terms of the new agreement, human resources systems and payroll systems and support, network services and financial systems are provided at an annual cost of
approximately $4,800,000. In addition, certain other services including pension and 401(k) expenses, corporate and medical insurance, personal property leasing
and company car programs are provided at actual cost. The initial term of the agreement is for one year, and self renews every six months. The Company also
entered into an agreement with First American to lease the CIG Business’office space in Poway, California. The lease is for an initial lease term of five years to
commence on the closing date with a one-time option to renew the term for an additional five years. The rent payable under the lease will be approximately
$169,000 a month and the Company is obligated to pay all costs and expenses related to the property, including operating expenses, maintenance and taxes. The
CIG Business recognized approximately $13,702,000, $11,664,000 and $11,627,000 in selling, general and administrative expense in 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively, relating to these services. The amounts allocated to the CIG Business are based on management’s assumptions (primarily usage, time incurred and
number of employees) as to the proportion of the services used by The CIG Business in relation to the actual costs incurred by First American and affiliates in
providing the services.

In 2004, the Company incurred costs of approximately $150,000 for internal audit services provided by First American.

Effective January 1, 2003, the Company and a subsidiary of First American entered into an agreement whereby the Company will act as an agent in selling
renters insurance. The Company receives a commission of 12% of the insurance premiums and 20% of the profits (as defined in the agreement) of the insurance
premiums written. Commissions earned in 2005, 2004, and 2003 were approximately $333,000, $87,000, and $11,000 respectively.

The Company performs employment screening services for First American. Total revenue from First American was approximately $700,000, $422,000 and
$353,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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Prior to June 2003, First American contributed certain operations relating to businesses acquired and has also forgiven certain amounts owed by the
Company in connection with the acquisitions and in the funding of operations of the Company. Net assets, in connection with acquisitions, contributed to the
Company by First American totaled approximately $10,696,000 in 2003. These amounts have been treated as additional paid-in capital in the accompanying
financial statements. Amounts contributed to the Company by First American to fund operations are as follows:

2003
Allocated selling, general & administrative expenses $ 457,000
Cash advances 809,000
Other, net 4,003,000
$ 5,269,000

First American Real Estate Solutions, LLC (“FARES”), a joint venture between First American and Experian Information Solutions, Inc. (“Experian”),
owns 50% of a joint venture that provides mortgage credit reports and operations support to a nationwide mortgage lender. In accordance with the terms of the
joint venture operating agreement, the mortgage and consumer credit reporting operation of FARES receives a merge fee per credit report issued and is
reimbursed for certain operating costs. In addition, FARES records the 50% share of the earnings of the joint venture using the equity method of accounting. In
connection with the acquisition of the CIG Business, FARES entered into an outsourcing agreement where the Company continues to provide these services to the
nationwide mortgage lender. These earnings are included in service revenue in the accompanying combined statements of income and totaled $5,724,000,
$6,672,000, and $8,062,000, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Total merge fees were $7,092,000, $7,379,000, and $9,056,000
for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively and are included in service revenue in the accompanying combined statement of income.
Total reimbursement for operating costs were $7,289,000, $7,476,000, and $8,471,000, for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
reimbursement of operating costs is reflected as a reduction in operating expenses in the accompanying financial statements.

Experian owns approximately 6% of a combination of First Advantage’s Class A and Class B common shares and is considered a related party. The cost of
credit reports purchased by the Company from Experian was $27,431,000, $20,020,000, and $19,399,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The Company sells background and lead generation services to Experian. Total revenue from these sales was $263,000, $62,000 and $53,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

13. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

The Company leases certain office facilities, automobiles and equipment under operating leases, which, for the most part, are renewable. The majority of
these leases also provide that the Company will pay insurance and taxes. Rent expense under operating leases was approximately $18,839,000, $15,923,000 and
$12,264,000 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, respectively.
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Future minimum rental payments under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year as of December 31,

2005, are as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
Thereafter

Litigation

$ 17,985,000
14,842,000
11,584,000
9,594,000
7,446,000
23,396,000

$ 84,847,000

The Company is involved in litigation from time to time in the ordinary course of business. The Company does not believe that the outcome of any pending
or threatened litigation will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or operating results.

14. Earnings Per Share

Pursuant to the provisions of SFAS No. 128 “Earnings Per Share”, basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average
number of shares of common stock and common stock equivalents outstanding during the period. Dilutive common stock equivalents represent shares issuable
upon assumed exercise of stock options and warrants. Options and warrants totaling 369,345 and 1,862,494 in 2005 and 2004, respectively, were excluded from

the weighted average diluted shares outstanding, as they were antidilutive.

A reconciliation of earnings per share and weighted-average shares outstanding is as follows:

Net Income—numerator for basic and full diluted earnings per share
Denominator:

Weighted-average shares for basic earnings per share

Effect of restricted stock

Effect of contingent shares related to DealerTrack (Note 8)

Effect of dilutive securities—employee stock options and warrants
Denominator for diluted earnings per share

Earnings per share:
Basic
Diluted
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2005 2004 2003

$ 58,426,000 $ 42,333,000 $ 37,885,000
52,883,760 49,711,384 48,065,731

37,360 — —

73,907 — —
598,128 324,135 136,733
53,593,155 50,035,519 48,202,464
$ 1.10 $ 0.85 $ 0.79
$ 1.09 $ 0.85 $ 0.79
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15. Stock Option Plans
Incentive Compensation Plan

The Company’s board of directors and stockholders have adopted the 2003 First Advantage Incentive Compensation Plan. The plan is intended to promote
the long-term success of the Company and increase stockholder value by attracting, motivating, and retaining key employees of the Company and its subsidiaries
and affiliates, and by motivating consultants who provide significant services to the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates. To achieve this purpose, the plan
allows the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, performance unit awards, performance share awards and cash-based
awards to eligible persons.

Subject to adjustment for certain changes in the Company’s capitalization, a total of 7.0 million shares of First Advantage Class A common stock are
available for issuance under the plan. The plan is administered by the compensation committee of the board of directors of the Company.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control transaction (as defined in the plan), generally all awards under the plan accelerate, all restrictions are lifted and
all performance goals are achieved, subject to certain limitations. The committee may provide that any award, the payment of which was deferred under the plan,
will be paid or distributed as of, or promptly following, a change of control transaction. The committee may also provide that any awards subject to any such
acceleration, payment, adjustment or conversion cannot be exercised after, or will terminate as of, a change of control transaction.

At December 31, 2005, stock options to purchase 4,083,500 shares of the Company’s common stock were granted under the First Advantage Corporation
2003 Incentive Compensation Plan, Inc. Options vest over three years at a rate of 33.4% for the first year and 33.3% for each of the two following years. The
option grant expires ten years after the grant date. The Company accounts for these stock options in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock
Issued to Employees™ and related Interpretations. Accordingly, the Company does not recognize compensation cost in connection with these plans, as all options
granted under these plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the Company’s common stock on the date of grant.

Warrants and Options to Purchase Class A Common Stock, Assumed in the Merger

The Company agreed to assume the obligations of US SEARCH.com contained in all warrants to purchase common stock of US SEARCH.com
outstanding on the closing date of the merger. Pursuant to the merger agreement and the terms of the warrants, the holders of the warrants are entitled to receive
upon exercise thereof 0.04 of a share of First Advantage Class A common stock for each share of US SEARCH.com common stock that such warrant holder
would have been entitled to receive pursuant to the warrant prior to the closing of the merger. The Company had outstanding warrants to purchase up to 224,752
and 316,339 shares of its common stock at exercise prices ranging from $0.25 to $29.38 per share, as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

All outstanding stock options, stock appreciation rights, limited stock appreciation rights and stock purchase rights of US SEARCH.com were assumed by
the Company and converted automatically into options to purchase shares of First Advantage Class A common stock calculated in accordance with the exchange
ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole share. The exercise price is equal to the exercise price per share of US SEARCH.com common stock divided by the
exchange ratio, rounded down to the nearest whole cent. The outstanding stock options, stock appreciation rights, limited stock appreciation rights and stock
purchase rights of US SEARCH.com otherwise continue to be exercisable and vest subject to the terms and conditions applicable to
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them before the mergers. However, all outstanding stock options issued to US SEARCH.com employees and directors pursuant to the US SEARCH.com
Amended and Restated 1998 Stock Incentive Plan and all outstanding stock options issued to US SEARCH.com’s non-employee directors pursuant to the US
SEARCH.com 1999 Non-Employee Directors’ Stock Option Plan accelerated and became fully vested upon the occurrence of the mergers. As of December 31,
2005, the Company had outstanding options (previously issued by US SEARCH.com) to purchase up to 73,374 shares of its common stock at exercise prices
ranging from $7.00 to $225.00 per share.

A total of 339,137 options were exercised at an average price of $18.73, 175,892 options were forfeited at an average price of $25.65, and 1,556,500
options were granted at an average price of $23.17 in 2005.

A total of 217,658 options were exercised at an average price of $15.71, 508,294 options were forfeited at an average price of $45.92, and 410,500 options
were granted at an average price of $17.75 in 2004.

A total of 11,716 options were exercised at an average price of $12.08, 132,250 options were forfeited at an average price of $33.07, and 2,116,500 options
were granted at an average price of $18.60 in 2003.

A total of 30,802 shares were issued in conjunction with the exercise of warrants at an average price of $26.10 in 2005. A total of 6,810 shares were issued
in conjunction with the exercise of warrants at an average price of $12.05 in 2004. There were no warrants exercised in 2003.

The following table summarizes information about stock options and warrants outstanding at December 31, 2005:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Avg Weighted Weighted
Remaining Contractual Average Average

Range of Exercise Prices Shares Life in Years Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price
$ 7.00-$ 12.50 14,386 5.7 $10.43 13,255 $10.49
$12.51-$ 25.00 2,765,934 8.1 $19.28 1,139,566 $19.28
$25.01-$ 50.00 713,578 9.6 $27.40 17,661 $37.67
$50.01 - $242.25 12,107 4.5 $88.54 12,103 $88.50

3,506,005 1,182,585
Warrants Out ding and Exercisable

Weighted Avg Weighted
Remaining Contractual Average

Range of Exercise Prices Shares Life in Years Exercise Price
$ 0.25-$22.50 86,584 3.03 $17.08
$22.51 - $26.10 135,168 0.54 $26.10
$26.11 - $29.38 3,000 1.14 $29.38

224,752

16. Segment Information

The Company operates in six primary business segments: Lender Services, Data Services, Dealer Services, Employer Services, Multifamily Services, and
Investigative and Litigation Support Services.
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The Lender Services segment offers lenders across the country credit reporting solutions for mortgage and home equity needs.

The Data Services segment includes business lines that provide transportation credit reporting, motor vehicle record reporting, fleet management, supply
chain theft and damage mitigation consulting, consumer location, criminal records reselling, subprime credit reporting, consumer credit reporting services and
lead generation services. Revenue for the Data Services segment includes $2,908,000, $2,328,000 and $1,664,000 of inter-segment sales for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003, respectively.

The Dealer Services business segment serves the automotive dealer marketplace by delivering consolidated consumer credit reports, credit automation
software and lead generation services. Revenue for the Dealer Services segment includes $21,000, of inter-segment sales for the year ended December 31, 2005.
Total assets for Dealer Services include approximately $45.7 million related to the DealerTrack investment.

The Employer Services segment includes employment background screening, occupational health services, tax incentive services and hiring solutions.
Products and services relating to employment background screening include criminal records searches, employment and education verification, social security
number verification and credit reporting. Occupational health services include drug-free workplace programs, physical examinations and employee assistance
programs. Hiring solutions include applicant tracking software and recruiting services. Tax incentive services include services related to the administration of
employment-based and location-based tax credit and incentive programs, sales and use tax programs and fleet asset management programs. Revenue for the
Employer Services segment includes $833,000, $803,000 and $508,000 of inter-segment sales for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, and 2003,
respectively.

The Multifamily Services segment includes resident screening and software services. Resident screening services include criminal background and eviction
searches, credit reporting, employment verification and lease performance and payment histories. Revenue for the Multifamily Services segment includes
$312,000, and $80,000 of inter-segment sales for the years ended December 31, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

The Investigative and Litigation Support Services segment includes all investigative services. Products and services offered by the Investigative and
Litigation Support Services segment includes surveillance services, field interviews, computer forensics, electronic discovery, due diligence reports and other
high level investigations.

The elimination of intra-segment revenue and cost of service revenue is included in Corporate. These transactions are recorded at cost.

International operations are included in the Employer Services segment and include revenue of $9,112,000, and $1,217,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Total assets for the Foreign Background division under the Employer Services segment were $20,879,000 at
December 31, 2005.
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Selected financial information for the Company’s operations by segment for each of the past three years is as follows:

2005

Lender Services

Data Services

Dealer Services

Employer Services

Multifamily Services

Investigative and Litigation Support Services
Corporate and Eliminations

Consolidated

2004

Lender Services

Data Services

Dealer Services

Employer Services

Multifamily Services

Investigative and Litigation Support Services
Corporate and Eliminations

Consolidated

2003

Lender Services

Data Services

Dealer Services

Employer Services

Multifamily Services

Investigative and Litigation Support Services
Corporate and Eliminations

Consolidated
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Depreciation

Income (Loss)

and From
Revenue Amortization Operations Assets
168,327,000 $ 6,726,000 $ 48,205,000 82,463,000
131,131,000 6,796,000 29,460,000 324,907,000
98,357,000 2,389,000 13,559,000 114,334,000
154,395,000 5,311,000 13,301,000 264,753,000
63,254,000 4,109,000 16,122,000 74,310,000
34,580,000 1,882,000 2,107,000 81,878,000
(6,295,000) 392,000 (24,751,000) 35,400,000
643,749,000 $ 27,605,000 $ 98,003,000 978,045,000
135,201,000 $ 6,946,000 $ 38,057,000 58,389,000
109,357,000 5,346,000 14,363,000 155,854,000
69,842,000 1,586,000 8,164,000 84,629,000
125,608,000 4,110,000 9,380,000 169,839,000
54,135,000 3,940,000 12,272,000 80,466,000
25,714,000 1,176,000 908,000 44,749,000
(3,116,000) 80,000 (10,918,000) 9,178,000
516,741,000 $ 23,184,000 $ 72,226,000 603,104,000
151,220,000 $ 8,825,000 $ 41,970,000 62,859,000
83,680,000 3,590,000 7,707,000 135,633,000
66,912,000 1,815,000 9,979,000 84,156,000
70,571,000 3,157,000 (2,469,000) 108,661,000
42,085,000 3,112,000 6,593,000 55,167,000
8,065,000 213,000 503,000 19,810,000
(2,172,000) 7,000 (6,662,000) 1,083,000
420,361,000 $ 20,719,000 $ 57,621,000 467,369,000
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17. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following table sets forth certain unaudited financial data of the Company for the periods as indicated. The Company’s operating results for the years
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 include results for the acquired entities (excluding the CIG Business) from their respective dates of acquisition. The
acquisition of the CIG Business by First Advantage is a transaction between businesses under the common control of First American. In an acquisition of
businesses under common control, the acquiring company records acquired assets and liabilities at historical costs. The historical income statements of First
Advantage for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 include the operations of the CIG Business at historical cost assuming the acquisition was completed
on January 1, 2004.

For the quarters ended
3/31/2005 6/30/2005 9/30/2005 12/31/2005

Total revenue $ 140,321,000 $ 163,424,000 $ 169,946,000 $ 170,058,000
Gross margin $ 89,943,000 $ 105,401,000 $ 107,865,000 $ 108,920,000
Net income $ 13,992,000 $ 12,219,000 $ 16,023,000 $ 16,192,000
Per share amounts:

Basic $ 0.27 $ 0.23 $ 0.30 $ 0.29

Diluted $ 0.27 $ 0.23 $ 0.30 $ 0.29
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:

Basic 51,098,973 52,827,590 53,200,609 55,112,891

Diluted 51,379,983 53,219,980 53,964,766 56,385,316

For the quarters ended
3/31/2004 6/30/2004 9/30/2004 12/31/2004

Total revenue $ 122,028,000 $ 133,994,000 $ 134,073,000 $ 126,646,000
Gross margin $ 74,190,000 $ 83,128,000 $ 85,646,000 $ 81,454,000
Net income $ 9,507,000 9,984,000 $ 12,962,000 $ 9,880,000
Per share amounts:

Basic $ 0.19 $ 0.20 $ 0.26 $ 0.19

Diluted $ 0.19 $ 0.20 $ 0.26 $ 0.19
Weighted-average common shares outstanding:

Basic 48,960,100 50,575,205 49,683,345 50,895,592

Diluted 49,151,010 51,177,625 50,128,761 51,034,868
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, after evaluating the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, have concluded that, as of the end of the fiscal year covered by this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurances that information required to be
disclosed in the reports filed or submitted under such Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities and
Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the CEO and CFO, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

Changes in Internal Controls

There were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2005 that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of First Advantage Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. The
Company’s internal control over financial reporting has been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The Company’s internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and dispositions of assets of the Company; provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and that
receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorization of management and directors of the Company; and provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of
effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework. Based on that assessment under the framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, management determined that, as of December 31, 2005,
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005 has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered certified public accounting firm, as stated in their report which appears herein.

Audit Report of the Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm
See the Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm in Item 8, above.
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Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART III

The information required by Items 10 through 14 of this report is set forth in the sections entitled “Nominees for Election of Directors,” “Information about
our Board of Directors,” “Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,” “Report of the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors on
Executive Compensation,” “Executive Officers,” “Compensation of Executive Officers and Directors,” “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and
Management,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,” “Stock Performance Graph” and
“Principal Accounting Fees and Services” in the Company’s definitive proxy statement, which sections are incorporated in this report by reference. The definitive

proxy statement will be filed no later than 120 days after the close of First Advantage’s fiscal year end of December 31, 2005.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule.

(@) 1. The following consolidated financial statements of First Advantage Corporation and its subsidiaries are included in Item 8.

Report of Independent Registered Certified Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003

2. Financial Statement Schedule.
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
Balance at Charged to Balance at
Beginning of Costs & End of
Description Period Expenses Period
Year ended December 31, 2005 $ 3,444,000 $ 1,477,000 $ (1,490,000) $ 4,918,000
Year ended December 31, 2004 $ 3,113,000 $ 1,467,000 $ (1,267,000) $ 3,444,000
Year ended December 31, 2003 $ 2,630,000 $ 4,711,000 $ (4,787,000) $ 3,113,000
@ Allowances established as a result of acquisitions
3. Exhibits
Exhibit Description
2 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated December 13, 2002, by and among the Company, The First American Corporation, US SEARCH.com

Inc. and Stockholm Seven Merger Corp. (incorporated by reference to Annex A to the prospectus forming a part of the registration

statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company on January 17, 2003 (No. 333-102565))
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Exhibit Description
2.1 Amended and Restated Master Transfer Agreement among The First American Corporation, First American Real Estate Services, Inc., First
American Real Estate Solutions, LLC, FADV Holdings LLC, and First Advantage Corporation, dated as of June 22, 2005 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))
2.2 Contribution Agreement among The First American Corporation, First American Real Estate Services, Inc., FADV Holdings LLC, and First
Advantage Corporation, dated as of September 14, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by
the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))
2.3 Contribution Agreement among First American Real Estate Solutions, LLC, FADV Holdings LLC, and First Advantage Corporation, dated as of
September 14, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11,
2005 (No. 05784563))
2.4 Stock Purchase Agreement Among First Advantage Corporation, Leadclick Holding Company, LLC, Robert Afshar and RaaBoom LLC, dated
November 7, 2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the current report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on November 8, 2005
(No. 051185511))
3.1 First Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of First Advantage Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
registration statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company on January 17, 2003 (No. 333-102565))
3.2 Certificate of Amendment to the First Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of First Advantage Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))
3.3 Bylaws of First Advantage Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the registration statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company
on January 17, 2003 (No. 333-102565))
4.1 Form of certificate representing shares of the Registrant’s Class A common stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the registration
statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company on January 17, 2003 (No. 333-102565))
4.2 Form of certificate representing shares of the Registrant’s Class B common stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the registration
statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company on January 17, 2003 (No. 333-102565))
10.1 First Advantage Corporation 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.19 to the amendment to the registration
statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company on April 4, 2003 (No. 333-102565))*
10.2 First Advantage Corporation 2003 Incentive Compensation Plan, Amended and Restated as of September 14, 2005 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 8, 2005 (No. 051185511))
10.3 Form of Indemnification Agreement, dated May 9, 2005, between First Advantage Corporation and each member of its board of directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on August 15, 2005 (No. 051025447))
10.4 First Advantage Corporation “Flexible Long-Term Incentive Program” (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the current report on Form 8-
K filed by the Company on February 7, 2006 (No. 06586097))
10.5 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the current report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on

February 7, 2006 (No. 06586097))
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Exhibit Description
10.6 Form of Restricted Stock Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the current report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on
February 7, 2006 (No. 06586097))
10.7 Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the current report on Form 8-K filed by the Company on
February 7, 2006 (No. 06586097))
10.8 First Advantage Corporation 2003 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.20 to the amendment to the registration
statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company on April 24, 2003 (No. 333-102565))*
10.9 Stockholders Agreement, dated as of December 13, 2002, by and among the Company, The First American Corporation and Pequot Private Equity
Fund II, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Annex D to the prospectus forming a part of the registration statement on Form S-4 filed by the
Company on January 17, 2003 (No. 333-102565))
10.10 Form of Standstill Agreement by and between the Company and The First American Corporation (incorporated by reference to Annex E to the
prospectus forming a part of the registration statement on Form S-4 filed by the Company on January 17, 2003 (No. 333-102565))
10.11 Amended and Restated Services Agreement, dated January 1, 2004, between the Company and The First American Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the annual report on Form 10-K filed by the Company on March 11, 2004 (No. 000-50285))
10.12 Promissory Note, made July 31, 2003, by First Advantage Corporation to the order of The First American Corporation (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 99.5 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on August 13, 2002 (No. 001-31666))
10.13 Service Agreement for End-User, effective December 31, 2003, by and between First Advantage Enterprise Screening Corporation and The First
American Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the annual report on Form 10-K filed by the Company on March 11, 2004
(No. 000-50285))
10.14 Agency/Company Agreement, effective January 1, 2003, between First American Property & Casualty Insurance Company and Multifamily
Community Insurance Agency, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the annual report on Form 10-K filed by the Company on
March 11, 2004 (No. 000-50285))
10.15 Profit Share Program letter, dated January 1, 2003, from First American Property & Casualty Insurance Company to Multifamily Community
Insurance Agency, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the annual report on Form 10-K filed by the Company on March 11, 2004
(No. 000-50285))
10.16 Linking License Agreement, between First American Real Estate Solutions L.P., and US SEARCH.com (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2
to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2004 (No. 000-50285))
10.17 Office Lease by and between First American Title Insurance Company and First Advantage Corporation, dated September 14, 2005 (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))
10.18 Credit Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2005, among First Advantage Corporation as the Borrower, Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and L/C Issuer, LaSalle Bank National Association, as Syndication Agent, Wachovia Bank, National
Association and Suntrust Bank, as Co-Documentation Agents and the Other Lenders Party Hereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to
the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))
10.19 Pledge Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2005, made by First Advantage Corporation in favor of Bank of American, N.A., as administrative

and collateral agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11,
2005 (No. 05784563))
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Exhibit Description

10.20 Security Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2005, made by First Advantage Corporation in favor of Bank of America, N.A., as administrative
and collateral agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11,
2005 (No. 05784563))

10.21 Subsidiary Guaranty Agreement, dated as of September 28, 2005, made by First Advantage Corporation in favor of Bank of America, N.A., as
administrative and collateral agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on
November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))

10.22 Note, dated as of September 28, 2005, made by First Advantage Corporation in favor of LaSalle Bank National Association (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))

10.23 Note, dated as of September 28, 2005, made by First Advantage Corporation in favor of Wachovia Bank, National Association (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.11 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))

10.24 Note, dated as of September 28, 2005, made by First Advantage Corporation in favor of Suntrust Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.12
to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))

10.25 Note, dated as of September 28, 2005, made by First Advantage Corporation in favor of U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))

10.26 Note, dated as of September 28, 2005, made by First Advantage Corporation in favor of Commerzbank AG, New York and Grand Cayman
Branches (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No.
05784563))

10.27 Note, dated September 28, 2005, made by First Advantage Corporation in favor of Regions Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to the
quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))

10.28 Lease Agreement, dated January 17, 2005 between First Advantage Corporation and 100 Carillon, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25
to the annual report on Form 10-K filed by the Company on March 10, 2005 (No. 001-31666))

10.29 Amended and Restated Services Agreement between The First American Corporation and First Advantage Corporation, dates as of September 14,
2005 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No.
05784563))

10.30 Outsourcing Agreement between First American Real Estate Solutions, LLC and First Advantage Corporation, dated as of September 14, 2005
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the quarterly report on Form 10-Q filed by the Company on November 11, 2005 (No. 05784563))
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(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the current report on Form 8-K filed on September 16, 2005 (No. 051087660))
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, on this 16" day of March, 2006.

FIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION

By: /S/" JOHN LONG

John Long
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/" JOHN LONG

John Long
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/" JOHN LAMSON

John Lamson
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated:

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/ PARKER S. KENNEDY

Parker S. Kennedy, Chairman

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /s/ JOHN LONG

John Long, Director

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/ J. DAVID CHATHAM

J. David Chatham, Director

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/'  BARRY CONNELLY

Barry Connelly, Director

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/" LAWRENCE D. LENIHAN, JR.

Lawrence D. Lenihan, Jr., Director

Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/' DONALD NICKELSON
Donald Nickelson, Director
Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/ DONALD ROBERT
Donald Robert, Director
Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/ ADELAIDE A. SINK
Adelaide A. Sink, Director
Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/ DAVID WALKER
David Walker, Director
Date: March 16, 2006 By: /S/" D. VAN SKILLING

D. Van Skilling, Director
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Exhibit 10.34
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT

This REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of October 11, 2005 by and between THE FIRST AMERICAN
CORPORATION, a California corporation (“First American”), and FIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (“First Advantage”).

WHEREAS, First Advantage is a majority-owned subsidiary of First American;

WHEREAS, certain employees of First Advantage participate in First American’s Executive Supplemental Benefit Plan or Management Supplemental
Benefit Plan (either such plan is referred to herein as the “SERP” and First Advantage employees participating in such plans from time to time are referred to
herein as the “SERP Participants”);

WHEREAS, First American annually accrues an expense in connection with each of the SERP Participants’ participation in the SERP, as calculated in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 87 (“SFAS 87”; such expense, as calculated by First American under SFAS 87 or any successor
accounting standard is referred to herein as a “SFAS 87 Expense”); and

WHEREAS, First Advantage has agreed to reimburse First American for the SFAS 87 Expense associated with each of the SERP Participants’
participation in the SERP that occurs from and after January 1, 2006.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration for the foregoing and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE I.
REIMBURSEMENT

1.1. Reimbursement. Upon written invoice by First American as provided below, First Advantage shall pay to First American an amount equal to the SFAS
87 Expense accrued by First American in connection with the SERP Participants’ participation in the SERP for the previous year, beginning with participation
occurring from and after January 1, 2006.

1.2. Invoicing. First American shall invoice First Advantage annually for the SFAS 87 Expense, promptly following the determination of the amount
thereof. The failure to give an invoice promptly shall not relieve First Advantage from its obligation to pay the SFAS 87 Expense. First Advantage shall pay the
amount stated in the invoice within ten (10) business days of receipt of the invoice in U.S. dollars by bank check or wire transfer to an account designated by First
American.



1.3. Verification of Reimbursement Amount. At the request of First Advantage, First American shall provide First Advantage with a copy of the
information, including any actuarial information provided by third parties, utilized by First American to determine the invoiced SFAS 87 Expense. Each party
agrees to attempt to resolve any disagreement regarding the invoiced amount through good faith discussions with the other party.

1.4. Subsequent Adjustments to SFAS 87 Expenses. If any SFAS 87 Expense is determined by First American, in its reasonable discretion, to have been
erroneous at the time of the invoice thereof (whether First American makes such a determination in connection with a subsequent audit of its financial statements,
as the result of First Advantage’s review and disagreement with the invoiced amount, or for any other reason), then First American shall notify First Advantage of
the amount of the error and the party in whose favor the error was made shall promptly remit to the other party the amount required to correct the error. Neither
interest nor penalties will be payable in connection with the correction of any such error.

ARTICLE II.
MISCELLANEOUS

2.1. Consent to Jurisdiction. Any legal action, suit or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Agreement may be instituted in the United States District
Court for the Central District of California, and each party agrees not to assert, by way of motion, as a defense, or otherwise, in any such action, suit or
proceeding, any claim that it is not subject personally to the jurisdiction of any such Court, that the action, suit or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum,
that the venue of the action, suit or proceeding is improper or that this Agreement or the subject matter hereof may not be enforced in or by any such Court. Each
party irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of any such Court in any such action, suit or proceeding.

2.2. Notices. Any notice or other communication required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been delivered when
delivered by hand or sent by facsimile (with receipt confirmed), or if delivered by courier shall be deemed given on the close of business on the second business
day following the day when deposited with an overnight courier or the close of business on the fifth business day when deposited in the United States mail,
postage prepaid, certified or registered addressed to the party at the address set forth below, with copies sent to the persons indicated:

(a) if to First American, to:

The First American Corporation

1 First American Way

Santa Ana, California 92707

Facsimile: (714) 800-3490

Attention:  Parker S. Kennedy
Kenneth D. DeGiorgio

-



(b) if to First Advantage, to:

First Advantage Corporation
One Progress Plaza, Suite 2400
St. Petersburg, Florida 33701
Facsimile: (727) 214-3401
Attention:  John Long

Anand Nallathambi

2.3. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement among the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior
agreements, written or oral, with respect thereto.

2.4. Waivers and Amendments. This Agreement may be amended, superseded, canceled, renewed or extended, and the terms and conditions hereof may be
waived, only by a written instrument signed by First American and First Advantage, or, in the case of a waiver, by the party waiving compliance. No delay on the
part of any party in exercising any right, power or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any waiver on the part of any party of any such
right, power or privilege, nor any single or partial exercise of any such right, power or privilege preclude any further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other
such right, power or privilege.

2.5. GOVERNING LAW. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF CALIFORNIA APPLICABLE TO AGREEMENTS MADE AND TO BE PERFORMED ENTIRELY WITHIN SUCH STATE, EXCLUSIVE OF
CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES.

2.6. Assignment. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and permitted assigns;
provided that no assignment hereof shall be effective without the prior written consent of the non-assigning party. This Agreement shall not be enforceable by or
inure to the benefit of any third party.

2.7. Further Assurances. Each of the parties shall execute such documents and other papers and take such further actions as may be reasonably required or
desirable to carry out the provisions hereof and the transactions contemplated hereby.

2.8. Variations in Pronouns. All pronouns and any variations thereof refer to the masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or plural, as the context may
require.

2.9. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance, is invalid or unenforceable in any
jurisdiction, the remainder of this Agreement and the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected by such invalidity or
unenforceability, nor shall such invalidity or unenforceability of such provision affect the validity or enforceability of such provision, or the application thereof, in
any other jurisdiction.

2.10. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be
an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.

2.11. Headings. The Article and Section headings in this Agreement are for reference only and shall not affect the interpretation of this Agreement.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written.

-Signature Page-
Reimbursement Agreement

THE FIRST AMERICAN CORPORATION

By:

Name:
Title:

FIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION

By:

Name:
Title:
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LEADCLICK HOLDING COMPANY, LL.C
OPERATING AGREEMENT
THIS OPERATING AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the 7th day of November, 2005, by and between FIRST AMERICAN

REAL ESTATE INFORMATION SERVICES, INC., a California corporation (“First American”), and FIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION, a Delaware
corporation (“First Advantage™).

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, First American and First Advantage have agreed to organize and operate a limited liability
company in accordance with the Delaware Act and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the parties, intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1
DEFINED TERMS

The following capitalized terms shall have the meanings specified in this Article I. Other terms are defined in the text of this Agreement, and
throughout this Agreement, those terms shall have the meanings respectively ascribed to them.

“Adjusted Capital Account Deficit” shall mean, with respect to any Member, the deficit balance, if any, in the Member’s Capital Account as of the
end of the relevant taxable year, after giving effect to the following adjustments:

(a) the deficit shall be decreased by the amounts which the Member is obligated to restore, if any, pursuant to this Agreement, or is deemed obligated
to restore pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(c); and

(b) the deficit shall be increased by the items described in Treas. Reg. §§ 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(d)(4), (5) and (6).

“Affiliate” shall mean, with respect to any Member, any Person: (a) which controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such Member;
(b) which has the power to appoint a majority of the members of the governing body of such Member or an Affiliate of such Member; (c) which has a majority of
the members of its governing body appointed by such Member or an Affiliate of such Member; (d) which has a majority of the members of its governing body
appointed by a Person having a relationship described in clause (b) or (c) above with any Member; or (e) which receives from or provides to any Member or any
Person having a relationship described in clause (b) or (c) above with any Member 50% or more of its income; provided, the Company shall not be deemed, for
these purposes, to be an Affiliate of either Member.
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“Appraiser” shall mean an independent appraiser or investment bank.
“Board of Managers” shall mean the Board of Managers appointed pursuant to Article V.

“Capital Account” shall mean the capital accounts created in accordance with Section 3.5. Each Capital Account shall be maintained in accordance
with the following provisions:

(a) a Member’s Capital Account shall be credited with the Member’s Capital Contribution, the amount of any Company liabilities assumed by the
Member (or which are secured by Company property distributed to the Member), the Member’s distributive share of Profit and any item in the nature of
income or gain allocated to such Member pursuant to the provisions of Article IV (other than Section 4.2(d)); and

(b) a Member’s Capital Account shall be debited with the amount of money and the fair market value of any Company property distributed to the
Member, the amount of any liabilities of such Member assumed by the Company (or which are secured by property contributed by the Member to the
Company), the Member’s distributive share of Loss and any item in the nature of expenses or losses allocated to the Member pursuant to the provisions of
Article IV (other than Section 4.2(d)).

If the book value of Company property is adjusted pursuant to Section 4.2(d), the Capital Account of each Member shall be adjusted to reflect the aggregate
adjustment in the same manner as if the Company had recognized gain or loss equal to the amount of such aggregate adjustment. If a Member’s Interest is
transferred pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the transferee shall succeed to the Capital Account of the transferor to the extent the Capital Account is
attributable to the transferred Interest. It is intended that the Capital Accounts of the Members shall be maintained in compliance with the provisions of
section 704(b) of the Code and the Regulations thereunder, and all provisions of this Agreement relating to the maintenance of Capital Accounts shall be
interpreted and applied in a manner consistent with that Regulation.

“Capital Contribution” shall mean the total amount of cash and the fair market value of any other assets contributed (or deemed contributed under
Treas. Reg. § 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(d)) to the Company by a Member, net of liabilities assumed or to which the assets are subject.

“Cash Flow” shall mean all cash funds derived from operations of the Company (including interest received on reserves), without reduction for any
non-cash charges, but less cash funds used to pay current Operating Expenses and to pay or establish reasonable reserves for future expenses, debt payments,
capital improvements and replacements as determined by the Board of Managers.

“Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or any corresponding provision of any succeeding law.
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“Company” shall mean the limited liability company formed in accordance with this Agreement.
“Company Minimum Gain” has the meaning set forth in Treas. Reg. §8 1.704-2(b)(2) and 1.704-2(d) for partnership minimum gain.
“Delaware Act” shall mean the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, 6 Del.C. § 18-101 et seq., as amended from time to time.

“Depreciation” shall mean, for each taxable year, an amount equal to the depreciation, amortization, or other cost recovery deduction allowable with
respect to an asset for such taxable year, except that if the Gross Asset Value of an asset differs from its adjusted basis for federal income tax purposes at the
beginning of such taxable year, Depreciation shall be an amount which bears the same ratio to such beginning Gross Asset Value as the federal income tax
depreciation, amortization, or other cost recovery deduction for such taxable year bears to such beginning adjusted basis; provided, however, that if the adjusted
basis for federal income tax purposes of an asset at the beginning of such taxable year is zero, Depreciation shall be determined with reference to such beginning
Gross Asset Value using any reasonable method selected by the Members.

“Effective Date” shall mean the date on which all parties hereto shall have validly executed this Agreement.
“First Advantage Member” shall mean First Advantage or any transferee of its Interest pursuant to Section 6.1 hereof.
“First American Member” shall mean First American or any transferee of its Interest pursuant to Section 6.1 hereof.

“Gross Asset Value” shall mean, with respect to any asset, the asset’s adjusted basis for federal income tax purposes, except as follows:

(a) The initial Gross Asset Value of any asset contributed by a Member of the Company shall be the gross fair market value of such asset, as
determined by the contributing Member and the remaining Members;

(b) The Gross Asset Value of all Company assets shall be adjusted to equal their respective gross fair market values, as determined by the Members,
as of the following time: (i) the acquisition of an additional interest in the Company by any new or existing Member in exchange for more than a de
minimis Capital Contribution; (ii) the distribution by the Company to a Member of more than a de minimis amount of property as consideration for an
interest in the Company; and (iii) the liquidation of the Company within the meaning of Treas. Reg. § 1.704-1(b)(2)(ii)(g); provided, however, that
adjustments pursuant to clauses (i) and (ii) above shall be made only if the Members reasonably determine that such adjustments are necessary or
appropriate to reflect the relative Interest of the Members in the Company;
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(c) The Gross Asset Value of any Company asset distributed to any Member shall be adjusted to equal the gross fair market value of such asset on the
date of distribution as determined by the distributee and the remaining Members; and

(d) The Gross Asset Values of the Company assets shall be increased (or decreased) to reflect any adjustments to the adjusted basis of such asset
pursuant to section 734(b) or section 743(b) of the Code, but only to the extent that such adjustments are taken into account in determining Capital
Accounts pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m) and clauses (a) and (b) hereof; provided, however, that Gross Asset Values shall not be adjusted
pursuant to this clause (d) to the extent that the Members determine that an adjustment pursuant to clause (b) hereof is necessary or appropriate in
connection with a transaction that would otherwise result in an adjustment pursuant to this clause (d).

(e) If the Gross Asset Value of an asset has been determined or adjusted pursuant to clause (b) or (d) hereof, such Gross Asset Value shall thereafter

be adjusted by the Depreciation taken into account with respect to such asset for purposes of computing Profits and Losses.

“Gross Revenues” shall mean all revenues, earnings, investment income, dividends, fees or other income earned by the Company; provided, Gross
Revenues shall not include Capital Contributions.

“Interest” shall mean a Member’s share of the Profits and Losses of the Company and a Member’s right to receive distributions of the Company’s
assets.

“Involuntary Withdrawal” shall mean, with respect to any Member, the occurrence of any of the following events:

(a) the Member makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors;

(b) the Member files a voluntary petition of bankruptcy;

(c) the Member is adjudged bankrupt or insolvent or there is entered against the Member an order for relief in any bankruptcy or insolvency
proceeding;

(d) the Member files a petition or answer seeking for the Member any reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation,
dissolution, or similar relief under any statute, law, or regulation;

(e) the Member seeks, consents to, or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee for, receiver for, or liquidation of the Member or of all or any
substantial part of the Member’s properties;

(f) the Member files an answer or other pleading admitting or failing to contest the material allegations of a petition filed against the Member in any
proceeding described in Subsections (a) through (e);
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(g) any proceeding against the Member seeking reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief
under any statute, law or regulation that continues for 120 days after the commencement thereof, or the appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for
the Member or all or any substantial part of the Member’s properties without the Member’s agreement or acquiescence, which appointment is not vacated
or stayed for 120 days or, if the appointment is stayed, for 120 days after the expiration of the stay during which period the appointment is not vacated;

(h) if the Member is an individual, the Member’s death or adjudication by a court of competent jurisdiction as incompetent to manage the Member’s
person or property;

(i) if the Member is acting as an Member by virtue of being a trustee of a trust, the termination of the trust;

(j) if the Member is a partnership or another limited liability company, the dissolution and commencement of winding up of the partnership or limited
liability company;

(k) if the Member is a corporation, the dissolution of the corporation or the revocation of its charter; or

(1) if the Member is an estate, the distribution by the fiduciary of the estate’s entire interest in the limited liability company.

“Liquidation Value” shall mean, with respect to any Interest of a Member, as the case may be, the amount such Member would have received in the
event the Company were dissolved and liquidated in accordance with the provisions of Article VII. “Liquidation Value” shall be determined (a) by mutual
agreement of the Members or (b) if the Members cannot agree within thirty (30) days after one Member first proposes in writing to the other Member that
Liquidation Value be determined, by an independent Appraiser selected by both Members. Such Appraiser shall submit to the Members its appraisal within thirty
(30) days after selection, which shall constitute the final Liquidation Value. If the Members are unable to agree upon an Appraiser within ten (10) days following
the expiration of such thirty (30)-day period, the Liquidation Value shall be determined by two independent Appraisers, one selected by each Member; provided,
that if a Member fails to appoint an Appraiser within ten (10) days following the expiration of such ten (10)-day period, Liquidation Value shall be determined by
the Appraiser selected by the other Member. Each Appraiser so selected shall submit to the Members its respective appraisal within thirty (30) days after the
selection. If a discrepancy between the dollar value of the appraisals exceeds 10% of the higher appraisal and the Members do not agree on a settlement of the
discrepancy within ten (10) days after receipt of the appraisal, then a third Appraiser mutually selected by the Members (or if they cannot so select then selected
by the first two Appraisers), shall be afforded access to the first two appraisals. The third Appraiser shall select one of the appraisals of the first two Appraisers,
which selection shall constitute a final determination of Liquidation Value and shall be binding upon all Members. If a discrepancy between appraisals of the first
two Appraisers is less than 10% of the higher appraisal, then the Liquidation Value of the Interest shall be the average of the two appraisals.
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“Manager” shall mean the members of the Board of Managers of the Company, who shall be the managers of the Company as such term is defined
in the Delaware Act. References to Managers in the singular or as him, her, it, itself, or other like references shall also, where the context so requires, be deemed
to include the plural or the masculine or feminine reference, as the case may be.

“Member” shall mean each Person signing this Agreement and any Person who subsequently is admitted as a member of the Company. If a Member
is a corporation, the Member may act through an authorized representative, with notice of such authorization to be provided in advance to the Company.

“Member Nonrecourse Debt” has the meaning set forth in Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(b)(4) for partner nonrecourse debt.

“Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain” shall mean an amount, with respect to each Member Nonrecourse Debt, equal to the Company
Minimum Gain that would result if such Member Nonrecourse Debt were treated as a Nonrecourse Liability, determined in accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1.704-

2(i)(3).
“Member Nonrecourse Deductions” has the meaning set forth in Treas. Reg. §§ 1.704-2(i)(1) and 1.704-2(i)(2) for partner nonrecourse deductions.

“Membership Rights” shall mean all of the rights of a Member in the Company, including a Member’s: (a) Interest; (b) right to inspect the
Company’s books and records; and (c) right to participate in the management of and vote on matters coming before the Company.

“Negative Capital Account” shall mean a Capital Account with a balance of less than zero.

“Nonrecourse Deductions” has the meaning set forth in Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(b)(1). The amount of Nonrecourse Deductions for a taxable year of
the Company equals the net increase, if any, in the amount of Minimum Gain during that taxable year, determined according to the provisions of Treas. Reg.
§ 1.704-2(c).

“Nonrecourse Liability” has the meaning set forth in Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(b)(3).

“Operating Expenses” shall mean the amount of operating expenses incurred by the Company in the ordinary course of business, but shall not
include (a) extraordinary expenses incurred by the Company in excess of those contemplated by both Members, (b) expenses incurred in respect of or relating to
tort claims, breaches of contractual arrangements or violations of law, including, without limitation, securities laws or (c) expenses incurred in connection with
transactions between the Company and the Members.
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“Operating Percentage” shall mean, as to a Member, the percentage set forth after the Member’s name on Exhibit A, as amended from time to time.
The Operating Percentage shall be such Member’s share of the Profits and Losses of, and the right to receive distributions from, the Company.

“Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, partnership, association, limited liability company, trust, estate or other entity.
“Positive Capital Account” shall mean a Capital Account with a balance greater than zero.
“Profit” and “Loss” shall mean, for each taxable year of the Company (or other period for which Profit or Loss must be computed) the Company’s

taxable income or loss determined in accordance with section 703(a) of the Code, with the following adjustments:

(a) all items of income, gain, loss, deduction, or credit required to be stated separately pursuant to section 703(a)(1) of the Code shall be included in
computing taxable income or loss;

(b) any tax-exempt income of the Company not otherwise taken into account in computing Profit or Loss shall be included in computing taxable
income or loss;

(c) any expenditures of the Company described in section 705(a)(2)(b) of the Code (or treated as such pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(i))
and not otherwise taken into account in computing Profit or Loss shall be subtracted from taxable income or loss;

(d) gain or loss resulting from any taxable disposition of Company property shall be computed by reference to the adjusted book value of the
property disposed of, notwithstanding the fact that the adjusted book value differs from the adjusted basis of such property for federal income tax purposes;
and

(e) in lieu of the depreciation, amortization or cost recovery deductions allowable in computing taxable income or loss, there shall be taken into
account the depreciation computed based upon the adjusted book value of the asset.

“Regulations” shall mean the income tax regulations, including any temporary regulations, from time to time promulgated under the Code.

“Taxes” shall mean income, franchise, transfer, withholding, employment or any other taxes, and interest, charges, penalties and additions to taxes
relating thereto.

“Transfer” shall mean, when used as a noun, any voluntary sale, hypothecation, pledge, assignment, attachment or other transfer, and, when used as
a verb, shall mean voluntarily to sell, hypothecate, pledge, assign or otherwise transfer.
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ARTICLE II
FORMATION AND NAME; OFFICE; PURPOSE

2.1. Organization. The parties shall organize a limited liability company pursuant to the Delaware Act and the provisions of this Agreement and, for
that purpose, shall cause a Certificate of Formation in the form attached as Exhibit B to be executed and filed with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware.

2.2. Name of the Company. The name of the Company shall be “LeadClick Holding Company, LLC”.

2.3. Purpose. The business of the Company shall be to acquire and own an equity interest in LeadClick Media, Inc. a California corporation
(“LeadClick”). Except as otherwise mutually agreed by the Members, the Company shall not engage in any other activity or business. In furtherance of its
business, the Company shall have and may exercise all the powers now or hereafter conferred by the laws of the State of Delaware, and shall have the authority to
do any and all things related or incidental thereto.

2.4. Term. The term of the Company shall begin upon the acceptance of the Certificate of Formation by the office of the Secretary of State of the
State of Delaware and shall continue in existence until its existence is terminated pursuant to Article VII of this Agreement.

2.5. Registered Office. The registered office of the Company in the State of Delaware shall be located at 2711 Centerville Road, Suite 400,
Wilmington, DE 19808 or any other place within the State of Delaware which the Manager shall select. The principal office of the Company shall be at any other
location which the Manager shall select.

2.6. Members. The name, present mailing address, and Operating Percentage of each Member are set forth on Exhibit A, as Exhibit A may be
amended pursuant to this Agreement.

ARTICLE III
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS; CAPITAL ACCOUNTS

3.1. Capital Contributions.

(a) Initial Capital Contributions. On the Effective Date, the Members shall contribute to the Company cash or property in the amounts respectively
set forth on Exhibit A.

(b) Additional Capital Contributions. If the Members unanimously determine at any time or from time to time determines that the Company requires
additional Capital Contributions, then each Member shall make such contribution within thirty (30) days that such determination is made. A Member’s
proportionate share of the total additional Capital Contribution shall be equal to the product obtained by multiplying the Member’s percentage and the total
Additional Capital Contribution required. A Member’s proportionate share shall be payable in cash or by certified check or by wire transfer.
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(c) Shortfall Contributions. In addition to the Capital Contributions required by Sections 3.1(a) and 3.1(b), the Members shall make additional
Capital Contributions to the Company from time to time at the written request of the Company (accompanied by such documentation and support as any Member
shall reasonably request) in the amount by which Operating Expenses of the Company exceed the sum of Gross Revenues of the Company, undistributed cash
Capital Contributions to the Company by the Members, investment income and dividends; provided, however, that in no event shall the First American Member
be required to make the Capital Contribution contemplated by this Section 3.1(c) and in the event First American refuses to make such Capital Contribution, the
Operating Percentage of each Member shall be adjusted by increasing or decreasing, as applicable, such Operating Percentage to equal the percentage which such
Member’s Capital Account bears to the total of all Capital Accounts of all Members as a result of the Capital Contributions contemplated by this Section 3.1(c)
after first adjusting such Capital Accounts to reflect the fair market value of the assets of the Company as permitted by Treasury Regulations §1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)
(f), such adjustment to be made prior to taking into account the additional Capital Contribution contemplated by this Section 3.1(c). If an adjustment to the Capital
Accounts of the Members is made pursuant to this Section 3.2(c), the books and records of the Company shall be amended accordingly.

3.2. No Interest on Capital Contributions. Members shall not be paid interest on their Capital Contributions.

3.3. Return of Capital Contributions. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, no Member shall have the right to receive the return of any
Capital Contribution.

3.4. Form of Return of Capital. If a Member is entitled to receive a return of a Capital Contribution, the Company may distribute cash, notes,
property or a combination thereof to the Member in return of the Capital Contribution; provided, that to the extent possible, capital will be returned in the form
contributed.

3.5. Capital Accounts. A separate Capital Account shall be created and maintained for each Member. Capital Accounts shall be maintained as set
forth in the definition of “Capital Accounts”.

3.6. Loans. Any Member may, at any time, make or cause a loan to be made to the Company in any amount and on those terms upon which the other
Members and the Member agree.

ARTICLE IV
PROFIT AND LOSS; DISTRIBUTIONS; GUARANTEED ANNUAL PAYMENT

4.1. Distributions of Cash Flow and Allocations of Profit or Loss.

(a) Profit or Loss. For any taxable year of the Company, Profits and Losses shall be allocated to each of the Members in accordance with their
respective Operating Percentages in the Company, as set forth in Exhibit A.

(b) Cash Flow. Cash Flow for each taxable year of the Company shall be distributed by the Company to the Members in accordance with their
respective Operating
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Percentages at such times and shall be made in such amounts as a majority of the Board of Managers shall determine within ten (10) business days of the end of
each month, subject to the following requirements:

(i) The Board of Managers shall use its best efforts to cause the Company to distribute to the Members an amount of Cash Flow as shall be sufficient
to enable the Members to fund their respective federal and state income tax liabilities on a quarterly basis.

(ii) All distributions shall be made from Profits and capital of the Company and shall be allocated to each of the Members in accordance with their
respective Operating Percentages in the Company, as set forth in Exhibit A.

4.2. Regulatory Allocations.

(a) Qualified Income Offset. No Member shall be allocated Losses or deductions if the allocation causes a Member to have an Adjusted Capital
Account Deficit. If a Member receives (i) an allocation of Loss or deduction (or item thereof) or (ii) any distribution which causes the Member to have an
Adjusted Capital Account Deficit at the end of any taxable year, then all items of income and gain of the Company (consisting of a pro rata portion of each item
of Company income, including gross income and gain) for that taxable year shall be allocated to that Member before any other allocation is made of Company
items for that taxable year, in the amount and in proportions required to eliminate the Adjusted Capital Account Deficit as quickly as possible. This Section 4.2(a)
is intended to comply with, and shall be interpreted consistently with, the “qualified income offset” provisions of the Regulations promulgated under
section 704(b) of the Code.

(b) Company Minimum Gain. Except as set forth in Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(f)(2), notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if, during
any taxable year, there is a net decrease in Company Minimum Gain, each Member, prior to any other allocation pursuant to this Article IV, shall be specially
allocated items of gross income and gain for such taxable year (and, if necessary, subsequent taxable years) in an amount equal to that Member’s share of the net
decrease in Company Minimum Gain, computed in accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(g). Allocations of gross income and gain pursuant to this
Section 4.2(b) shall be made first from gain recognized from the disposition of Company assets subject to nonrecourse liabilities (within the meaning of the
Regulations promulgated under section 752 of the Code), to the extent of the Company Minimum Gain attributable to those assets, and thereafter, from a pro rata
portion of the Company’s other items of income and gain for the taxable year. The items to be so allocated shall be determined in accordance with Treas. Reg.

§8 1.704-2(f)(6) and 1.704-2(j)(2). It is the intent of the parties hereto that any allocation pursuant to this Section 4.2(b) shall constitute a “minimum gain
chargeback” under Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(f) and shall be interpreted consistently therewith.

(c) Member Minimum Gain. Except as otherwise provided in Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(i)(4), notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, if
there is a net decrease in Member Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain attributable to a Member Nonrecourse Debt during any taxable year, each Member who has a
share of the Member Nonrecourse Debt
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Minimum Gain attributable to such Member Nonrecourse Debt, determined in accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(i)(5), shall be specially allocated items of
income and gain for such taxable year (and, if necessary, subsequent taxable years) in an amount equal to such Member’s share of the net decrease in Member
Nonrecourse Debt Minimum Gain attributable to such Member Nonrecourse Debt, determined in accordance with Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(i)(4). Allocations
pursuant to the previous sentence shall be determined in accordance with Treas. Reg. §§ 1.704-2(i)(4) and 1.704-2(j)(2). This Section 4.2(c) is intended to comply
with the minimum gain chargeback requirement in Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(i)(4) and shall be interpreted consistently therewith.

(d) Contributed Property. In accordance with section 704(c) of the Code and the Regulations thereunder, income, gain, loss, and deduction with
respect to any property contributed to the capital of the Company shall, solely for tax purposes, be allocated among the Members so as to take account of any
variation between the adjusted basis of such property to the Company for federal income tax purposes and its initial Gross Asset Value. In the event the Gross
Asset Value of any Company asset is adjusted, subsequent allocations of income, gain, loss, and deduction with respect to such asset shall take account of any
variation between the adjusted basis of such asset for federal income tax purposes and its Gross Asset Value in the same manner as under section 704(c) of the
Code and the Regulations thereunder. Any elections or other decisions relating to such allocations (including but not limited to such simplifying conventions as
appropriate) shall be made by the Members in any manner that reasonably reflects the purpose and intention of this Agreement. Allocations pursuant to this
Section 4.2(d) are solely for purposes of federal, state, and local taxes and shall not affect, or in any way be taken into account in computing, any Person’s Capital
Account or share of Profits, Losses, other items, or distributions pursuant to any provision of this Agreement. A majority of the Members may amend the
provisions of this Section 4.2(d) to conform with any amendments to the Regulations or with any Regulations promulgated under section 704(c) of the Code,
provided that such amendments shall not have a material adverse effect on the amounts distributable to any Member pursuant to this Agreement.

(e) Section 754 Adjustment. To the extent an adjustment to the tax basis of any Company asset pursuant to section 734(b) or section 743(b) of the
Code is required, pursuant to Treas. Reg. § 1.704-1(b)(2)(iv)(m), to be taken into account in determining Capital Accounts, the amount of the adjustment to the
Capital Accounts shall be treated as an item of gain (if the adjustment increases the basis of the asset) or loss (if the adjustment decreases basis) and the gain or
loss shall be specially allocated to the Members in a manner consistent with the manner in which their Capital Accounts are required to be adjusted pursuant to
that Section of the Regulations.

(f) Nonrecourse Deductions. Any Member Nonrecourse Deductions for any taxable year shall be specially allocated to the Member who bears the
economic risk of loss with respect to the Member Nonrecourse Debt to which such Member Nonrecourse Deductions are attributable in accordance with Treas.
Reg. § 1.704-2(i)(1).

(g) Member Loan Nonrecourse Deductions. Any Member Loan Nonrecourse Deduction for any taxable year or other period shall be specially
allocated to the Member who bears the risk of loss with respect to the loan to which the Member Loan Nonrecourse Deduction is attributable in accordance with
Treas. Reg. § 1.704-2(b).
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(h) Unrealized Receivables. If a Member’s Interest is reduced (provided the reduction does not result in a complete termination of the Member’s
Interest), the Member’s share of the Company’s “unrealized receivables” and “substantially appreciated inventory” (within the meaning of section 751 of the
Code) shall not be reduced, so that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, that portion of the Profit otherwise allocable upon a
liquidation or dissolution of the Company pursuant to Section 4.3 hereof which is taxable as ordinary income (recaptured) for federal income tax purposes shall,
to the extent possible without increasing the total gain to the Company or to any Member, be specially allocated among the Members in proportion to the
deductions (or basis reductions treated as deductions) giving rise to such recapture. Any questions as to the aforesaid allocation of ordinary income (recapture), to
the extent such questions cannot be resolved in the manner specified above, shall be resolved by the Members.

(i) Withholding. All amounts required to be withheld pursuant to section 1446 of the Code or any other provision of federal, state or local tax law
shall be treated as amounts actually distributed to the affected Members for all purposes under this Agreement.

4.3. Liquidation and Dissolution.

(a) If the Company is liquidated, the assets of the Company shall be distributed to the Members in accordance with the balances in their respective
Positive Capital Accounts, after taking into account the allocations of Profit or Loss, if any.

(b) No Member shall be obligated to restore a Negative Capital Account.

4.4. Valuation of Distributions in Kind. If any assets of the Company are distributed in kind to the Members, those assets shall be valued on the basis
of their fair market value, and any Member entitled to any interest in those assets shall receive that interest as a tenant-in-common with all other Members so
entitled. Unless the Members otherwise agree, the fair market value of such assets shall be determined by an independent Appraiser selected by the Members. The
Profit or Loss for each unsold asset shall be determined as if the asset had been sold at its fair market value, and the Profit or Loss shall be allocated as provided
in Section 4.1 and shall be properly credited or charged to the Capital Accounts of the Members prior to the distribution of the assets in liquidation pursuant to
Section 4.3.

4.5 Record Holders. All Profit and Loss shall be allocated, and all distributions shall be made, to the Persons shown on the records of the Company
who are Members as of the last day of the taxable year for which the allocation or distribution is to be made. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless the
Company’s taxable year is separated into segments, if there is a Transfer or an Involuntary Withdrawal during the taxable year, the Profit and Loss shall be
allocated between the original Member and the successor on the basis of the number of days each was a Member during the taxable year.

4.6 Limitation on Distribution. Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this Agreement, the Company shall not make a
distribution to any Member on account of its Interest in the Company if such distribution would violate any applicable law.
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4.7 Amendments. The Members are hereby authorized, upon the advice of the Company’s tax counsel, to amend this Article IV to comply with the
Code and the Regulations promulgated under section 704(b) of the Code.

ARTICLE V
MANAGEMENT; RIGHTS; POWERS AND DUTIES

5.1. Board of Managers.

(a) Board of Managers; Appointments. The business and affairs of the Company shall be managed by the Board of Managers. In any election of the

Board of Managers, the Members shall each vote at any regular or special meeting of Members (or by written consent) its Interest as may be necessary to elect the
following individuals to the Board of Managers:

(i) 1 (one) individual nominated by First American; and

(ii) 2 (two) individuals nominated by First Advantage.
The initial three Managers shall be John Long, John Lamson, and Kenneth DeGiorgio.

In the event that any of the initial Managers resigns from the Board of Managers, such appointees shall remain Managers until the Company and the
other Members are notified in writing as to changes in the appointees. A Member may appoint or remove any of its appointees to the Board of Managers, in such
Member’s sole and absolute discretion, at any time and from time to time.

Each Member hereby agrees to hold all of its Interest (and any other voting interests of the Company subsequently acquired by such Member)
(hereinafter referred to as the “Voting Interests”) subject to, and to vote such Voting Interests at a regular or special meeting of Members (or by written consent) in
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement.

The Company agrees to vote its equity interest in any subsidiary of the Company to provide for a board of directors or other governing body of equal
size to the Board of Managers and to appoint the individuals designated to serve on the Board of Managers pursuant to this Section 5.1(a) to the board of directors
or other governing body of such subsidiary.

(b) Quorum;_Voting; Chairman. A quorum for the conduct of business by the Board of Managers shall require the presence of, and actions by the
Board of Managers shall require the affirmative vote of, a majority of the Managers appointed by each Member. The Board of Managers shall have a chairman,
who must be a Manager.

(c) Meetings. The Board of Managers shall meet as determined by the members of the Board of Managers.
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(d) Unanimous Written Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of the Board of Managers or the Executive Committee
may be taken without a meeting if there is filed with the records of Board of Managers’ meetings or the records of the Executive Committee’s meetings, as the
case may be, a unanimous written consent or consents which sets forth the action and is signed by each Manager or each member of the Executive Committee, as
the case may be.

5.2. Powers of the Board of Managers. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, the Board of Managers shall have full, exclusive and
complete discretion, power and authority, subject in all cases to the requirements of applicable law, to manage, control, administer and operate the business and
affairs of the Company for the purposes herein stated, and to make all decisions affecting such business and affairs.

5.3. Meetings of and Voting by Members.

(a) Meetings. If a vote of the Members is required for any action hereunder, a meeting of the Members may be called at any time by any Member.
Meetings of Members shall be held (i) at the Company’s principal place of business, or (ii) at such place as the Members shall unanimously agree. Not less than
ten (10) nor more than ninety (90) days before each meeting, the Person calling the meeting shall give written notice of the meeting to each Member entitled to
vote at the meeting. The notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions, each Member who is entitled to
notice waives notice if, before or after the meeting, the Member signs a waiver of the notice which is filed with the records of Members’ meetings, or is present at
the meeting in person or by proxy. Unless this Agreement provides otherwise, at a meeting of Members, the presence in person or by proxy of all Members shall
be necessary to constitute a quorum. A Member may vote either in person or by written proxy signed by the Member or by the Member’s duly authorized
attorney-in-fact. Members may participate in any meeting by means of a telephone conference, video conference or similar communications equipment if all
persons participating in the meeting can hear each other at the same time.

(b) Unanimous Written Consent. Any action required or permitted to be taken at a meeting of Members may be taken without a meeting if there is
filed with the records of Members’ meetings a written consent or consents which sets forth the action and is signed by each Member entitled to vote on the matter.

(c) Required Member Vote. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, wherever this Agreement requires the approval of the Members, the
affirmative vote of all Members shall be required to approve the matter.

5.4. Matters Requiring Action by Persons Other than the Board of Managers. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, neither the
Board of Managers nor the Company, as applicable, shall have the authority to take any of the following actions without the consent of both Members:

(a) Amend the Certificate of Formation or this Agreement;
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(b) Merge, consolidate or dissolve the Company or any subsidiary of the Company;
(c) Sell all or substantially all assets of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company;
(d) Convert the Company or any subsidiary of the Company into another form of business entity;

(e) Take any of the actions referred to in Sections 2.2, 2.3, 2.5, 3.6, 8.7 or any other section of this Agreement as requiring the consent of both
Members;

(f) Amend the certificate of incorporation (or equivalent governing document) or the bylaws (or equivalent governing document) of any subsidiary of
the Company;

(g) To change the name of any subsidiary of the Company;

(h) To change the business or purpose of any subsidiary of the Company as engaged in on the later of the date hereof or the date on which such
subsidiary became a subsidiary of the Company; and

(i) The entering by any subsidiary of the Company into any loan or similar arrangement with any Member or any affiliate of any Member.

5.5. Actions by Single Member. A Member of the Company, without the approval of the Board of Managers or the other Member, shall have the
right to institute or assert any demand, action, suit or proceeding that the Company would otherwise have, against the other Member or its Affiliates on behalf of
the Company and, in connection therewith, to retain counsel, at the Company’s expense, to represent the Company and such Member in such claim, demand,
action, suit or proceeding against the other Member or its Affiliates.

5.6. Lack of Authority. Subject to Section 5.5, no Member has the authority or power to act for or on behalf of the Company, to do any act that
would be binding on the Company or to incur any obligation or liability on behalf of the Company.

5.7. Liability; Indemnification.

(a) Liability to Members and Company. Neither the Members nor the Managers shall be liable, responsible or accountable, in damages or otherwise,
to any Member or to the Company for any act performed by them within the scope of the authority conferred on them by this Agreement, except for willful fraud,
an intentional breach of this Agreement, or as otherwise required by law.

(b) Liability to Third Parties. Neither the Members nor the Managers shall be liable solely by reason of being a Member or Manager, under order of a
court or in any other manner, for a debt, obligation or liability of the Company of any kind or for the acts or omissions of any other Member, manager, agent or
employee of the Company.
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(c) Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Company shall indemnify any Member or Manager for any act performed by him or
her within the scope of the authority conferred on such Person by this Agreement.

ARTICLE VI
TRANSFER OF INTERESTS AND DISSOCIATION OF MEMBERS

6.1. Restrictions on Transfer. Except for permitted transfers, no Member may Transfer all, or any portion of, or any interest or rights in, its Interest
without the consent of the Members. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the First Advantage Member shall be permitted to pledge its Membership Rights, including
its Interest, in the Company to its lenders under any credit facility or other loan agreement without the consent of the First American Member. Each Member
hereby acknowledges the reasonableness of this prohibition in view of the purposes of the Company and the relationship of the Members. The Transfer of any
Interest in violation of the prohibition contained in this Section 6.1 shall be deemed invalid, null and void, and of no force or effect. Any Person to whom
Membership Rights are attempted to be transferred in violation of this prohibition shall not be entitled to vote on matters coming before the Members, participate
in the management of the Company, act as an agent of the Company, or have any other rights in or with respect to the Membership Rights.

6.2. Permitted Transfers. A Member may Transfer all (but not less than all) of its Membership Rights to any Person controlling, controlled by or
under common control with such Member.

6.3. Dissociation.
(a) Dissociation. No Member shall have the right or power to dissociate from the Company. Any dissociation by a Member shall constitute a breach

of this Agreement.

(b) Involuntary Dissociation. Upon the occurrence of an Involuntary Withdrawal with respect to a Member, the successor by law of the withdrawn
Member shall not become a Member.

ARTICLE VII
DISSOLUTION; LIQUIDATION

7.1. Events of Dissolution. Subject to the exercise of the Buyout Rights under Section 7.2, the Company shall be dissolved upon, and only upon, the
happening of any of the following events (each, a “Dissolution Event”):
(a) upon the unanimous written agreement of all of the Members;

(b) upon the Involuntary Withdrawal of a Member, unless the other Member, within 120 days after the event or occurrence of the Involuntary
Withdrawal, elects to continue the business of the Company; or

(c) upon breach of this Agreement, at the option of the non-breaching Member, upon 60 days’ prior written notice to the other Member;
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7.2. Buyout Rights. Upon the occurrence of a Dissolution Event, in lieu of dissolving and winding up the Company, each Member shall have the
option (but not any obligation), exercisable for a period of 90 days following the Member’s knowledge of such event, to cause the determination of the
Liquidation Value of the other Member’s Interest and to purchase or cause its Affiliate to purchase that Member’s Interest at a cash price equal to its Liquidation
Value (the “Buyout Rights”). The cost of any appraisal shall be divided equally between the Members.

7.3. Procedure for Winding Up and Dissolution. If the Buyout Rights are not exercised within the ninety (90)-day period referred to in Section 7.2,
the Company shall be dissolved in accordance with Section 8.1 and the Members shall wind up the Company’s affairs. On winding up of the Company, the assets
of the Company shall be distributed,

(a) first, to creditors of the Company, including Members who are creditors, in satisfaction of the liabilities of the Company;

(b) then, to the Members in accordance with Section 4.3.

7.4. Filing of Certificate of Cancellation. If the Company is dissolved, the remaining Members shall promptly file the Certificate of Cancellation
with the Office of the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware. If there are no remaining Members, the Certificate shall be filed by the last Person to be a
Members; if there are no remaining Members nor any Person who last was a Member, the Certificate shall be filed by the legal or personal representatives of the
Person who last was a Member.

7.5. Remedies Not Exclusive. The rights and remedies granted to Members in this Article VIII in the event of an Involuntary Withdrawal are in
addition to any other rights and remedies granted or available to the Members pursuant to this Agreement. Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, the
failure to exercise any one of the rights and remedies herein provided shall not constitute a waiver thereof, or prevent the subsequent or concurrent utilization of
any other right or remedy.

ARTICLE VIII
BOOKS; RECORDS; ACCOUNTING; TAX ELECTIONS

8.1. Accounts. The funds of the Company may be deposited in such types of accounts maintained in the Company’s name as the Board of Managers
may determine. The Board of Managers shall determine the institution or institutions at which the accounts will be maintained, the types of accounts, and the
Persons who will have authority with respect to the accounts and the funds therein.

8.2. Books and Records.

(a) Maintenance of Records. The Board of Managers shall keep, or cause to be kept, complete and accurate books and records of the Company and
its subsidiaries and supporting documentation of the transactions with respect to the conduct of the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ business. The records shall
include, without limitation, complete and accurate information regarding the state of the business and financial condition of the Company and its
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subsidiaries; a copy of the Certificate of Formation and this Agreement, and all amendments to the Certificate of Formation and this Agreement; a copy of the
governing documents of all subsidiaries of the Company; a current list of the names and last known business, residence or mailing addresses of all Members; and
the Company’s and its subsidiaries’ federal, state or local tax returns.

(b) Inspection. The books and records of the Company and its subsidiaries shall be maintained in accordance with sound accounting principles and
practices and shall be available at the Company’s principal office for examination by any Member or Manager or the Member’s or Manager’s duly authorized
representative at any and all reasonable times during normal business hours upon reasonable prior notice. Each Member shall have the right, at such Member’s
expense, to copy and to audit or to cause its representatives to copy and audit, the books and records of the Company or any subsidiary of the Company.

(c) Reimbursement of Expenses. Each Member or Manager shall reimburse the Company for all costs and expenses incurred by the Company in
connection with the Member’s or Manager’s inspection and copying of the Company’s or any of its subsidiaries’ books and records.

8.3. Annual Accounting Period. The annual accounting period of the Company and its subsidiaries shall be its taxable year. The Company’s taxable
year shall end on, and the Company shall cause each of its subsidiaries’ taxable years to end on, December 31.

8.4. Financial Statements.

(a) Financial Statements. Within 5 business days after the end of each calendar month and calendar quarter, and within 15 business days after the end
of each calendar year, the Company shall and shall cause each of its subsidiaries to furnish to each Member an unaudited balance sheet of the Company and each
such subsidiary as of the end of such month /quarter/year and the related statements of income and cash flow for such month/quarter/year and for the portion of
the fiscal year then ended.

8.5. Other Reports. Within 75 days after the end of each taxable year of the Company, the Board of Managers shall cause to be sent to each Member
(i) within 45 days after the end of such taxable year, estimated tax information, and (ii) within 180 days after the end of such taxable year, final tax information,
concerning the Company which is necessary for preparing the Member’s income tax returns for that year.

8.6. Tax Matters Partner. The First Advantage Member shall be the tax matters partner (“Tax Matters Partner”). The Tax Matters Partner shall have
all powers and responsibilities provided in section 6221 of the Code. The Tax Matters Partner shall keep all Members informed of all notices from government
taxing authorities which may come to the attention of the Tax Matters Partner. The Company shall pay and be responsible for all reasonable costs and expenses
incurred by the Tax Matters Partner in performing those duties. A Member shall be responsible for any costs incurred by the Member with respect to any tax audit
or tax-related administrative or judicial proceeding against the Member, even though the proceeding relates to the Company. The Tax Matters Partner may not
compromise any dispute with the Internal Revenue Service without the approval of the Members.
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8.7. Tax Elections. The Members shall have the authority to make all elections permitted under the Code, including, without limitation, elections of
methods of depreciation and elections under section 754 of the Code. The decision to make or not make an election shall be in the sole and absolute discretion of
the Members.

ARTICLE IX
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

9.1. Representations and Warranties of First American. First American represents and warrants to First Advantage and the Company that each of the
following statements is true and correct on and as of the Effective Date:

(a) Organization and Standing. First American is a corporation, duly organized, validly existing and subsisting under the laws of the State of
California. First American possesses all requisite power to own and operate its property, including its Membership Rights, and carry on its business as the same is
now being conducted, and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

(b) Authority; Binding Effect. The execution and delivery by First American of this Agreement, and the performance by First American of the
transactions contemplated hereby, have been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of First American and no other corporate approval is required therefor.
First American has full power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and to carry out all of the terms and provisions hereof. This Agreement is a
valid and binding obligation of First American, enforceable against First American in accordance with its terms, except insofar as enforcement hereof may be
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws and general equitable principles, including the availability of any specific equitable remedy.

(c) No Violation or Bar. First American is not a party to any contract or agreement or subject to any restriction that would prevent or restrict, in any
material respect, the power or authority of First American to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. Neither the
execution and delivery by First American of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will violate (i) any provisions of the
Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws of First American; (ii) any order of any governmental or regulatory authority, any judgment, decree, order or award of any
court, arbitrator, administrative agency or governmental authority; or (iii) to the best knowledge and belief of First American, any material license, consent,
permit, approval or any other authorization of any governmental or regulatory authority, or any material statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation.

(d) Required Governmental Consents. No consent, approval or authorization of, or filing or registration with, any governmental authority (federal,
state or local) is required to be obtained or made by First American in order for First American to consummate the transactions to be effected pursuant to this
Agreement.
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9.2. Representations and Warranties of First Advantage. First Advantage represents and warrants to First American and the Company that each of the
following statements is true and correct on and as of the Effective Date:

(a) Organization and Standing. First Advantage is a corporation, duly organized, validly existing and subsisting under the laws of the State of
Delaware. First Advantage possesses all requisite power to own and operate its property, including its Membership Rights, and carry on its business as the same is
now being conducted, and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.

(b) Authority; Binding Effect. The execution and delivery by First Advantage of this Agreement, and the performance by First Advantage of the
transactions contemplated hereby, have been duly authorized by the Board of Directors of First Advantage and no other corporate approval is required therefor.
First Advantage has full power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement and to carry out all of the terms and provisions hereof. This Agreement is a
valid and binding obligation of First Advantage, enforceable against First Advantage in accordance with its terms, except insofar as enforcement hereof may be
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or similar laws and general equitable principles, including the availability of any specific equitable remedy.

(c) No Violation or Bar. First Advantage is not a party to any contract or agreement or subject to any restriction that would prevent or restrict, in any
material respect, the power or authority of First Advantage to enter into this Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. Neither the
execution and delivery by First Advantage of this Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will violate (i) any provisions of the
Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws of First Advantage; (ii) any order of any governmental or regulatory authority, any judgment, decree, order or award of any
court, arbitrator, administrative agency or governmental authority; or (iii) to the best knowledge and belief of First Advantage, any material license, consent,
permit, approval or any other authorization of any governmental or regulatory authority, or any material statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation.

(d) Required Governmental Consents. No consent, approval or authorization of, or filing or registration with, any governmental authority (federal,
state or local) is required to be obtained or made by First Advantage, in order for First Advantage to consummate the transactions to be effected pursuant to this
Agreement.

ARTICLE X
GENERAL PROVISIONS

10.1. Assurances. Each Member shall execute all such certificates and other documents and shall do all such filing, recording, publishing and other
acts as appropriate to comply with the requirements of law for the formation and operation of the Company and to comply with any laws, rules and regulations
relating to the acquisition, operation or holding of the property of the Company.
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10.2. Notifications. Any notice, demand, consent, election, offer, approval, request or other communication (collectively, a “notice”) required or
permitted under this Agreement must be in writing and either delivered personally or sent by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested,
or by facsimile transmission (followed by confirmation of receipt). A notice must be addressed to a Member at the Member’s last known address on the records of
the Company. A notice to the Company must be addressed to the Company’s registered office. All notices will be deemed effective when received. Any party may
designate, by notice to all of the others, substitute addresses or addressees for notices; and, thereafter, notices are to be directed to those substitute addresses or
addressees.

10.3. Specific Performance. The parties recognize that irreparable injury will result from a breach of any provision of this Agreement, and money
damages will be inadequate to fully remedy the injury. Accordingly, in the event of a breach or threatened breach of one or more of the provisions of this
Agreement, any party who may be injured (in addition to any other remedies which may be available to that party) shall be entitled to one or more preliminary or
permanent orders (a) restraining and enjoining any act which would constitute a breach or (b) compelling the performance of any obligation which, if not
performed, would constitute a breach.

10.4. Complete Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of the agreement among the Members with respect to
the subject matter hereof. It supersedes all prior or contemporaneous written and oral statements, including any prior or contemporaneous representation,
statement, condition or warranty. This Agreement may not be amended without the written consent of all of the Members.

10.5. Applicable Law. All questions concerning the construction, validity and interpretation of this Agreement and the performance of the
obligations imposed by this Agreement shall be governed by the internal law, not the law of conflicts, of the State of Delaware.

10.6. Section Titles. The headings herein are inserted as a matter of convenience only, and do not define, limit or describe the scope of this
Agreement or the intent of the provisions hereof.

10.7. Binding Provisions. This Agreement is binding upon, and inures to the benefit of, the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors,
administrators, personal and legal representatives, successors and permitted assigns.

10.8. Waiver of Action for Partition. Each Member irrevocably waives any right that such Member may have to maintain any action for partition
with respect to properties held by the Company.

10.9. Terms. Common nouns and pronouns shall be deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine, neuter, singular and plural, as the identity of the
Person may in the context require.

10.10. Separability of Provisions. Each provision of this Agreement shall be considered separable; and if, for any reason, any provision or provisions
herein are determined to be invalid and contrary to any existing or future law, such invalidity shall not impair the operation of or affect those portions of this
Agreement which are valid.
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10.11. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of which,
when taken together, constitute one and the same document. The signature of any party to any counterpart shall be deemed a signature to, and may be appended
to, any other counterpart.

10.12. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create any duty to, any standard of care with reference to, or
any liability to anyone other than the Members and the Company. No other Person is an intended third-party beneficiary of this Agreement.

10.13. Force Majeure. Neither Member shall be liable nor deemed to be in default for any delay or failure in performance under this Agreement
resulting, directly or indirectly, from acts of God, civil or military authority, acts of public enemy, war, accidents, fires, explosions, earthquakes, floods, failure of
transportation, machinery or supplies, vandalism, strikes or other work interruptions beyond the reasonable control of such Member. Each Member shall make
good faith efforts to perform under this Agreement in the event of such circumstances.

10.14. Dispute Resolution. The parties consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of, and the exclusivity of arbitration in, the State of
Delaware.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date set forth hereinabove.
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MEMBERS:
THE FIRST AMERICAN CORPORATION

By

Title

FIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION

By

Title




SUBSIDIARIES

American Driving

Bar None, Inc.

CIG Investments, LLC

CMSI Credit Services, Inc.

CreditReportsPlus LLC

First Advantage Background Services Corp

First Advantage Canada, Inc.

First Advantage Quest Research (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
First Advantage Credco, LLC

First Advantage Litigation Consulting, LLC

First Advantage Enterprise Screening Corporation
First Advantage Government Services, LLC

First Advantage Occupational Health Services Corp
First Advantage Philippines, Inc.

First Advantage Public Records, LL.C

First Advantage Quest Research Corporation
First Advantage Quest Research Group Ltd

First Advantage Quest Research, Ltd.

First Advantage Quest Research Limited

First Advantage Quest Research Private Limited
First Advantage Quest Research PTE, Ltd

First Advantage Quest Research PTY, Ltd

First Advantage SafeRent, Inc.

First Advantage Tax Consulting Services, LLC
First American Credco of Puerto Rico, Inc.

First American Credit Management Solutions, Inc.
First American Indian Holdings, LLC

First American Membership Services, Inc.

First Canadian Credco, Inc.

Jenark Business Systems, Inc.

LeadClick Holding Company, LLC

LeadClick Media, Inc.

Multifamily Community Insurance Agency, Inc.
National Background Data, LLC

National Data Registry, LLC

North American Credco, Inc.

Omega Insurance Services, Inc.

Pea Soup Merger Corp

PrideRock Holding Company, Inc.

Proudfoot Reports Incorporated

Quantitative Risk Solutions LLC dba First Advantage Supply Security Division
Realeum, Inc.

Teletrack Canada, Inc.

Tele-Track, Inc.

Recruiternet (Europe), Ltd.

US Search.com, Inc.

ZAPAPP India Private Ltd.
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Exhibit 31.1

Chief Executive Officer
I, John Long, Chief Executive Officer of FIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of FIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; and

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2006 /S/ JOHN LONG

John Long
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
Chief Financial Officer

I, John Lamson, Chief Financial Officer, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of FIRST ADVANTAGE CORPORATION;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this annual report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange

Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; and

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; and

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: March 16, 2006 /S/ JOHN LAMSON

John Lamson
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
Certification of Chief Executive Officer

In connection with the Form 10-K of First Advantage Corporation (the “Company”) for the period ended December 31, 2005, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, John Long, chief executive officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this statement has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

Date: March 16, 2006 /S/ JOHN LONG

John Long
Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely to accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, and is not being filed for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before
or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.



Exhibit 32.2
Certification of Chief Financial Officer

In connection with the Form 10-K of First Advantage Corporation (the “Company”) for the period ended December 31, 2005, as filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on the date hereof, I, John Lamson, chief financial officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

A signed original of this statement has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.

Date: March 16, 2006 /S/ JOHN LAMSON

John Lamson
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished solely to accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.C. ss. 1350, and is not being filed for purposes of
Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company, whether made before
or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.



